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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Times Property Holdings Limited (“Times Property” or the “Company”;
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), one of the top 100
property developers in China, is principally engaged in property
development, property investment and property management,
focusing on the development of mid- to high-end market residential
properties. As at 31 December 2014, Times Property had expanded
its business to Guangzhou, Foshan, Zhuhai, Zhongshan, Qingyuan
and Changsha where economies are relatively developed, and had in
total 27 projects on various stages.

Through adherence to focusing on regional penetration, we have
achieved leading market position in prosperous Guangdong Province.
The Company positions residential business as its core sector,
managing to attract customers with robust demands and improvement-
oriented demands. In addition, we also provide quality property
management services to our commercial and residential property
purchasers by the property management companies operated by
ourselves.

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11
December 2013 and since then stepped on an international funding-
raising platform. During year 2014, the Company successfully leaped
into the top 50 among the 500 excellent China real estate enterprises,
ranking no. 45 in the list and was awarded by the China Real Estate
Research Association, the China Real Estate Industry Association and
the China Real Estate Evaluation Center.

Times Property, under its persistent mission of “empowering more
people to live with a lifestyle they are seeking for”, is committed to
providing quality products to consumers and maximizing returns to its
shareholders (the “Shareholders”), targeting to become a leading real
estate enterprise in China.
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NAERBLE
CORPORATE MILESTONES

2014 ?

s ARHERMARE-—BRTET
Contracted sales surpassed RMB15 billion
o BERHEATBLIARK
Obtained credit rating from Moody’s at B1
o EEZLLTB+IR
Obtained credit rating from Standard & Poor’s at B+
o BEHELTB+ATAR
Obtained credit rating from Fitch at B+

ErfCtEm (RY)

Brs,
3 Times King City (Changsha) ; b

2011

o KINKEBEAZAER LT NmEDTE - BRNNERERIIED
Successfully listed on the Main Board of Successfully entered Hunan Changsha market,
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited bringing successful products to Changsha

e ARHERWMAREEIEKXNEH o BN (RY)

Contracted sales surpassed RMB10 billion Times King City (Changsha)
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2006 1999

e HEABLMEBAORABEEWEIER B EK R 1999 F - AR EHEXH
Entered the Foshan residential property Times Property was established in 1999 and
development market, focusing on the engaged in real estate business

development of real estate projects
o BRACHAMK(FE1L)
Times King City (Foshan)

BA{CIDE=

TIMES PROPERTY
= &d == KO

BB BRI (FRl)
Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan)

<2004

o AR BE AT MR ENR I REEEAL -
BORFREEEYEIEER MK B R RED
Entered Zhongshan, Qingyuan and Zhuhai residential Positioned itself as “Life Stylist” and started to establish
property development market its own competitive strength

o FREE(HKE)

Times Laguna (Zhuhai)
o FFCHBAE(HIL)

Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan)
o BREMOFE)

Times King City (Qingyuan)
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AWARDS WON BY THE COMPANY

g
ENTERPRISE

KA EFEEMERRE  PEEMEEHBERTEFM
EAFALETF204HEEERFLERATRE10RIR
[2013 B EHMERECEGAER 10 15 -

The Company was awarded “2014 China Top 10 Real Estate Development

> 2006 F A A R h B A& B BT T 3R SR
FEHRRTL - hEZEEMECEBAERT

Enterprise Comprehensive Development” and “2013 China Top 10 Real BEER T%% ;@ B[ B i A 1 % 200 98 (A1
Estate Development Enterprise Comprehensive Development” jointly 10038) J &5 - o
by the China Real Estate Research Association, the China Real Estate In 2006, the Company was awarded “China Real

Industry Association and the China Real Estate Evaluation Center. Estate Enterprise Top 200 (Among Top 100)" by
the Urban Development and Environment Research

Center of the Chinese Academy of Social Science,
China National Real Estate Enterprise Association
and China Real Estate Entrepreneur Association.

% HERRILERERAR
& # -+ £(2002-2011)

e 12FAQFEHE+E O
(2002 % 22011 F )& GAIC
BYRRATEREERE 2009 F AR AR Mt B2 Q
XTI WEREBHEFEAL - FELH
2013FFRARFARBEFAE - FEEL < In 2012, the Company was FHECEBAERTELER G
EXxpeLhREEmERThLEF20135 awarded Guangdong Province EEFINREEMEMNE200%
BE AN LE50%(E35%) B - Trustworthy Enterprise for ten v ( o .
| “ - consecutive years (2002-2011) BIRE(E255) IR
n 2013, the Company was awarded “2013 China by GAIC In 2009, the Company was awarded
Top 50 Real Estate Developers” (Rank No. 35) jointly v : “China Real Estate Enterprise Top
by the China Real Estate Research Association, the 200" (Rank No. 25) by the Urban
China Real Estate Industry Association and the China Development and Environment
Real Estate Evaluation Center. Research Center of the Chinese

Academy of Social Science, China
National Real Estate Enterprise
Association and China Real Estate
Entrepreneur Association.
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PROJECTS
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Times Bund

BRMNEEFEFEMERRS  PEFHEXHENHEEME
BIFFR O T2013 R BElE AR EARIER 1058 1B -
Times Bund received the honour of “2013 China Real Estate
Development Enterprise Classic Project Top 10” from the China Real
Estate Research Association, the China Real Estate Industry Association

< K o BRE(RIL)

Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan)

2011 F B o ARAE (P L) BREREI 2R
BIERAEEFI ZS——FERBHB BRI
REEBRERER R |RE -

In 2011, Times Mont Blanc (Zhongshan) received
the honour of “2011 Excellence Prize for Overall
Refined Decorations in the Sophisticated Science

& Technology Awards” from the National Office for
Science & Technology Awards.

and the China Real Estate Evaluation Center.

> BN

Times Bund

2013 FERFRINEEME 3 KEIPR 8278 + &
E[2013 FEEAM R KIEG RS
#% | « 414 Hospitality Design 2013 & &t
RN FXERERFTAEFEHEEH
R KREMNEZEEEMHEE -

In 2013, Times Bund received 3 international
awards, including “2013 Best Clubhouse
Design in Asia Pacific Region”, a design award
from New York Hospitality Design 2013 and
“Winner for the Best of Design Excellence”
from London FX International Design Award,
becoming a benchmarking mansion in
Guangzhou.

RS (EM)
Ocean Times (Guangzhou)
RREE(EMN) REREM2013FHBEHA
KREBEERIERE [2013FEM S
FRERE] [ERETEMEFEFER
BEEME] -

Ocean Times (Guangzhou) was awarded as “2013 China Property with Most
Investment Value in Guangzhou”, “2013 Guangzhou Highly Recommended
House Type Design” and “Annual Property with Investment Value” by the Fifth
China Real Estate Annual Meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Lin Rupeng
(Resigned on 21 March 2014)
Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho
(Appointed on 21 March 2014)
Mr. Wong Wai Man

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Mei Jing

(Resigned on 21 February 2014)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

(Appointed on 21 February 2014)
Ms. Lai Siu Kuen

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Li Qiang
Ms. Mei Jing

(Resigned on 21 February 2014)
Mr. Chan Wai Kin

(Appointed on 21 February 2014)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Wai Man (Chairman)
Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Lin Rupeng
(Resigned on 21 March 2014)
Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho
(Appointed on 21 March 2014)
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EMMEE

Clifton House
75 Fort Street
P.0. Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

hEE A RitHE

FEEXIDE
FE

BERAE

BN

HEE 410-412 5

B X b EE FP 0 36-38 18

FEEEXTEERME

&5
38

BEES B

ey TR
4718 4706-4707 =

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Sun Hui (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
Mr. Wong Wai Man

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Sun Hui
Mr. Lin Rupeng
(Resigned on 21 March 2014)
Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho
(Appointed on 21 March 2014)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clifton House
75 Fort Street
P.0. Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

36-38/F, Times Property Center
410-412 Dongfeng Road
Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG
Suites 4706-4707, 47/F
Two Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BRipBFRRELEE PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd. Appleby Trust (Cayman) Ltd.

Clifton House
75 Fort Street
P.0. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman lIslands

FEREFELE

ERPABLFELABERAA

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

P.0. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BB Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
B Hopewell Centre

ERFKNER 183% 183 Queen’s Road East

A FIH L Wanchai

17181712-1716 Hong Kong

EEER LEGAL ADVISERS
EREBREBEE As to Hong Kong and U.S. law:
RS ERAT Sidley Austin

BB Level 39, Two International Finance Center
IR 8 Finance Street

& mAT 8k Central

FERE RO ZHI3918 Hong Kong

BEPBEEE As to PRC law:
BEEMEEA Commerce & Finance Law Offices
s 6F, NCI Tower

Sl A12 Jianguomenwai Avenue
25 & Chaoyang District
EEPIINKRER 125 Beijing

MERBAEGCE China

ERMEREEE . As to Cayman Islands law:
Appleby Appleby

BB 2206-19 Jardine House

IR 1 Connaught Place

R4 E S — 5% Central

&M A E 2206-19 = Hong Kong
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RERNE2212
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1233

SRR

http://www.timesgroup.cn
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Haitong International Capital Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

ERNST & YOUNG

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1233

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.timesgroup.cn

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Agricultural Bank of China
China Construction Bank
Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT

SR EE
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung

. ETEABRNESET
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HEREZFEREERE  BEFRPER

37.8% ° FERA KIgEMAREEI.8ET BRLFER
39% o

=S Al =l Dear Shareholders,

TANERERAEBEE(EES(ES On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),

lMAREAEEBE_T—NUF+ A4 | am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year
“T+—BILFENEFEE - ended 31 December 2014.

— #E 1. PERFORMANCE
HE_Z—NUF+_A=+—HLEFE K For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded revenue

=L ,\fﬁ S ARKI04108 8T £E of RMB10,419 million, profit for the year amounted to RMB1,354
B ABARE1II4EEL  AREHEBARE million, earnings attributable to owners of the Company as high as
MBRNZEARKELI2IORE L BRELAAR RMB1,279 million and basic earnings per share of RMB74 cents. The
BRARETIAD EZGRBZRERAKRES Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB14.34
BAR®E 14340 c RZZ—WOF - AEEH cents per share. During 2014, the Group achieved contracted sales of
ERAREERARKI2EL  KREFHEE RMB15.2 billion, representing an increase of 37.8% over last year.
37.8% °
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Facing restructuring of the industry, the Group achieved
rapid growth of both of its salescand profit. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded contracted
sales of RMB15.2 billion, exceeding its annual sales

target and representing a year-on-year growth of 37.8%.

In addition, profit for the year significantly increased by
RMB380 million, representing an increase of 39% over the

last year.

- CE-NEOHE
ZENERFRRBLCESANER Bl
ERBEBHAEN—F  TEREITEZRATR
FAEAETETATSEXTFHHBEN—F - &£
E—FHF BAZEMERARR BEXREE
BEBWHEE  STOBT  BEOLHE -
BMETSAMEMNELE -

ETXRABNERT  ASEERHEERRT
RERER -HE—T—NMF+_A=+—HL
FE AEEERARAEHESHRAREARE
15287 BEXKEFAREERR  BE
FRHERI7.8% - FREGEHMABEMARE
3.8 M EFIER39% °

2. REVIEW OF YEAR 2014

Year 2014 marked the entering into a new norm of China’s marco
economy and adjustment of the cyclical fluctuations of the property
market. For the property market of China, it was also a year of
transitioning from central administration to a more market oriented
operation. In the past year, despite of a relatively weak market
sentiment across the country, the Group managed to achieve
satisfactory results due to its clearly-defined strategy, efficient
execution of the strategy and proactive marketing efforts.

Facing restructuring of the industry, the Group achieved rapid growth
in sales and profit. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
recorded contracted sales of RMB15.2 billion, overfulfilling its annual
sales target and representing a year-on-year growth of 37.8%. In
addition, profit for the year significantly increased by RMB380 million,
representing an increase of 39% over the last year.

2014 FEH/E Annual Report 2014 %
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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98.6% - ARBE—RMH - EMOEERR
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ErEEIE  ARELZERERGNR
T BREZSEBRFARME  WHERH
BR - —AR%E - SEARARNRE - SHM
ERGENLHHEEEERIFNER - AKH
EBEN—FE BREEENRENK=ZAK
FEENRE - SRR EMN - BILEFR=A
REZERT - FR AEEASHKBAIEL
o BRIEEEBESLIBEFTK

gEoh » AEBERRTET T HEEMNAISER
2T REEBEAOMBERE  W(EHEIE
FTehETRERE  E—PUESEBLEREMN
Moo —E—F - AEBBBETELEAZER
AMBES  EEEIESNEEET - ME
REMAERBTASEEEERNARCNES S
B EBBMNRAEEXBAERTBNGE
R -BEZZ—NF+A=+—H ' &x&%
BEREHET BIRITE R R EMERGEETE
FITERRHEMEREIY T —=FMN27%
(% 16.6% °

The Group adhered to its strategy of deepening its foothold in the
key cities in the Pearl River Delta such as Guangzhou, Foshan and
Zhuhai. The sales in respect of the Pearl River Delta Metropolitan
Area accounted for 98.6% of total sales of the Group. The sales in
respect of the tier-one city, Guangzhou increased by 56.1% year-on-
year, accounting for 51.7% of the total sales of the Group.

The Group actively expanded its land reserve through various
means, including participation in government’s land auctions, city
redevelopment projects, greenfield development projects, cooperation
with other parties and acquisition of target companies, which laid a
solid foundation for obtaining sufficient supply of land. During the last
year, the Group adhered to our prudent strategy of investing in the
economically developed cities in the Pearl River Delta region such as
Guangzhou and Foshan. During the year, the Group acquired a total
of 9 land parcels of a planned gross floor area (“GFA”) of 1.1 million
square meters.

Meanwhile, the Group continued its prudent financial strategy
while ensuring sufficient land reserve and units available for sale.
It also expanded its financing channels by leveraging on overseas
platforms, which helped improve our debt structure. In 2014, the
Group raised approximately USD600 million by issuance of senior
notes and convertible bonds. Such expansion of financing channels
helped guarantee the provision of sufficient funds for the Group and
therefore was favorable to our continuous growth of business size and
profitability. As of 31 December 2014, the proportion of the Group’s
short-term interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings out of
total interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings decreased to
16.6% from 27% in 2013.

00 B R IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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3. OUTLOOK FOR YEAR 2015

At the end of 2014, with the central government’s stabilizing
economic measures stepping up and the property market picking
up, the outlook is positive for the Group’s overall performance in
2015. Looking forward into 2015, the growth of China economy will
remain stable. It is expected that with improving credit and market
sentiments, the real estate market will present a more favorable
growth environment in 2015.

Technological innovations will bring changes to all industries in the
future. The development of big data, mobile internet and smart
technology will change our lives fundamentally in the future. | strongly
believe that brand new development opportunities lie ahead of the
real estate industry. In 2015, the Group will continue to adhere to the
strategies of focusing on selected regions, residential business and
customers with robust demands and improvement-oriented demands,
and to achieve sustainable growth in size in such way with high
turnover rate and high sell-through rate. In addition, the Group will
actively take part in the redevelopment of the cities in the Pearl River
Delta region in a bid to obtain quality land reserve. The Group will also
put more efforts to enhance our community services. In particular,
we will adopt online and offline operation modes to provide better and
more convenient services to the purchasers of our projects.

4. ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Year 2014 marked the 15th anniversary of the establishment of our
Group. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend our gratitude to the purchasers of our projects, all employees,
business partners and investors of Times Property for their support
and trust over the past 15 years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Looking ahead, Times Property will adhere to its mission of
“empowering more people to live with a lifestyle they are seeking
for” and continue to pursue its operational philosophy of “surprising
our customers with quality and moving our customers with our
services”. Meanwhile, we will strive to create the highest value for
our shareholders and provide better products and services to the
purchasers of our projects.

Shum Chiu Hung
Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

6 February 2015

Q@ B R IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



BB E

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+-ZA=+t—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

[t 5 —E-mEF —T—=F =)
Note 2014 2013 Change
ERHE Contracted sales
ERBEESHE Contracted sales (RMB million)

(ANREBERT) 15,234 11,056 37.8%
EREEEE®ME *(FFHK) Contracted GFA* (sq.m.) 1,396,333 1,010,371 38.2%
BREEFIHEE - Contracted ASP** (RMB/sg.m.)

(ARBTLT/FFHK) 10,910 10,942 (0.3%)
TEHKER Selected financial information
EHRABRAAREAEIL) Recognised revenue (RMB million) 10,418.9 9,694.7 75%
EFM(ARBEET) Gross profit (RMB million) 3,186.3 2,340.0 36.2%
Hi A 7] Profit for the period

— Bk ERES — Including non-controlling interests

(ANREBETT) (RMB million) 1,353.7 9739 39%

S VNSIE Y- DN 3 — Attributable to owners of

(AREBET) the Company (RMB million) 1,279.0 987.0 29.6%

2 F F) Core net profit 1 1,310.3 942 4 39%

R-Z—MF RZE—= ¢

+=—BA=+—-H +ZA=+—

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2014 2013

Bt &% ARMEETT AR BHET

Notes RMB million RMB million

BERR Total assets 33,084.6 24.839.8

BfEMEE Total liabilities 27,367.5 20,831.4

Re MRITHEH Cash and bank balances 2 5,417.6 3,667.6
FFERITERR Total interest-bearing bank loans

H fth {8 SR 4258 and other borrowings 3 10,791.4 7,402.5

—mE —current 1,786.3 1,977.4

—3ER B — non-current 9,005.1 5,425.1
HEm AR Total equity 5,717.1 4,008.4
RAGEE AEEER Equity attributable to

owners of the Company 5,438.2 3,994.2
* BEEE * Gross floor area
o EHERE e Average selling price

2014 FE R Annual Report 2014 00
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

it & —E-NF —E—=F
Note 2014 2013
FTEBKLEE Selected financial ratios
EF= Gross profit margin 30.6% 24.1%
el Net profit margin 13.0% 10.0%
120 F) & Core net profit margin 4 12.6% 9.7%
FREREF Basic earnings per share,
AR RMB cents 74 75
R=ZF—NF RZE—=%F
+=A=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
As at As at
bt & 31 December 31 December
Note 2014 2013
Bt & Current ratio 1.7 15
BELE Gearing ratio 5 94.0% 93.2%
FTEEEHE Selected operating data
FRTMGEE Land bank (GFA, sq.m.),
(BEEE, FIK) at end of the year
—#Et ~ Total 9,431,280 8,165,552
—JE1E — Attributable 9,381,299 8,089,293
Bifat - Notes:
1. BOSENBEERHERNE  TaEREMENALEBE 1. Core net profit represents profit after tax excluding changes in fair value of
HE M AEEERIEN S E o investment properties and the impact of the related deferred tax.
2. WE RIBITESPDESERHBTEALE SRR SEE 2. Cash and bank balances include restricted bank deposits and cash and cash
) o equivalents.
3. HERTERNEMERAEBIEELEEZRE - 3. Total interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings includes senior notes.
4. BOERERTYBIERAOEN BB A D R A &5t 4. Core net profit margin is calculated based on core net profit over total recognised
i revenue.
5. BELEDNRESEEANEENE EFE B RET 5. Gearing ratio is calculated by the Group’s net debts (total interesting-bearing bank
BERREMERINBIEG RIRTTER) BEFEE - loans and other borrowings, net of cash and bank balances) over net assets at the

end of each year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

E 400

REZE_Z—NEF+_A=+—RILFE"
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded a total
revenue of RMB10,418.9 million, representing an increase of 7.5%
when compared with that of the year ended 31 December 2013.
Profit for the year amounted to RMB1,353.7 million, representing
an increase of 39% when compared with 2013. The net profit for
the year ended 31 December 2014, excluding change in fair value
of investment properties and the impact of the related deferred tax,
increased to RMB1,310.3 million, representing an increase of 39%
when compared with that of year 2013. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to RMB1,279.0 million, representing an
increase of 29.6% as compared to that in 2013. Basic earnings per
share were RMB74 cents (2013: RMB75 cents).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB14.34 cents per share.

Property Development

The Group has established an extensive foothold in Guangdong
Province and brought successful product to Changsha of Hunan
Province. During year 2014, the Group had in total 27 major projects
on various stages, including 26 projects in major cities of Guangdong
Province, namely, Guangzhou, Foshan, Zhongshan, Zhuhai and
Qingyuan, and 1 project in Changsha, Hunan Province. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, although there were obvious signs
showing the real estate market of China had entered into a phase of
correction with structural imbalance of demand and supply and tighter
bank liquidity, with projects situated in prime locations delivered with
property quality and monitored by experienced management team,
the Group still managed to accomplish expected contracted sales
for the year. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's
contracted sales”’ amounted to approximately RMB15.2 billion with
total GFA of approximately 1,396,333 sq.m.. The Group focuses in
its projects on peripheral facilities, seeking to enhance customers’
experience in art and to fulfill needs of the middle to upper class
households. The table below illustrates the contracted sales achieved
by the Group by region for the year ended 31 December 2014:

Note 1: Contracted sales is summarised based on sale and purchase agreements and
purchase confirmation agreements.
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DISTRIBUTION OF
LAND RESERVES

HEEMEE
Total GFA of

|
&Y (o)
Changsha BEES K

Million sg.m.

MEdE

Hunan Province

BE
Qingyuan ©
o
REE
1L (o) Guangdong
Foshan Province

o

Zhuhai
10%
S
B HE 20 Lt EE

(BEMER)

Land Reserves By City (GFA)
. . JBiR Qingyuan
17% 37%  mm £ Changsha
mm #1L Foshan
K& Zhuhai

= E M Guangzhou
mm 1l Zhongshan
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AHEHE & &l aE B
HEHE HEEE® HEER HESE HESE

Available for
sale project Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
& Region numbers sales area sales area sales amount sales amount
(AR®
(FFHK) H&ET)
(sq.m.) (%) (RMB million) (%)
&I Guangzhou 9 473,175 34 7,850.7 52
#510 Foshan 5 334,041 24 2,737.6 18
b 9! Zhuhai 5 245,574 18 2,415.5 16
H Zhongshan 3 196,429 14 1,414.7 9
B IR Qingyuan 1 112,109 8 598.0 4
=D Changsha 1 35,005 2 217.6 1
ot Total 24 1,396,333 100 15,234.1 100

B2 Z—HF+_-_A=+—BHItFE - A The total targeted contracted sales is anticipated to be approximately
ERBEREENRARKE 165ET - RMB16.5 billion for the year ending 31 December 2015.

2014 FE R Annual Report 2014 00



BEEWE D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T i fE S Land Reserves

HE_Z—NWF+-_A=+—80 "  EMWE=% As of 31 December 2014, we had completed projects with a total GFA
THERAREEEES AN TBEEFET AR of approximately 0.7 million sq.m. and projects under development
FMEHRIEE RIFEARRAENIEE A2EME and projects for future development with a total GFA of approximately
H8T7TEEFEFAK - 8.7 million sq.m..

TREEHE_ZT—NWF+-_A=+—HHL The following table sets forth the GFA breakdown of our land reserves
HEE(ERTRMAERER)IZTEREE K by planned use under various stages of development as of 31

REMMERAMA December 2014:
MEPR
AHHE IFERRBEAR
BEER EEEE
GFA Under
Development
and Held
Saleable For Future
srEA® Planned Use GFA Development
(‘FA2K) (‘FF7K)
(sg.m.) (sg.m.)
= Residential 59,812 7,270,806
[EES Commercial 67,900 315,768
Hfth Others® 568,730 1,148,264
BEEEE Total GFA 696,442 8,734,838
ERARZERmE? Total attributable GFA® 683,824 8,697,475
Fifet Notes:
(1) [Efth | EBI5EEERAHERERE (1) “Others” mainly represents car park and saleable ancillary facilities.
(2) [EhaREmE e sREAESEEHBEEE+TNE 2) “Total attributable GFA” comprises the portion of the total GFA that is attributable
i - MEBAEEEEOEEEmERS to the Group, based on the Group’s effective interest in the relevant project.

Q@ B R E IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



MEBBEEAHES Portfolio of Property Development Projects
TRODBEZZE—NF+_A=1T—HBHME The table below is a summary of the portfolio of property development

HEIEEHGNBEER D - projects as of 31 December 2014,
[ & EELVE S E
Under development/
Completed future development
L i st 2
EH HEER BHARIAH BEEE BEEBEPY BEERY BREERY BEEEC HE FARRRC
Actual/Expected
completion Ownership
Project Project type dates Site area  GFA for sale®® Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® Pre-sold interest®
(FAK) (FFHHK) (FFHHK) (FFHK) (FFHK) (FHK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
L3
Guangzhou
S TEREE —T-=Fz% 92,123 27,787 77,687 31,273 - 5,169 9
Times Bund Residential and —E-RfF
commercial 2013-2015
i FEREE —T——%% 354,156 15,484 21,597 217,8% 52,985 136,663 100
Ocean Times Residential and —ZT-HF
commercial 2011-2015
B o AN FEREE —E-|mE 30,965 6,691 31,853 - - - 70
Times Peanut II Residential and 2014
commercial
R (EM) TEREE —T-NERE 60,238 932 58,182 98,725 - 98,725 100
Times King City (Guangzhou) Residential and “T-hfF
commercial 2014-2015
EMAAEE (REMER) T - 34,325 - - - - - 51

Guangzhou Tianhe Project  Industrial®
(Pige Factory Project)

EMKHEEE T - 45579 - - - - - 70
(BHABHER) Industrial®

Guangzhou Tiansi Project
(Qingchu Shiliu Gang Project)

BMAEHERIER RERBE —T-RF 17,480 - - 59,432 14,668 61,687 50
Guangzhou Wuyang Apartment and 2015
Paint Factory Project commercial
HREE(EM) FEREE —Z-REE 45593 - - 139,519 48,182 61,630 100
Times Cloud Atlas Residential and T+t
(Guangzhou) commercial 2016-2017
Bl
Foshan
IR () TEREE —T-R%% 125,782 - - 320,318 83,952 41,228 100
Times King City (Shunde) Residential and —T+F
commercial 2016-2017
B 28 TEREE —2-TE% 505,776 3,597 106,772 428,045 89,151 166,819 100
Times City Phase I to VI Residential and T+ F
commercial 2010-2017
BT EERIER FEREE ZERF 12,860 - - 32,686 8,641 - 100
(BRELH) Residential and 2016
Foshan Stainless Steel commercial
Factory Project

(phase VII of Times City)
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BRI EELVES SE
Under development/
Completed future development
BB/ #"E Hit Hitr
5E BERER BRI RE BEER BEERPY BEERY BEERY BEEREC HE FARRERC
Actual/Expected
completion Ownership
Project Project type dates Site area  GFA for sale®® Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® Pre-sold interest®
(FHK) (FFHHK) (FFHHK) (FFHK) (FFHK) (FHK)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)
RREE (W) FEREE —T-WEE 37,99 - - 202,595 54,332 107,031 100
Times Cloud Atlas (Foshan)  Residential and ZE-ARF
commercial 2014-2015
HILEEER FEREE —T-hfF 34,308 - - 105,716 34,536 88,236 100
Foshan Fengrui Project Residential and 2015
commercial
BILEHEE FEREE ZE-REFZE 20,464 - - 65,383 22,151 - 100
Foshan Denghu Project Residential and —E—+F
commercial 2016-2017
B o FEE(FBIL) TEREE —T-R5E 17,148 - - 44,542 10929 - 100
Times Peanut (Foshan) Residential and —E—+F
commercial 2016-2017
Ll
Zhongshan
B (i) FEREE —T-=FZ% 110,074 40,253 79,730 140,941 19,331 134,413 100
Times King City (Zhongshan)  Residential and —E-RF
commercial 2013-2015
FLAKIER FEREE —Z-RF 46,667 - - 118,920 28,119 38,142 100
(RREE(FL)) Residential and 2015
Zhongshan Shigi Project commercial
(Times Cloud Atlas
(Zhongshan))
b9/
Zhuhai
KESHER FEREE —2-=F% 51,003 189 15,065 - - - 100
(B o L#/GMmER) Residential and ZE-EF
Zhuhai Jingrun Project commercial 2013-2014
(phase 4 of Times Eolia City)
WETEHER FEREE —Z-RF 81,393 - - 203,652 48,905 147,277 100
(BB (RE)) Residential and 2015
Zhuhai Pingsha Project commercial
(Times Harbor (Zhuhai))
WEREEE FEREE ZZ-RHF 52,950 - - 140,406 30,950 128,576 100
(B BE (%) —H)  Residential and 2015
Zhuhai Guoji Project (phase 1 commercial
of Times King City (Zhuhai))
WEDERR (BREM ETREXE —E-REFE 198,204 - - 399,114 62,419 48,255 100
(%8)= =8) Residential and —T—+tF
Zhuhai Baijiao Project commercial 2016-2017
(phase 2 and 3 of
Times King City (Zhuhai))
WERENEE FEREE —Z-RFE 119,169 - - 301,655 64,373 21,440 100
(BB%E(KE)) Residential and ZEtF
Zhuhai Friendship commercial 2016-2017
River Project
(The Shore (Zhuhai))
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BRI EEGYE T E
Under development/
Completed future development
1 V4 #HE Hitr Hitr
HE BERER BRI HE BEAE EBEEEOY BEERY BEERO EBEEEEC BE FAEREZR®
Actual/Expected
completion Ownership
Project Project type dates Site area  GFA for sale®“® Other GFA® GFA®  Other GFA® Pre-sold interest®
(FAR) (FHK) (FHK) (FFHRK) (FAR) (FAR)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (%)

BE

Qingyuan

BRER(EER) FEREE —T-NFE 204,458 7,785 36,667 906,453 199,320 97,399 100

Times King City (Qingyuan)  Residential and —E-N\F

commercial 2014-2018
BRIEHER) FEREE e 70,649 - - 195,869 47536 - 100
(BREHRER) Residential and Pending
Times Garden (Qingyuan) commercial
(Qingyuan Xilong Project)
HEAKER FEREE HE 551,087 - - 1,090,746 43,896 - 100
Fogang Shilian Project Residential and Pending
commercial
BRETCHER FEREE E 477,020 - - 943,010 - - 100
Fogang Huanghua Lake Residential and Pending
Project commercial

Changsha

BRER(RD) FEREE —E-=FZ% 460,138 15,580 39,172 1,399,680 183,888 64,752 100

Times King City (Changsha)  Residential and —ToRF

commercial 2013-2020

Hit - 13,211 98,208 - - - -

Others

@t 3,857,605 131,509 564,933 7,586,574 1,148,264 1,447,442

Total

EEEEZEEE® 3,820,236 129,224 554,600 7,556,545 1,140,930

Total attributable GFA®

B Notes:

(1) EERPE (W ASEEDEREB L ERE - BRK (1) The table above includes properties for which (i) the Group has obtained
RN E BT ERNYE - ok (i) ANEE B SRR the relevant land use rights certificate(s), but have not obtained the requisite
BRI T H B AR - B & RER L E AER construction permits or (i) the Group has signed a land grant contract with
W - BEREmMBERAIEEREMBE 2 ETHENE the relevant government authority, but have not obtained the land use rights
BEEXHRHANET  fINEEMBEEE - 2% certificate(s). The figures for total and saleable GFA are based on figures provided
TIRREIFFAFE  HEFAE  BERAMBEFFAIE in the relevant governmental documents, such as the property ownership
S ERE o ARHERIDERBRMMARE LR certificates, the construction work planning permits, the pre-sale permits,

the construction land planning permits or the land use rights certificate. The
categories of information are based on our internal records.

(2) BB HEREAMBEDRED - BEMEL 2) Certain completed projects have no GFA available for sale by the Group as all
At EFTERTHEBSAAMAEE N EREESE - saleable GFA have been sold, pre-sold or rented out.

(3) [EZEmBE | T2 REEESEMEERE (3) “Other GFA” mainly comprises car parks and ancillary facilities.

(4) [t EREmME | R FHEPEEMBREERKMAR (4) “GFA for sale” and “GFA under developmart and GFA held for future
HEEMEE | VB AEE MR EEMEET - development” are derived from the Group’s internal records and estimates.

(5) [FrEEEEZD | DERAEEEREE ANERRAE (5) “Ownership interest” is based on the Group’s effective ownership interest in the

S -

respective project companies.

2014 £ E 3R & Annual Report 2014 @0



BERE W R D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(6) BMEERFHEMNREGEENLIBABRTERS
HREEREEMSE -

(7) BRAEERFHEMRAAE N LA SRR TERE
BLRAEEREERSE -

(8) [EEREEEE 2 RERMEEBEEFNER
R MARFIEE N ERERRLD o

RoZ-ME+=A=+—8 KEE@RLH
BENRILEET S K AEERARH
BAEAR=ERENERAS - TERSI
72 S T B T B 4 e 4
B

®) We are in the process of converting the land use for Guangzhou Tianhe Project
from industrial use to residential and commercial use.

(7) We are in the process of converting the land use for Guangzhou Tiansi Project
from industrial use to residential and commercial use.

(8) “Total attributable GFA” comprises the portion of the total GFA that is attributable
to us, based on our effective interests in the relevant project.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total land reserves of
approximately 9.43 million sg.m., which the Group believes will be
sufficient to support the Group’s development need in the next three
to five years. The table below set forth detailed information of land
reserves in major cities the Group entered into:

TG R AR
& SRR
Unit
ih = Region Reserves cost/sq.m.
(FI77K)
(sq.m.)
E M Guangzhou 949,733 2,549
#1L Foshan 1,646,376 1,465
Ao Zhongshan 431,768 1,372
b2 Qi Zhuhai 1,293,800 1,649
B Qingyuan 3,471,283 331
&L Changsha 1,638,320 1,076
et Total 9,431,280 1,305
FRibEWE Acquisitions of Land Parcels during the year

AEERZEREEBMRLILHEE  BFES
HEMAARAE  —ESEREAe - —RFA% -
BiF - AREBREIKE -

BHE-_T-MOF+-_A=+—HIEFE &
BREMN - LB ERBANBR - L
RABEORARK 286968 ¥
KEHLHRADREF I RKARKE2,624.7
T ARBRERSEATRERNEREZ
EHEELRA&LR1,093,293F 75K -

Q@ B R E IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The Group continued to expand its land reserves through various
channels, including participations in public land auctions, urban
redevelopment projects, primary development, cooperation, and
through acquisition of project companies.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group acquired nine
parcels of land in Guangzhou, Foshan and Qingyuan, the aggregating
land acquisition costs amounted to approximately RMB2,869.6
million, the average land acquisition cost per sq.m. was approximately
RMB2,624.7 per sq.m.. The planned GFA at maximum allowed plot
ratios attributable to the Group aggregated would be approximately
1,093,293 sq.m..



BEARS

ATBEREN
Wi A 6 i 2 [y WEREE EEEERE T AR
Attributable
Attributable GFA per maximum
Month of acquisition Location interest Site area  allowed plot ratio Land cost
FHAK FHR (AREBET)
(%) sq.m. sq.m. (RMB in million)
—T-ME—H G 100 15,982 95,894 632.8
January 2014 Foshan
—T-MmF_A p 100 70,649 197,817 197.0
February 2014 Qingyuan
—“T-FEMA B 100 32,156 80,390 154.4
April 2014 Foshan
“T—-mFEMA G 100 32,060 80,151 153.9
April 2014 Foshan
—“ET-mFMA i 100 61,566 153,914 2955
April 2014 Foshan
—“T-FEMA BE 100 84,167 244,086 198.0
April 2014 Qingyuan
—Z-WFRA M 100 45,593 136,779 522.5
June 2014 Guangzhou
—ZT-MFNA il 100 17,148 42,870 2475
August 2014 Foshan
TE-NE+—A B 100 20,464 61,392 468.0
November 2014 Foshan
379,785 1,093,293 2,869.6
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Properties for Leasing and Sub-leasing

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held a GFA of approximately
46,137 sq.m. and 249 car parking spaces at Times Property Center
for rental purposes and the GFA for Guangzhou Zhide Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. (the “Guangzhou Zhide") and its subsidiary for
sub-leasing purposes was approximately 273,042 sq.m.. For the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s rental income amounted to
RMB196.5 million, contributing to 1.9% of the total turnover.

Property Management Services

Property management fee income represents revenue generated
from property management services provided in relation to delivered
properties. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
provided property management services for 30 project phases.
Our revenue from property management services increased from
RMB97.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB127.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. This increase was
primarily due to the increase in the number of project phases that we
managed with the delivery of the properties we made in year 2014.

OUTLOOK

The Central Government and local governments cautiously monitored
the overall supply and demand of property market with reduced
administrative intervention and embraced a market-oriented policy
approach. The Group still remains optimistic about the prospect of
the property market in China and believes the customer demand will
remain stable. Deepening of the urbanization policy will also stimulate
the market demand. In the future, the Group aims to maximise return
for the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) through
competitive costing, accumulation of land reserves in areas with high
growth potential, strengthening our “Life Stylist” positioning to bring
modern and artistic lifestyles to middle to upper class households.

Q@ B R E IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue is primarily generated from property
development, property leasing and sub-leasing and property
management services, which contributed about 96.9%, 1.9% and
1.2% respectively of the revenue of year 2014. The Group’s revenue
increased by RMB724.2 million, or 7.5%, to RMB10,418.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2014 from RMB9,694.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013. This increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in revenue from the sale of properties.

The table below sets forth our revenue by operating segments for the
years indicated:

—E—mF —E—=%F

2014 2013

AR % AR

BEET B&ET

RMB RMB
in millions (%)  in millions (%)
LES RPN Sale of properties 10,094.5 96.9 9,443.3 97.4
HEWKA Rental income 196.5 1.9 154.4 1.6
MEEEBWRA Management fee income 127.9 1.2 97.0 1.0
10,418.9 100.0 9,694.7 100.0

MERRE Property development

AEBREMEHENRABREE=_F—=
F+ZA=Z+—HIEFEMARK 44338
EnxlEnzgzs_—_Z—NOMF+=-_A=+—H
FEFEMARKI0004BET  BIMAR
MEEl2EBETH6.9%  WWIEMETBEAR
BEXNBREEARETFHEERBEE - —=F
+-—A=+—HIEFEHARKES 1967T & #
EHEZZ—"NF+-A=1+—HLEFEH
ARB12,06170 - R-ZE—NFEARNEER
EREAMANMEEE FZRERRING
(BM) - BRmEEEM) KR o« BEENE
M) R RRARE (R IL) R e 1LH
(TS e -

The Group’s revenue from sales of properties increased by RMB651.2
million, or 6.9%, to RMB10,094.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from RMB9,443.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. This increase was primarily due to an increase in
the ASP per delivered GFA from approximately RMB8,196 for the
year ended 31 December 2013 to approximately RMB12,061 for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The projects that contributed
substantially to the Group’s revenue for 2014 mainly include Times
Bund (Guangzhou), Ocean Times (Guangzhou), Times Peanut Il
(Guangzhou), Times City, Times King City (Zhongshan) and Times
Eolia City (Zhuhai) Phase IV.
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Property leasing and sub-leasing

The Group’s gross rental income increased by RMB42.1 million, or
27.3%, to RMB196.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
from RMB154.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily due to the increase in the occupancy rate of
Phase Il of International Unit (BIFRE{z) during the year.

Property management services

The Group’s revenue from property management services increased
by RMB30.9 million, or 31.9%, to RMB127.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 from RMB97.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. This increase was primarily due to the increase
in the number of project phases that we managed with the delivery of
the properties we made in year 2014.
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Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales decreased by RMB122.1 million, or 1.7%,
to RMB7,232.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 from
RMB7,354.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
decrease was primarily attributable to decrease in the total GFA of
properties delivered and offset by the increase in cost of properties
delivered by unit. The table below sets forth a breakdown of our cost
of sale for the years indicated:

BE+-A=t-RLFE

Year ended 31 December

—E-DmF —E-=F%
2014 2013
(AR¥TFT) (AREFT)
(RMB in (RMB in
thousands) (%) thousands) (%)
B EMERAE Cost of properties sold
U BB B AR Land acquisition costs 1,403,215 19.4 1,339,222 182
RAERKA Construction costs 5,069,512 70.1 5,468,332 74.4
ERCRERAR Capitalised finance costs 534,140 7.3 392,421 5.3
N+ Subtotal 7,006,867 96.8 7,199,975 97.9
RIBERE GFA delivered 836,975 1,152,208
F K 7oK
sq.m. sg.m.
RS MEMEER Direct operating expenses
HERBEERT(BESHER  (including repairs and
REHX) maintenance) arising from
rental-earning properties 105,300 1.5 73,596 1.0
REMEERRBHOKAR Cost of property management
services provided 120,472 1.7 81,140 1.1
Bt Total 7,232,639 100.0 7,354,711 100.0
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Gross profit

As a result of above, the Group’s gross profit increased by RMB846.3
million, or 36.2%, to RMB3,186.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from RMB2,340.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
gross profit margin increased to 30.6% from 24.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2013. This increase was primarily due to the
fact that projects with higher gross profit margin, such as Ocean
Times (Guangzhou), Times Peanut Il (Guangzhou), Times King City
(Guangzhou), Times King City (Zhongshan) and Times Bund, took
up a larger proportion of our total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2014 as compared to that of 2013.

Other income and gains

The Group had other income and gains of RMB104.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2014, when compared with that
of RMB78.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily due to the increase in bank interest income,
fair value gains on investment properties, and gain on early repayment
of debts to independent investors in year 2014 compared with that of
year 2013.

Selling and marketing costs

The Group's selling and marketing costs increased by RMB72.3
million, or 17.6%, to RMB483.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from RMB411.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. This increase was attributable to higher advertising,
staff and other promotional costs incurred in our pre-sale activities
for a larger number of our projects and sales commission paid during
the year 2014. The selling and marketing costs per contracted sales
decreased to 3.2% for the year ended 31 December 2014 from 3.7%
for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by RMB18.7 million,
or 6.6%, to RMB304.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
from RMB285.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily due to the expansion of business in year 2014
and the increase in total number of staffs. The Group also incurred
legal and professional fee in 2014 in relation to our issuance of
convertible bonds and senior notes.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased by RMB24.0 million, or
145.4%, to RMB40.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2014 from RMB16.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.
This increase was primarily due to the fair value loss on derivative
component of the convertible bonds issued by the Group in year 2014
and the increase of donation and sponsorship made by the Group
during year 2014 as compared to 2013.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by RMB144.3 million, or
164.5%, to RMB232.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
from RMB87.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily due to the increase in the financing needs
in 2014 in relation to the Group’s expanding property development
activities.

Share of profits and losses of associates

The Group's share of profits and losses of associates increased to
RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 from RMB2.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase was
arisen from the share of profit of Guangzhou Baiyun Heyintaifu Micro-
credit Co. Ltd., an associate in which the Group has a 20% equity
interest.

2014 FE R Annual Report 2014 @Q



BERE W R D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fri8BiBE <
AEEHNMSHRAXKBEE-_T—=F1+_A
=t—HIEFENARBGI62AET  EE
BE_ZT-NF+-_A=t—BLEFEHNA
R¥G8l.IE&EIT  IMARK23498E T
36.4%  WIEMEBRHNBE_T—MF
TZA=+T—HLEFEERBAMBEM - AE
ENERERELEBERES -

FERNE

BRI LA - AERENMBRBEE—FT—=
FT-_A=1T-HLEFENARKI7T3IOAE
T ENEHE_ZT-NOF+-_A=+—H
LEFENARKL3SE3.7EET  BINARE
379.8 BEITH39.0% » NEBEHFH KA #
E-T-=F+-_A=+t—HILFENI10.0%
EMERE _T-HUF+T_A=+T—HILFE
#13.0% °

R ERELEE
BHE-_Z-—NFEF+_A=+—HIFE &E&E
B SREERREEE N AARK74.7
e MBE-_Z—=%+-A=+—HIt
FEASEZGHEERBERELHBEBARE
13188 afEnEZm R EREIEE
[EHEBE ANEB30% BRENRR « FEEI(E
M) R Uz s T e

AATEE AELFE

AR AT - RRAFHEE A BT EHRER
EZET-=F+-_A=1+-—"HILEFEHNAR
BOg7.0BBLENEHE - —NF+=A
—+t—BHLEFEMNARK1I279088 L » &
MARB292.08870529.6% °

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by RMB234.9 million, or
36.4%, to RMB881.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014
from RMB646.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
increase was primarily attributable to an increase in the profit before
tax for the year ended 31 December 2014. No material change in the
Group's effective income tax rate.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit increased by RMB379.8
million, or 39.0%, to RMB1,353.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 from RMB973.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The Group’s net profit margin increased to 13.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2014 from 10.0% for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded profit
attributable to non-controlling shareholders of RMB74.7 million as
compared to the loss of RMB13.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase in profit was primarily due to the
recognition of revenue and profit of Times Peanut Il (Guangzhou), in
which non-controlling owners had 30% equity interest.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by RMB292.0 million, or 29.6%, to RMB1,279.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2014 from RMB987.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

Cash position

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of the Group’s cash
and bank balances was approximately RMB5,417.6 million (31
December 2013: RMB3,667.6 million), representing an increase
of 47.7% when compared with that of 31 December 2013. Under
relevant PRC laws and regulations, some of the Group's projects
companies are required to place a certain amount of pre-sale
proceeds in designated bank accounts as guarantee deposits for
construction of the relevant properties. These guarantee deposits
may only be used for payments to construction contractors in the
project development process and for other construction-related
payments, such as purchase of materials. The remaining guarantee
deposits are released when certificates of completion for the relevant
properties have been obtained. In addition, a portion of the Group’s
bank deposits represented loan proceeds in the monitoring accounts
designated by the banks, in which case the use of the restricted bank
deposits, subject to the banks’ approval, is restricted to the purposes
as set out in the relevant loan agreements. As at 31 December 2014,
the Group’s restricted bank deposits was RMB2,691.8 million.
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Exchangeable Notes and the Restructuring Deed

On 9 January 2008, several investors provided loans to one of the
Group's controlling Shareholders, Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd. (“Asiaciti”),
in an aggregate principal amount of USD200.0 million (approximately
RMB1,440.0 million). Meanwhile, Asiaciti issued to the investors the
exchangeable notes in an aggregate principal amount of USD200.0
million. The relevant proceeds were provided to the Group for use
in its business operation and funding various property development
projects. Pursuant to the restructuring deed (the “Restructuring
Deed”) dated 12 July 2013 entered into by and among the Company,
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Asiaciti, Renowned Brand Investments Limited
(“Renowned Brand”), East Profit Management Limited (“East Profit”)
and Highup Holdings Limited, part of the debt aforesaid owed by
Asiaciti to the investors has assumed by the Company. Further
details of the exchangeable notes and the Restructuring Deed are
set out in the section entitled “History and Corporate Structure —
Pre-IPO Investment and Debt Restructuring” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 29 November 2013. Given the sufficiency of
working capital and the benefits of releasing the Company from the
secured obligations and allowing the Company to focus its attention
on operation, the Board decided to pay all outstanding installments in
full ahead of the schedule. On 6 January 2014, the Company paid all
outstanding installments (being the third to fifth installments originally
due on 15 January 2014, 15 March 2014 and 15 May 2014,
respectively) under the Restructuring Deed in full. As a result, all the
Company’s obligations under the Restructuring Deed was discharged
in full in January 2014.

Borrowings

The Group had aggregate borrowings (excluding convertible bonds)
of approximately RMB10,791.4 million as at 31 December 2014, of
which approximately RMB1,786.3 million are due within one year,
approximately RMB8,797.1 million are due within two and five years
and approximately RMB208.0 million are due in over five years. As
at 31 December 2014, the Group’s outstanding bank loans were
secured by certain of its property, plant and equipment, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development, investment
properties, prepaid land lease payment and pledged time deposits
with carrying values of approximately RMB240.2 million, RMB229.1
million, RMB3,443.1 million, RMB1,397.9 million, RMB682.8 million,
and RMB150.0 million, respectively.
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On 21 March 2014, the Company issued 12.625% senior notes
due 2019 in a principal amount of USD225,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,383,188,000) at 99.278% of the principal
amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes March 2014”). On 2 May
2014, the Company issued additional 12.625% senior notes due 2019
in a principal amount of USD80,000,000 (approximately equivalent
to RMB492,640,000) at 100.125% of the principal amount of such
notes (the “Senior Notes May 2014"). Senior Notes March 2014 and
Senior Notes May 2014 were consolidated and formed a single series
which are referred to as the “USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019”.
The USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019 are listed on the Stock
Exchange and bear interest from and including 21 March 2014 at the
rate of 12.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

On 7 July 2014, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd., pursuant to which it has
conditionally agreed to issue convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HKD388,000,000 due 2019 (approximately
equivalent to RMB308,369,000) (the “Bonds”) at the price of 100%
of their principal amount. The Bonds bear interest at the rate of 8%
per annum and payable quarterly in arrears. Subject to the terms of
the Bonds, the bondholders have the right to convert their Bonds into
shares to be allotted and issued by the Company upon conversion of
the Bonds (“New Shares”) at any time during the conversion period.
The Bonds are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries
of the Group. The Company intended to use the net proceeds for
refinancing, redemption or other repayment of existing financial
indebtedness. The initial conversion price is HKD3.50, representing a
premium of approximately 12.9% of the closing price of HKD3.10 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 7 July 2014. Based on the
initial conversion price of HKD3.50 and assuming full conversion of
the Bonds at the initial conversion price, the Bonds will be convertible
into 110,857,142 New Shares, with the aggregate nominal value of
HKD11,085,714.2, approximately 6.05% of the ordinary share capital
of the Company, as enlarged by the issue of New Shares. On 25 July
2014, the Company issued the Bonds when all of the conditions
precedent under the subscription agreement were satisfied.

On 16 July 2014, the Company issued 10.375% senior notes due
2017 (the “Senior Notes July 2014”) in an aggregate principal amount
of RMB900,000,000 at 100% of the principal amount of such notes.
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On 14 October 2014, the Company issued additonal 10.375%
senior notes due 2017 in a principal amount of RMB600,000,000 at
100.125% of the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes
October 2014"). Senior Notes July 2014 and Senior Notes October
2014 were consolidated and formed a single series which are referred
to as the (“RMB 10.375% senior notes due 2017"). The RMB
10.375% senior notes due 2017 are listed on the Stock Exchange and
bear interest from and including 16 July 2014 at the rate of 10.375%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.

The net proceeds from the RMB10.375% senior notes due 2017 will
be used to refinance certain existing indebtedness.

The Group’s domestic bank loans carried a floating interest rate linked
with the base lending rate of The People’s Bank of China. As at 31
December 2014, the Group was exposed to interest rate risk, primarily
in relation to our bank loans bearing floating interest rates, which
amounted to be RMB3,933.3 million.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net debts (total interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings net of cash and bank balances) over
net assets was 94.0% (31 December 2013: 93.2%). The Group’s net
current assets increased by 75.3% from RMB6,926.4 million as at 31
December 2013 to RMB12,140.1 million as at 31 December 2014,
and the current ratio increased from 1.5 times as at 31 December
2013 to 1.7 times as at 31 December 2014.

Foreign currency risks

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. The currency in which the
Group denominates and settles substantially all of its transactions is
Renminbi. Any depreciation of the Renminbi would adversely affect
the value of any dividends the Group pay to the Shareholders outside
of the PRC. The Group currently do not engage in hedging activities
designed or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk.
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Financial guarantee

As of 31 December 2014, the outstanding guarantee mortgage loans
that domestic banks provided to purchasers of the Group’s properties
amounted to approximately RMB6,913.0 million (31 December
2013: approximately RMB4,068.4 million). These guarantees are
released upon the earlier of (i) the relevant certificates of registration
of mortgage or the certificates of other interests with respect to the
relevant properties being delivered to the mortgagor banks and (ii)
the settlement of mortgage loans between the mortgagor banks and
the purchasers of the Group’s projects. If a purchaser defaults on a
mortgage loan before the guarantees are released, the Group may
have to repurchase the underlying property by paying off mortgage.
If the Group fail to do so, the mortgagor bank may auction the
underlying property and recover any additional amount outstanding
from the Group as the guarantor of the mortgage loans. In line with
industry practices, the Group do not conduct independent credit
reviews of our customers but rely on the credit reviews conducted by
the mortgagor banks.

After balance sheet event

(a) On 8 January 2015, Times Billion Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, won the bidding to acquire a parcel of land located
at Zengcheng District, Guangzhou City, through public bidding.
The total site area of the land parcel is approximately 93,755
sg.m. and its plot ratio shall not exceed 2.5. The consideration
of the land is RMB675.75 million, of which the Company has
paid RMB136 million as of the date of approval of this report.

(b)  On 29 January 2015, Guangzhou Times Tianyi Consulting
Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, won the bidding to
acquire two adjacent land parcels located at Luogang District,
Guangzhou City, through public bidding. The total site area
of the land parcels is approximately 70,648 sq.m. and its
plot ratio shall not exceed 2.8 and 3 respectively. The total
consideration of the land parcels is RMB1,332.69 million, of
which Guangzhou Times Tianyi Consulting Co., Ltd. has paid
RMB268 million as of the date of approval of this report.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposal of subsidiaries and associated
companies.
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Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 3,510
employees (31 December 2013: approximately 2,711 employees).
The remunerations of the employees are commensurate with their
performance, skills, knowledge, experience and the market trend.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include provident fund
schemes, medical insurance scheme, unemployment insurance
scheme and housing provident fund. The Group reviews the
remuneration policies and packages on a regular basis and will
make necessary adjustments that accommodate the pay levels
in the industry. In addition to basic salaries, the employees may
be offered with discretionary bonuses and cash awards based on
individual performances. The Group also provides training programs
for the employees with a view to constantly upgrading their skills and
knowledge. Further, the Group adopted the Share Option Scheme
on 19 November 2013 as incentives or rewards for the employees’
contributions to the Group. Further information of the Share Option
Scheme is available in this annual report. The Group’s employee
benefit expense is set out in the notes to the condensed consolidated
financial statement in the 2014 annual report of the Company.

MARKET REVIEW

In 2014, the real estate market in the PRC entered a year of cyclical
fluctuation adjustments. The growth of real estate investment
declined substantially and all indicators dropped from their highs.
Housing prices in major cities throughout the country collectively
went down while commodity housing inventory remained high. Data
from the National Bureau of Statistics showed that in 2014, real
estate development investment in China amounted to approximately
RMBO9.5 trillion, representing a nominal growth of 10.5% over 2013
and a decrease of 9.3 percentage points year on year. New housing
construction area was 1.80 billion square metres, a decrease of
10.7% year on year. The new commodity housing price index for
70 large and medium cities in China experienced a month-on-
month drop for seven months in a row since May 2014. The report of
Guangdong Real Estate Association also showed that the sales area
and sales amount of commodity housing in Guangdong Province fell
7.6% and 6.9%, respectively, on a year-on-year basis in 2014.
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Under such background, the central government and local
governments made flexible adjustments to their policies in a
timely manner and put emphasis on supporting and encouraging
rational housing consumption and achieved the stability of industry
development through long-lasting mechanisms such as monetary
policy adjustment and household registration reform. Starting from
the second half of the year 2014, measures such as “home purchase
restriction”, “restrictions on mortgages” and “price restriction” had
been gradually withdrawn. The “home purchase restriction” had been
introduced in 46 cities in China and was successively eased in 41
cities. At present, only 5 cities still persisted in the “home purchase
restriction”, including Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Beijing, Shanghai and
Sanya. However, Foshan City and Zhuhai City in the Pearl River Delta
region have eased the “home purchase restriction”.

At the central economic conference convened at the end of 2014,
the relevant content of “real estate regulation” did not appear in the
major tasks determined by the conference for two consecutive years.
The direction of weakening administrative intervention was basically
established. The real estate market was gradually returning to the
autoregulation mechanism.

For the credit environment, in September 2014, the central bank and
the CBRC jointly issued the “Notice on Further Improving Housing
Financial Services” which made significant adjustments to the criteria
on first home mortgage, financing for developers and commercial
bank credit, which vigorously boosted market confidence. In addition,
in November 2014, the central bank announced the reduction of RMB
loan and deposit benchmark interest rates for financial institutions.
This, on one hand, facilitated the alleviation of the burden on making
payments for purchasing home, which stimulated consumption and
the demand for purchasing home. On the other hand, this also helped
reduce the capital burden on real estate developers. The market
anticipates that the new policy will further promote a pickup in the
real estate market.

For the land bank, the national land market was in a slack period as
a whole in 2014. Real estate developers tended to be prudent in the
acquisition of land. Data released by China Index Academy showed
that the land transaction area and the land premium amount dropped
by approximately 30% in 300 cities in China in 2014 on a year-on-
year basis. However, hot land parcels in tier one cities were still much
sought after, with the continued emergence of high-premium land
parcels. In the second half year, unit price and total price “Land
Kings” frequently appeared in various locations.
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In addition, new urbanization put more emphasis on “people-
oriented”, which focused on the quality of development and service.
Together with the further promotion of mobile Internet, the habit
of household consumption had begun to change. Many real estate
developers had been gradually recognizing the importance of mobile
Internet to the industry and established a presence on the Internet.
On one hand, they upgraded the sales channels and the sales model.
On the other hand, they gradually achieved seamless integration with
mobile Internet technology in terms of customer service with a view to
improving the service quality through online and offline collaborative
operation and increasing the loyalty and reputation of owners.

Looking forward to 2015, China’s economy is expected to maintain
steady development and stable growth should be the main theme of
this year’s economic development. Under the current macroeconomic
environment, it is expected that market financing will be relatively
loose in 2015 with interest rates showing downward trend, which
will enable companies to reduce finance costs and operating costs.
Further, with relaxation of the credit limit policy and lowered mortgage
costs, purchasers’ confidence is gradually restored and the market
will usher in a good pickup opportunity.

The Group believes that in 2015 overall market liquidity will be
relatively adequate, there will be ample release of bank lending and
mortgage granting will be more relaxed, which to a certain extent will
boost the property market.

The Group is cautiously optimistic about the development of the real
estate industry, and believes that real estate developers will usher in
new development opportunities with normalization of the industry.

Times Property will continue to adhere to the policy of focusing on
selected regions, residential business and customers with robust
demands and improvement-oriented demands, and to achieve
sustainable growth in size in such way with high turnover rate and
high sell-through rate. The Group will adopt a prudent investment
strategy and take a low-cost and diversified land bank strategy. Times
Property will actively grasp the new opportunities of urban renewal in
the Pearl River Delta region and secure more and better quality land
banks leveraging its experience and strengths in the field. The Group
will actively enhance the level of community services through online
and offline collaborative operation to provide owners with better and
more convenient services.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (£ &%), aged 44, is the founder of our Group.
He has been the chairman of our Board, chief executive officer and
Director since November 2007 and was redesignated as our executive
Director in February 2008. Mr. Shum started his business career in real
estate development in 1999, and has experience in trade, finance and
real estate development. In 1999, he founded Guangzhou Sweetland
Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Sweetland Real Estate”),
a company engaged in residential property development project in
Guangzhou. In 2001, he founded Guangzhou Times Property Group
Co., Ltd. (the “Times Group”) and served as the president, primarily
responsible for the strategic development and overall operations
of Times Group’s business. He has been serving concurrently as
the head of the operation center of the Group since January 2014,
generally responsible for the Company’s overall operation plan. Mr.
Shum has led our Group to become the leading property developers in
Guangdong Province, focusing on the development of mid-market to
high-end residential properties. He has over 15 years of experience in
the PRC real estate industry. He graduated from Fudan University (1&
B KE) with an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
(“EMBA”) in June 2006.

Mr. Shum was recognized as an “Innovative Individual in China’s
Real Estate Industry in 2005” (“2005 FEF BEHERIFT AW, by
a number of media outlets including Beijing Youth Daily Group ({1t
R F L)), Guangzhou Daily ((E MM H ¥R )) and China Business
News (& —Bf48)), an “Outstanding Leader of Mainstream Chinese
Real Estate Companies in 2005” (“2005 4 [Z A B = Rt E A H B E
A¥1") by China Properties Economic Mainstream Summit (4 B #f
ELLEERIEE) and one of the “100 Most Influential Entrepreneurs
in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2004” (“2004 & [ &2 £ B 5 i
E 1001z 1> 2 5 ") by Media and Promotion Alliance for Real Estate
in China (FEIER & F mEESER ). Mr. Shum was recognized
as an “Excellent Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry” (“Af
HEMEEFLHER") and was awarded the “Golden Horse Award
of Excellent Entrepreneur in China’s Real Estate Industry in 2007”
(“2007 P EEMEEFLERESF ") by the Urban Development
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and Environment Research Center of the Chinese Academy of Social
Science (5 Bt & R8T T 25 R BAIRIB 9T 0 ), China National
Real Estate Enterprise Association (F# 2B EHECEB A2

and China Real Estate Entrepreneur Association (TR P2 K €)
in 2006 and 2007, respectively. He was also awarded the “Top 10
Figures with Outstanding Contributions in 30 Years of China’s Real
Estate Industry” (“ff B B b EE304F + KRG H E B A Y in 2008
by Nanfang Media Group (8 /5 ¥ % & X & [&) and 30 Years of
China’s Real Estate Industry Summit Organizing Committee (# B &
MWE3IVESERIBHEZE), “11th Guangzhou Outstanding Youth”
(“E+—mEEMNEEBE") in 2010 by the People’s Government of
Guangzhou (FE M T A RIBF), “Most Influential Figures in China's
Real Estate Industry” (“PEIESHETTERATZ N AY”) in 2010 by
the Ministry of Housing and Urban Policy Research Center ({5 A3
AP EBHRAFZS A0, ), National Federation of Real Estate Chamber
of Commerce (2B THEBFEMERE) and Guangdong Real Estate
Chamber of Commerce (EREMER ) and the “The 1st Top 10
Outstanding Cantonese Youth” ("B EH# A ER A+ RKEHEF")
in 2013 by The 1st Global Conference of the Cantonese Organizing
Committee (& @t R E T AR K& H Z &€). Mr. Shum was
appointed as a standing member of the Guangzhou Committee of the
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2007 (H
BEARBGAHEEZE T EENMEESEHZEZS) and executive
chairman of Guangzhou Chamber of Commerce of Private Enterprises
(BEMHEREMERS). Mr. Shum is currently the vice chairman of
the 14th executive committee of Guangzhou Federation of Industry
and Commerce (& /N ™ T 7 2 8 & &) and Guangzhou General
Chamber of Commerce (& M 42 7 &) since September 2011. Mr.
Shum is the elder brother of Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong.

Mr. Guan Jianhui (B8%Z#8), aged 50, was appointed as our Director
in January 2008 and was redesignated as our executive Director in
February 2008. Mr. Guan has been a vice president of Times Group
since January 2002. Mr. Guan is currently the head of our information
and administration service center and is primarily responsible for
information management, administration and Fund affairs. He
assisted Mr. Shum Chiu Hung to found Sweetland Real Estate in 1999
and joined Times Group in May 2001. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Guan
was responsible for finance, funding and cost management. He has
over 15 years of experience in real estate corporate management. Mr.
Guan graduated from South China Normal University (3R Em#5 K £2)
with a bachelor’'s degree in arts in December 1994, and obtained an
EMBA from Peking University (A5 A%52) in July 2009. Mr. Guan is
currently a member of the 14th Guangzhou Yuexiu District Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (FF Bl A R
AEERF THERNTEFREZE®).
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Mr. Bai Xihong (H#53t), aged 47, was appointed as our Director
in January 2008 and was designated as our executive Director
in February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times Group
since January 2002. He has also been the general manager of the
Guangzhou regional office of Times Group since January 2002
whereby he is primarily responsible for project development, marketing
and project management in Guangzhou. Mr. Bai joined Sweetland
Real Estate in 1999 and joined Times Group in May 2001. Mr. Bai
has over 15 years of experience in real estate corporate management.
He graduated from Guangdong Radio & Television University (B3R /&
FEEARAE) in industrial enterprise operation management in 1990
and obtained an EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University (411 AZ) in
December 2009. In 2005, Mr. Bai was recognized as an “Outstanding
Contributor to Guangzhou Real Estate in the Past 20 years” (“& /M
WE—HFEEEBERZ A" by the “Guangzhou Real Estate in the
Past 20 Years' event organizing committee” (BEM #hZE —+9 A A
SEBAZE®), Guangzhou Real Estate Organization (BN EME
#1%e) and Guangzhou Real Estate Guide Union (FEHIEEE Fit).
He was awarded the “2006 Qutstanding CEO (Diamond Award) in
Mainstream Real Estate in China” (“20067 Bl £ it E S EE4 HE
EACEQ”) in 2006 by China Mainstream Real Estate Economy Summit
(R BIHEASE £ MIES), “Innovative and Meritorious Individual in
China’s Real Estate Industry in the 60 years since the Founding of the
PRC” (“i2BI60F B HhE £ $HEI¥TTh 8 A”") in 2009 by the 7th
China Real Estate Economy Summit (- fE B EAE Rk D)
and “Real Estate Pioneers Award” (“thZE L% A¥1€") in 2010 by Xin
Kuai News (¥T1%3R). Mr. Bai is currently a member of the Guangzhou
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference

(FEARBUAHREZREMNTEZES)

Mr. Li Qiang (Z3&), aged 40, was appointed as our Director in
January 2008 and was designated as our executive Director in
February 2008. He has been a vice president of Times Group since
July 2009. He is currently also the head of the human resources and
legal affairs center of Times Group and is primarily responsible for
human resources and legal matters. Mr. Li joined Times Group in
July 2005 as an assistant to the president and has served as our vice
president since July 2009. Mr. Li has over nine years of experience
in real estate corporate management. Mr. Li obtained a master’s
degree in law from Hunan Normal University G#REETEEAER) in June
2000, and an EMBA degree from Sun Yat-Sen University (57 [ AZ2)
in December 2007. He was admitted as a lawyer in the PRC in June
1998. Mr. Li is currently a member of the 15th People’s Congress of
Guangzhou Yuexiu District (E/MNTEFEE +ABARKREAE)
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Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong (£ Jk#), aged 40, was appointed as our
executive Director in November 2013. He has been a director of the
investment and development center of Times Group since May 2012,
responsible for land development and project pre-planning work. Mr.
Cen joined Sweetland Real Estate as a project assistant in 1999 and
was promoted as a manager of the development department in May
2001 and a manager of the tender department of Times Group in
September 2009. Mr. Cen was the general manager of the Qingyuan
regional office of Times Group between December 2010 and May
2012. Mr. Cen is a younger brother of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.

Mr. Niu Jimin (4%&=), aged 35, was appointed as our executive
Director in November 2013 and is currently the head of the
finance department of Times Group, responsible for planning
and management of financial accounting, operation and taxation
matters. Prior to joining us in 2011, Mr. Niu worked in the finance
management department of Guangzhou Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(BMmEREMESBRAR) (“Guangzhou Vanke”) as regional
finance manager from December 2005 to December 2007. He was
head of operation analysis of the operation management department
and a senior manager of the project development department of
Guangzhou Vanke from December 2007 to April 2008 and from
November 2010 to March 2011, respectively. He was head of finance
department of Wuhan Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd. (RJEmERIEH
EARATF) from May 2008 to October 2010. Mr. Niu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management from Sun Yat-Sen University (4 LU
AZ) in June 2001 and a master of business administration degree
from Hong Kong Baptist University in November 2012. Mr. Niu
graduated from School of Finance of Renmin University of China (/4
B AR AZB S R 20 ) with an EMBA degree in January 2015.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Sun Hui (8¥), aged 53, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director in November 2013. She has been a partner of
Shanghai Huanzhong Law Firm (_E/8TIREAISEEAT) since July
1996, a chairman of Zengcheng Jianglong Electric Power Co., Ltd.
(& TEESE H AR A R]) since 2009. Ms. Sun graduated from the
school of law of East China University of Political Science and Law (Z
HIBUAEPRT) in 1983. She obtained a degree in law from Georgetown
University in 1992.

Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho (&% %), aged 52, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
audit committee and nomination committee of the Board on 21 March
2014. Dr. Wong is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, China
Appointed Attesting Officer and a director of the China Law Society.
He is the managing partner of Philip K.H. Wong, Kennedy Y.H. Wong
& Co., Solicitors & Notaries, a solicitors’ firm headquartered in Hong
Kong with offices in Beijing and Shanghai. Dr. Wong is the chairman
and an executive director of Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2882), a non-executive director of Goldlion
Holdings Limited (stock code: 533) and an independent non-executive
director of China Overseas Land & Investment Limited (stock code:
688), Asia Cement (China) Holdings Corporation (stock code: 743)
and Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited (stock
code: 563), an independent director of Bank of Beijing Company
Limited (SSE code: 601169), all are listed companies on either the
Stock Exchange or Shanghai Stock Exchange. Dr. Wong is also a
director of Bohai Industrial Investment Fund Management Company
Limited, a multi-national company with substantial investments in the
People’s Republic of China and Asia.

Dr. Wong is a National Committee Member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is also a member of the Election
Committee of Hong Kong responsible for electing Hong Kong's Chief
Executive. Dr. Wong was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1998 and then one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 2003.

Mr. Wong Wai Man (Z{&3X), aged 46, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director in November 2013. From August
1991 to April 1996, Mr. Wong worked as an auditor with Ernst &
Young. From 2006 to 2010, he was an executive director of China
Household Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bao Yuan Holdings
Limited and Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 692), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor
of arts degree in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 1991 and a master of science degree in
financial economics from the University of London in December 1997.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Yongshao (2I5k#R), aged 50, has been a vice president of
Times Group since 2004 and a general manager of Guangzhou Times
Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Times Property Management”) and
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou
Donghe”) since 2008. He is primarily responsible for property service
management for Times Property Management and leasing and project
development for Guangzhou Donghe. Mr. Liu was a teacher of Nanhai
High School in Foshan (#8ILTHF /8 & m)EH 2) from July 1984 to
July 1993. He was head of the principal’s office of Foshan Nanhai
Guicheng Street Guijiang First Junior High School ({8 LLTH &% @ 4
WAEBETE—YAFRE) from July 1993 to July 1996. He joined
Sweetland Real Estate in 1999 and joined Times Group in May 2001.
He has over 14 years of experience in real estate development. Mr.
Liu obtained a bachelor of arts degree from South China Normal
University ((EFIRTEIAER) in December 1994 and an EMBA degree
from Sun Yat-Sen University (117K E2) in December 2010.

Mr. Tao Chengjiang (FR5I), aged 46, has been the head of the
funds center of Times Group since December 2006. He is responsible
for capital financing of our Group. He joined Times Group in May
2001 as a manager of our finance department and was promoted
as the finance director in January 2004. Prior to joining us, from
November 1999 to March 2001, Mr. Tao worked in the finance
department and corporate management department of Kingold Group
Companies Limited (fBZ £ E B R A 7). Mr. Tao has been a qualified
accountant in the PRC since April 1997 and he is a non-practising
member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (ER& & ETAIRE) since 2010. Mr. Tao graduated
from Xi'an Petroleum College (Fa% A HZ26T) with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in June 1992 and obtained an EMBA degree from Sun
Yat-Sen University (47 1LLIX22) in December 2008.

Mr. Chan Wai Kin (BR{Ef#), aged 34, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the joint company secretary and the authorized
representative of the Group since 21 February 2014, responsible for
the Group’s financial reporting and investor relations related matters.
Mr. Chan worked with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an auditor from
December 2005 to August 2010, with KPMG as an auditing manager
from August 2010 to October 2011, and with Golden Wheel Tiandi
Holdings Company Limited (“Golden Wheel Tiandi”, stock code:
1232), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, as the executive
director, chief financial officer and company secretary from October
2011 to September 2013, responsible for taking part in auditing of
financial reports and in investor relations related matters. Mr. Chan
ceased to be the non-executive director of Golden Wheel Tiandi on
28 February 2014. Mr. Chan graduated from Indiana University at
Bloomington in the United States of America with a degree of bachelor
of science in business in May 2005. He has been a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2009.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
November 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies
Law”). The Company’s shares (the “Shares”) were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 11 December 2013 (the “Listing” or the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is one of the leading property developers in Guangdong
Province, focusing on the development of mid-market to high-
end residential properties. Main business comprises three areas:
(i) property development, i.e., the development of residential
and commercial properties for sale, (ii) property leasing, i.e., the
development, leasing and sub-leasing of commercial properties
owned by the Company or independent third parties, and (iii) property
management, i.e. the provision of property management services to
our residential customers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 90 of
this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB14.34 cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: RMB10.94 cents) to the Shareholders. The final dividend
will be payable on 2 July 2015 and is subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
29 May 2015 (“AGM").

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on page 219 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing of the Company (after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses) amounted to approximately
HKD1,477.4 million, which shall be applied in compliance with the
intended use of proceeds set out in the section headed “Future plans
and use of proceeds” of the prospectus of the Company dated 29
November 2013, of which, approximately 33.3% of the net proceeds
were utilised for settling part of the outstanding installments under the
Restructuring Deed (as defined in the prospectus) and approximately
55.1% of the net proceeds were utilised for financing new and
existing projects, including the land acquisition and construction costs
of potential development projects.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 1.8% of the total sales for the year ended 31 December
2014. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 44.6% of the total purchase for the year ended 31
December 2014 and purchase from the largest supplier accounted
for 20.1%.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in note 14 of the notes to financial statements in this
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Company
and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out
in note 16 of the notes to financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 31 of the notes to
financial statements in this annual report.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of issuance of convertible bonds of the Company are shown in
Management Discussion and Analysis section on page 37 and in note
30 of the notes to financial statements.
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SENIOR NOTES

Details of issuance of senior notes of the Company are shown in
Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 37 and 38
and in note 29(g) of the notes to financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out on page 94 in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of this annual report and in note 33 of the notes
to financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB1,163.1 million (as
at 31 December 2013: RMB1,577.6 million).

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 29 of the notes
to financial statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2014 and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Ms. Sun Hui

Mr. Lin Rupeng

(resigned on 21 March 2014)

Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho

(appointed on 21 March 2014)

Mr. Wong Wai Man
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In accordance with articles of association of the Company, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire
from office by rotation and will be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, any
Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition will hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung, Mr. Bai Xihong and Mr. Guan Jianhui will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as the
Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 43 to 48 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company received confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board considered all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 19 November 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and may be terminated pursuant
to the respective terms of the service contracts.

Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man, both are independent non-
executive Directors, have signed a letter of appointment on 19
November 2013 for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho, an independent non-
executive Director, has signed a letter of appointment on 21 March
2014 for an initial term of three years commencing from 21 March
2014,
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None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 38 of the notes
to financial statements and in the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no Director has any material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the Group’s
business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies were a party subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2014.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Prior to the Listing, the Company conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 November 2013 which
became effective and unconditional upon the Listing. The purpose of
the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to
the Eligible Participants (as defined below) as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group.

(@) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and
is established to enable the Company to grant options to
the Eligible Participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution they had or may have made to the Group. The
Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with
the view to achieving the following objectives: (i) motivate the
Eligible Participants to optimize their performance efficiency for
the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise
maintain on-going business relationship with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.
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Eligible participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (e) below to: (i) any full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
(ii) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (iii) any
advisers, suppliers, customers, distributors and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (iv) any such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or
have contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Eligible Persons”).

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under
any other share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
immediately following the completion of the Global Offering
(“the Hong Kong Public Offering and International Offering”)
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be allotted
and issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option), being 172,296,000 Shares, representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report, excluding for this purpose Shares which would have
been issued on the exercise in full of options in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any other share
option schemes of the Company, but not canceled, lapsed or
exercised). Subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time, the Board may: (i) renew this limit at
any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as of the date of the
approval by the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or (ii)
grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Board.



(d)

BEFEALERTE  HATEREBRE
ot &I R A AE ] L b BB A R At & AT IR
R 6E B9 P B BB R AR T AT B B 1T Y
iy - EBRAFH A EEETRDET
B in 89 30% ° AR 1% AN~ B &Y (T 7] 51 &
(B 1R AT &) % ro BB AR BB 1 3%
30% M LR - AIN SR EZEBAE -
HWARAHERRBHIRERNEZE (TR
BREH  BARMCBT - k- FAK
DR AR BIBATTR) - BIRTRER H 9 FE
BRSO B D BB ERBERAR
B A% 2R A X 7 52 7] 98 S B 7S R HE R R
B RFLRAENHE  EERIM
BT BEBABMREHRE -

BESERSEERNBRENEE
LR

EEA+_@EARHHEEZRE BHEE
B MR A At 8 R AR BT {A) E fh BE S A A
SRR ER2RERINERE(R
BETERMKRITEBERE)TERE
BOERBTETNROAHEIEBAR
REBHPEEHTRMOHH1% - BINEH
MiBZ1% ERMEREZR: (VARFA
R ETHBIE17.03(4) EKRFE 17.06
BELBEH HIGEKR2EENY
DB TFROBRENHEE KRR
BARTZLHRENBRE)  EWR
AIZE17.022) () ERTENEIBEARE
17.02(0) &M TR E R R(ii)E
BMERAEBRERRS EHER /A LS
BATHAETHEMER  MZBEE
BoEEREBEA(ERER EWAR)
ERBERR - BETZL2EENERE
HE MMER(BEITEE) BRBRELE
MET MEFREMZAEKRSH
ERLERENESS S HHMRTE
BROMRBEMS  ARBBERERD
HHf - EEQAKREARETNSETNE
NAZEERSHEEREE —HBBLHOX -

SEEFEURERDBREABHRI0A
A MBI - ERBRER - XEA
AMARAZNLI.00ET(HARER
ZESFPIFELRRBRENYE -

(d)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options shall be granted under any schemes of the Company
(including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result in the
30% limit being exceeded. The maximum number of Shares
in respect of which options may be granted shall be adjusted,
in such manner as the auditor of the Company or an approved
independent financial adviser shall certify to be appropriate,
fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in the capital
structure of the Company whether by way of consolidation,
capitalization issue, rights issue, sub-division or reduction of
the share capital of the Company but in no event shall exceed
the limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to each Eligible
Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as
of the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of
this 1% limit shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by
the Company which shall comply with Rules 17.03(4) and
17.06 of the Listing Rules containing the identity of the Eligible
Participant, the numbers of and terms of the options to be
granted (and options previously granted to such participant)
the information as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules; and
(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time with such Eligible Participant and his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting. The
numbers and terms (including the exercise price) of options
to be granted to such participant must be fixed before the
Shareholders’ approval and the date of the Board meeting at
which the Board proposes to grant the options to such Eligible
Participant shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose
of calculating the subscription price of the Shares. The Board
shall forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document in
such form as the Board may from time to time determine.

An option may be accepted by a participant not later than
30 days after the date of the offer for the grant of the option.
Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HKD1.00
(or an equivalent amount in RMB) to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.
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Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will be at less the higher of: (i) the official
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a
day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) is required to be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). If the Board
proposes to grant options to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) which will result in
the number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, canceled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant: (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other percentage
as may be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules
of the Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value in
excess of HKD5 million or such other sum as may be from
time to time provided under the Listing Rules, based on the
official closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant,
such further grant of options will be subject to the issue of a
circular by the Company and the approval of the Shareholders
in general meeting by way of a poll at which all connected
persons of the Company shall abstain from voting in favor of the
resolution concerning the grant of such options at the general
meeting, and/or such other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting
to approve the grant of such options shall be taken as a poll.
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(g) Time of exercise of Option and duration of the Share
Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the Option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of ten years from that date. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than ten years after it has been granted. No option may
be granted more than ten years after the date of approval of
the Share Option Scheme. Subject to earlier termination by the
Company in general meeting or by the Board, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
from the date of its adoption.

(h) Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company may by resolution in general meeting or the
Board at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme and in
such event no further option shall be offered but the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any option granted
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme. Options
granted prior to such termination but not yet exercised at the
time of termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

(i)  Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme becomes unconditional and has a remaining term
of approximately 8 years and 9 months as at the date of this
annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 8 and 9 of the notes to financial
statements in this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report, there was no change to any of
the information required to be disclosed in relation to any Director
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short position of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”")) required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interest or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which would
be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which would be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Q@ B R E IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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(i)

Interest in the Company

=t

Name of Director

BEME

Nature of interest

2 )

BB A % 0

Shum Chiu Hung®

FAEE®

Guan Jianhui®

EEZP

Bai Xihong®

£
Li Qiang
Y

Cen Zhaoxiong

e
1.

2.

[k

B

Interest of spouse

BEamBAA

Beneficial owner

BB A

FHILRRZESZNER

R-ZE—NFEF+_A=+—8  S8IMLER
1851 1,292,220,000 i fh R B #Ex - 48
ERARARKBEFITRANLDT75% - €5
#461,292,220,000 gl tn - MERTERR
Fo R E P H60% K 40% ° = 854
2 EHEERIRE -

RZE—WNFE+ZA=+—0  BEZBLEN
e BRI ER 2 14 3,276,000 AR A& (7 7 5 1
e FMEEEAENEARZERND T HERE

BX

AZE-—MF+-A=+—H BHRELEDN
BEEELZ LN 2,017,000 BB 7 %6 H#
AHREEREARZEROD T ERE

o

Bx Bk B %

Interest of spouse

Beneficial owner

Notes:

Interest in a controlled corporation®

EFHFEHAY RESLBEIX
Approximate

Number of percentage of
securities ¥ shareholding
1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
3,276,000 (L) 0.19%
2,017,000 (L) 0.12%
2,880,000 (L) 0.17%
1,318,000 (L) 0.08%

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Shum Chiu Hung had deemed interests in
1,292,220,000 Shares, representing an approximate total of 75% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company. The 1,292,220,000 Shares
were held by Asiaciti, which is 60% and 40% owned by Renowned
Brand and East Profit respectively. Renowned Brand is wholly-owned by
Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.

As at 31 December 2014, Ms. Chen Jie Yan, the spouse of Mr. Guan
Jianhui had interest in 3,276,000 Shares. Mr. Guan Jianhui is deemed
to be interested in these Shares.

As at 31 December 2014, Ms. Wan Zhi Ning, the spouse of Mr. Bai
Xihong had interest in 2,017,000 Shares. Mr. Bai Xihong is deemed to
be interested in these Shares.

2014 FE R Annual Report 2014 @Q



EEFWRE
REPORT OF DIRECTORS

(i) REBEEER

(ii)  Interest in associated corporations

REBZES
ZfERN
= B EE AR ERME EHHE BAES
Approximate
percentage in
the registered
capital of the
Number of associated
Name of Director Associated Corporation Nature of interest securities corporation
&Sl 2% RESIEEE R #R 120 60%
Shum Chiu Hung Asiaciti Interest in a controlled corporation
il EERE EREBA 1 100%
Shum Chiu Hung Renowned Brand Beneficial owner
Pt - Note:
1. ERREHEBO0R EEEBITRG » MESR 1. The issued shares of Asiaciti is owned as to 60% by Renowned Brand
BERSSMELELTEESR ° which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung.
(iii) ABEEFPHER (iii) Interest in debentures
BREFDN
= EEME BEEFNLS BURE
Principal amount Unit size of
Name of Director Nature of interest of debentures debentures
=] Pl B B 5,000,000 3% ¢ 1,000
Shum Chiu Hung® Interest of spouse USD5,000,000
Fat Note:

1. 5,000,000 3 7T 89 (& #E 75 (1 2 81 4 55 A 9 Bl 18
TR LTEA c SRR ANZERS
B REGED  EEFIR12.625% K FF
RtE - BUSEFEIN IR=ZFT—hE=
A=+—RA%# -

BREammEEN BE-_FT-—NF+_-A
=t—H BEARAEZFTRESTRAER
ARBSEBBEE(EE RES LB RS
EXVED) B - HER MK ERET - HH
() BERRREESFLMEERIIEI2IHRATHE
ENELMA - () REFETAASITH
EARRA MBI EARRIXRR -

EFEMERMORREEHER

BRRAFRABEEIN  BIERTMNESTIH
EEENREBIRARFFURLEBEALT
Pein sk EHERE MBS MR RN - WEINET
EERMZEERN  MARRREERKE QA
TERI S AT EREFHWEFZT AN
BIRKFFLABE_T—WNF+_A=+—
ALEFEESNEMEMAIABBNZSE
A

1. The USD5,000,000 debentures are held by the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu
Hung, Ms. Li Yiping. Mr. Shum Chiu Hung is deemed to be interested in
these debentures. The debentures bore interest at a rate of 12.625% per
annum payable semi-annually, matured on 21 March 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of our
Directors and chief executives of the Company has any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (ii) otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of
the Company were granted to any Director or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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(@) RERXARGBZHR

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) were taken or deemed to have an interests and/or
short position in the Shares or the underlying Shares which fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

B/ A 5 RRHE ZFHHAW BRESABED L
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest securities ¥ shareholding
F—%@ REEHEB S 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Li Yiping® Interest in a controlled corporation
g5 EnERA 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Asiaciti® Beneficial owner
EERE® R EHEB ) w 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
Renowned Brand® Interest in a controlled corporation
A G R EHEB 1,292,220,000 (L) 75%
East Profit® Interest in a controlled corporation
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(b) MAITEIHRZHRER (b) Derivative interest

=L g1/ EEtE HERGHA D RESQLE D

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of interest securities ¥ shareholding

FIG Corp.@® REEHEZE R ER 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Asian Investment Holdings PR EHLEE R R 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
L.p 016100 Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings iNeR 2L VA= g e 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
GP LLC®®M©) Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress IFC Asian Investments Holdings ~ FAS R HIiA B A% 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
L.P.©® Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Investment Group LLC®®! PR EHLEE R R 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity [| GP L.P.®9 RS IEHIEE MR 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLCW®©®  pASZHR I B Ky 2k 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund I REEGEE R 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
(Dollar) Holdings L.P.®"&© Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund I RSB EE 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
(Yen A) Holdings L.P.©7@© Interest in a controlled corporation

Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.®© REZHEE RS 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Hybrid GP Holdings LLC“© REEGEE R 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%
Interest in a controlled corporation

Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd.©® EnEAA 110,857,142 (L) 6.43%

Pifet
1.

2.

Q@ B R E IR IR G R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

Beneficial owner
Notes:

FRILRRZESFNERE © 1.

The letter “L” denotes long position in such securities.

RZZ—WE+—A=+—80 T Fxt (28 x
ARBLB ) 3 AR AR 1,292,220,000 B ik (7 # A g
HERAARBEREETRANLNTS% - ERHA
1,292,220,000f& f& 1 - MiEBIRE KRR D BIHEHR
EHMO60% K40% - T—F L L2 EHBRF -

FEEBRERRFD BIFHHLEE0% R4A0% s o
It - B8R AR 2 I A /9 1,292,220,000 B f& 15 A
HEHE -

Fortress Japan Opportunity |l GP LLC 4 Hybrid GP
Holdings LLCZ%&# % © M Hybrid GP Holdings LLC
8l f Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.& & #% A ©
Fortress Operating Entity | L.P. i FIG Corp.({E&¥
WMABA)HEAO001% MFIG Corp. Bl & Fortress
Investment Group LLC 2 & A °

As at 31 December 2014, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, had
deemed interests in 1,292,220,000 Shares, representing an approximate total
of 75% of the existing issued share capital of the Company. The 1,292,220,000
Shares were held by Asiaciti, which is 60% and 40% owned by Renowned Brand
and East Profit respectively. East Profit is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Yiping.

Renowned Brand and East Profit held 60% and 40% equity interest respectively in
Asiaciti. As such, it is deemed to be interested in the 1,292,220,000 Shares held
by Asiaciti.

Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC was wholly owned by Hybrid GP Holdings
LLC, which was in turn wholly owned by Fortress Operating Entity | L.P.. Fortress
Operating Entity | L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by FIG Corp. as general partner,
which was in turn wholly owned by Fortress Investment Group LLC.



5. Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P.F Fortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC({EAEEES
# A) - Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A)
Holdings L.P. KX Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund
Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P.% 5l # & & * #0.01% -
34.34% [ 44.42% ©

6. Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd. [ Fortress
IFC Asian Investments Holdings L.P.2&#4& + i
Fortress IFC Asian Investments Holdings L.P. 8l
Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P.} Fortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC({EAE @A %
AN)DREBEFRHI74.99% £ 0.01% °

7. Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLCH
Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. X Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar)
Holdings L.P. 5 BlI#EA & F &9 34.34% % 44.42% ©

8. Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings
L.P. &2 Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar)
Holdings L.P. % Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP
LP.(fEBEEAEBA)HESE0.01% i Fortress Japan
Opportunity Il GP L.P. Bll| Fortress Japan Opportunity
IIGP LLC(#EmE @AM AR 0.01% °

9. ABRFAAERARR AR _T-—NFLtALA
MAGEPRARAEERAEREE - ZFBRHBED
HHBMEFRETROINABRO - F2Q8ER
388,000,000 THEHENR_T-—HNFLA-_+H
HEMRE - NARSHE  ARRAHAERERE
ANBHRERELABESNER °

ME - HERME LHES

BRAFHABREEIN  BE-_ZT-WFE+_H
=+—HLEEFE  ARFAHETAHERFL
EREE HENEREAARFLETWES -

BEBEHE

pl 3 A 23 ) 4840 58 2 AR R o B 2 B 80K 2B
THEAMELBERNEX  WAARBA
MG BRI R 2 B EH R o

5. Fortress Asian Investment Holdings L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by Fortress
IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC as general partner, 34.34% by Fortress
Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings L.P. and 44.42% by Fortress Japan
Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P., respectively.

6. Schiavona Investment Holdings Ltd. was wholly owned by Fortress IFC Asian
Investments Holdings L.P., which was in turn owned as to 74.99% by Fortress
Asian Investment Holdings L.P. and 0.01% by Fortress IFC Asian Investment
Holdings GP LLC as general partner, respectively.

7. Fortress IFC Asian Investment Holdings GP LLC was owned as to 34.34% by
Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings L.P. and 44.42% by Fortress
Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P., respectively.

8. Each of Fortress Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Yen A) Holdings L.P. and Fortress
Japan Opportunity Fund Il (Dollar) Holdings L.P. was owned as to 0.01% by
Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP L.P. as general partner, which was in turdn
owned as to 0.01% by Fortress Japan Opportunity Il GP LLC as general partner.

9. Capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the same meanings as
those defined in the announcement of the Company dated 7 July 2014. These
Shares are the underlying Shares to be issued upon the full conversion of the
Bonds. Completion of the subscription of the Bonds at the principal amount of
HKD388,000,000 took place on 25 July 2014. As at the date of this report, the
Company has not been notified by the noteholder of its intention to convert the
Bonds.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no purchase,
sale and redemption of any listed securities of the Company by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition dated 21 November 2013 (the “Deed
of Non-Competition”) was entered into between the Company and
the controlling Shareholders, including the Directors namely Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung, Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung,
Renowned Brand, East Profit and Asiaciti, who have undertaken to the
Company that they will not (1) directly or indirectly, either on their own
account, in conjunction with, on behalf of or through any person, body
corporate, partnership, joint venture or other contractual arrangement
and whether for profit or otherwise, participate, acquire or hold any
right or interest, provide any support to, financial or otherwise, or
otherwise be interested, involved or engaged in any business that
directly or indirectly competes with Restricted Business (as defined
below), or acquire or hold shares or interests (in each case whether
as a Shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether for profit,
reward or otherwise) in any company or business that competes
directly or indirectly with the Restricted Business (as defined below);
and (2) engage, invest, participate or be interested (economically
or otherwise) in any property development business involving the
development of residential and commercial properties for sale;
property management business involving the provision of property
management services to the Company’s residential customers; and
property leasing business involving the development, leasing and
sub-leasing of commercial properties owned by the Company or
independent third parties (the “Restricted Business”).

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each
of the controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance by them
and their associates with the Deed of Non-Competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of
Non-Competition and assessed whether the controlling Shareholders
have abided by the non-competition undertaking. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have not been in breach of the non-competition undertaking during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors held any interests in
any business that competes directly against the Company or any of its
jointly controlled entities and subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2014.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Following the Listing of the Company on 11 December 2013, the
transactions between the Group and certain connected persons of the
Group became continuing connected transactions. The Company has
applied and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from, among
others, strict compliance with the announcement and/or Shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules for
the continuing connected transactions set out in the prospectus of the
Company dated 29 November 2013.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed below by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing
connected transactions disclosed below:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(i) have exceeded the cap.

A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company are

as follows:

(a) ERGRETBERRBIBRRMER (@) Continuing connected transactions which are exempt
B EBEZEHRAETNAEEES from the circular and independent shareholders’
W FEBERAERENHARZE approval requirement, but subject to the reporting,
BREXS annual review and announcement requirements under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

MEEE Property lease
BREBRERSE R ¥ T HEM Our subsidiary, Guangzhou Times Hongtai Investment Co., Ltd.
THRRERREERAB([EINESE]) (“Guangzhou Hongtai”), leased certain properties situated at
RZE—EFRAA-TOHEHEINEE 2601 and 2602, 26th Floor, No. 410 Dongfeng Road, Yuexiu
wE((HEWHZE])  AAFWBRAAE District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, the PRC (collectively
NEZHAENTRREROCESEEA the “PRC Premises”) with an aggregate GFA of approximately
RAal([RREREE )R —F LK 1,079.13 sq.m. from Guangzhou Times Development
T AR B ERE EMN T AR R R K Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. (“Times Development Group”)
41055 26182601 & 2602ZE ) & T ¥ and Ms. Li Yiping, pursuant to a lease agreement (the “Lease
¥(mmlhEmE])  #2FEHENR Agreement”) entered between Times Development Group
1,079.13F¥ K BZE—FFMHH— and Ms. Li Yiping and Guangzhou Hongtai on 24 May 2010
AkRE_F—=F=ZA=+—HI " A& for a term of three years effective from 1 April 2010 until 31
H=-F - ZHEHBZECR T —=F= March 2013. The Lease Agreement was renewed on 20 March
A-+H#E:  BH#HA-ZT—=ZF-X 2013 and amended and supplemented by a supplemental
AZ+ N \BRERHEEEEETER agreement dated 28 June 2013, the principal terms of which
M7 BEEZEREINEOT - are set out as follows:

B HBHA BHEEER SREE HEAR kL

Approximate Monthly Duration of
Location Contracting Parties gross floor area Rental Intended use agreement
(FFK) (AR#)
(sq.m.) (RMB)
REIERE EMT BMER(EP) 1,079.13 107913 #Az —E-=FpNA-HZ
|55 R 5% —F- “R=1-
wasoinsas  BREESEE R
FNuL(£F)
2601 and 2602, 26/F, No. 410 Guangzhou Hongtai Office 1 April 2013 to

Dongfeng Road, (as tenant) 31 December 2015
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province, the PRC Times Development

Group and Ms. Li
Yiping (as landlords)
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Under the terms of the Lease Agreement, Guangzhou Hongtai
is obliged to pay an aggregate annual rental of RMB1,294,956
(exclusive of management fees). Pursuant to the Lease
Agreement, Guangzhou Hongtai and Times Development
Group have agreed on the fixed rental fees (“Pricing Policy”)
for the three years ended 31 December 2015. The Company
confirmed that it has conducted the transactions contemplated
under the Lease Agreement during the year ended 31
December 2014 in accordance with the Pricing Policy. Our
PRC legal adviser, Commerce & Finance, confirmed that
the terms of the Lease Agreement are valid, binding and
enforceable against the parties thereto.

DTZ, an independent valuer, has confirmed that the terms and
conditions of the Lease Agreement are fair and reasonable.

Historical transaction values

In 2014 and 2013, Guangzhou Hongtai had incurred an
aggregate rental of RMB1,294,956 and RMB1,294,956,
respectively (exclusive of management fees) to Times
Development Group and Ms. Li Yiping in relation to the leasing
of the PRC Premises.

Annual caps

Pursuant to the terms of the Lease Agreement, the
annual rentals payable by Guangzhou Hongtai to Times
Development Group and Ms. Li Yiping will be RMB1,294,956,
RMB1,294,956 and RMB1,294,956 for the three financial
years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively
(the “Property Lease Caps”), which are determined on the
basis of the prevailing market rate and on normal commercial
terms.

Listing Rules implication

Given that (i) Mr. Cen Jiancai (Z#8t), father of Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung who is a controlling Shareholder and
an executive Director, owns 90% of the equity interests in
Times Development Group; and (ii) Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong, the
younger brother of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung holds the remaining
10% equity interest in Times Development Group, Times
Development Group is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Ms. Li Yiping is the wife
of Mr. Shum Chiu Hung. Ms. Li Yiping is an associate of Mr.
Shum Chiu Hung and therefore is regarded as a connected
person of the Company.
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Given that one of the applicable percentage ratios under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules in respect of the above
transactions is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions under the Lease Agreement will be exempt from
the circular and independent Shareholders’ approval but
subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Confirmation from the Directors

The Directors (including our independent non-executive
Directors) are of the view that (i) the Property Lease Caps
are determined through arm’s length negotiations between
the parties to the Lease Agreement and (ii) the continuing
connected transactions described above (including the Property
Lease Caps) have been entered into on normal commercial
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of our
Shareholders as a whole and in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements,
to the extent they are not waived by the Stock Exchange, in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect
to the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2014.

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2014 is contained
in note 38(a)(i) to financial statements. The transactions
summarised in 38(a)(i) of such note fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transactions” under the Listing Rules.
The transactions summarised in note 38(b)(i) and (ii) fall under
the definition of “connected transactions” under the Listing
Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB20.3 million.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report for a summary of the major events that
have occurred in relation to the Company since the balance sheet
date.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed together with the management and
external auditors the accounting principles and policies adopted by
the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code of Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange as its own code of
corporate governance.

Save for the deviation disclosed in the corporate governance report in
this annual report, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

STATUS OF THE RECTIFICATION

Lease registration

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 November
2013 (the “Prospectus”), as at 22 November 2013, the Group entered
into 572 lease agreements as lessors with different tenants, out of
which 330 lease agreements had yet to be registered with the relevant
government authorities. Through the rectifying measures as disclosed
in the Prospectus, 324 lease agreements had yet to be registered with
the relevant government authorities as at 31 December 2014.

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance non-compliance

As disclosed in the Prospectus, applications were made to the High
Court of Hong Kong (“Court”) for relief and an extension of time for
laying all the profit and loss accounts and balance sheets by the
certain subsidiaries of the Company. On 30 January 2014, it was
ordered by the Court that such applications were refused.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 27 May
2015 (Wednesday) to 29 May 2015 (Friday), both days inclusive, in
order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend the forthcoming AGM. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 26 May
2015 (Tuesday).

The record date for qualifying to receive the proposed final dividend is
19 June 2015 (Friday). In order to determine the right of Shareholders
entitled to receive the proposed final dividend, which is subject to
the approval by Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM, the register
of members of the Company will also be closed from 17 June 2015
(Wednesday) to 19 June 2015 (Friday), both days inclusive. All
transfer accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
before 4:30 p.m. on 16 June 2015 (Tuesday).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules during the period from 1 January 2014 to 5 November 2014.

During the period from 6 November 2014 to the date of this report,
the percentage of the public float fell below the prescribed public
float requirement under the Listing Rules. As at date of this report,
approximately 24.45% of the shares of the Company remained in the
public hands. The Company will take appropriate steps to restore the
required minimum public float as soon as reasonably practicable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as independent auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Chiu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance.

The Company has been conducting its business according to the
principles of the CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
Save for the deviation disclosed in this annual report, in the opinion of
the Directors, the Company has complied with all the code provision
as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.

In accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Shum Chiu
Hung currently assumes the roles of both the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Shum is one of the founders
of the Group and has extensive experience in property development.
The Board believes that by holding both roles, Mr. Shum will be able
to provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows
for more effective and efficient business planning and decisions as
well as execution of long-term business strategies of the Group. As
such, the structure is beneficial to the business prospects of the
Group. Furthermore, the Company’s present management structure
comprises sufficient number of independent non-executive directors,
and thus the Board believes that a balance of power and authority
have been and will be maintained.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
its directors. The Company arranged an insurance in early February
2014 with 12 months coverage starting from March 2014 in respect
of legal actions against its Directors.
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THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises 9 members,
consisting of six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Guan Jianhui

Mr. Bai Xihong

Mr. Li Qiang

Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong

Mr. Niu Jimin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Sun Hui

Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho
(appointed on 21 March 2014)

Mr. Wong Wai Man

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company also complied Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, which
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The Directors have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other, except that Mr. Shum Chiu
Hung, Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, is the elder brother of Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong, another
Executive Director of the Company.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
identity and the time involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to
disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant status, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to
time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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The Company has arranged briefings about the responsibility of the
directors during 2014. All Directors have participated in continuous

BFRAZERFHNESOMNERFE  FAM professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
FIB R skills in the year 2014, a summary of training during the year is as
follows:
BNESRER
HibEBAE B
Briefings on
the responsibility
of directors and
EERE Name of Director other relevant topics
E A Mr. Shum Chiu Hung v
RIS Mr. Guan Jianhui v
HigHEE Mr. Bai Xihong v
FoR%kAE Mr. Li Qiang v
BRI Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong v
FRESTHE Mr. Niu Jimin v
FEu L Ms. Sun Hui v
FRARELT Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho v
(RZE—MFE=A=+—AEZE) (appointed on 21 March 2014)
HENXGE Mr. Wong Wai Man v
MREnME e £ Mr. Lin Rupeng v

(RZZE—mE=A=-+—RHEHE)

EERITHRAR
RIBEERER TR ST AR EA2.1IRMMR
o ERRITRERNBIEEEMRED » Y h
RRIALHEE -

REARBREORRRE  SEELLERE
EEIRERTHER - BERNREHETEDN
LERLR EFERRAR-ALEEERER
THASNBHEHASENEGASLEER
e ARBREENATEARNSRERERE
EeLENRRENOLBEYE -

EENZEERERESR
ERTEFHEERARAR_ZT—=F+—A4
TABRIZBRBAR - EHE LT HBRR
HM=F  WAIRREREE R HEEEERKT A
ARIE e

(resigned on 21 March 2014)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals.

Under the current organization structure of the Company, Mr. Shum
Chiu Hung is the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer. With his extensive experience in the property industry, the
Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. The balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprise experienced and high caliber individuals.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 19 November 2013 for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and may be terminated in
accordance with the respective terms of the service contracts.
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Ms. Sun Hui and Mr. Wong Wai Man, both are independent non-
executive Directors, have signed a letter of appointment on 19
November 2013 for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date. Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho, an independent non-
executive Director, has signed a letter of appointment on 21 March
2014 for an initial term of three years commencing from 21 March
2014.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by Shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after appointment and any new Director appointed as an addition to
the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders
at the next following annual general meeting of the Company after
appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring the appointment, re-election and succession planning of
Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly. Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, fourteen days notice will be given.
The agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to
the Directors or committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the papers
and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting and
committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
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HE-Z-—NF+-_A=+—HULFE EF During the year ended 31 December 2014, four Board meetings were
EERTIRNESSSELENESHEZS held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings
EERMNBRENRTE is set out in the table below:
BHERE
A ERE
Attended/
EENE Name of Director Eligible to attend
b Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 4/4
BRI Mr. Guan Jianhui 4/4
SEZP Mr. Bai Xihong 4/4
gt A Mr. Li Qiang 4/4
IR E Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 4/4
G EBESLEE Mr. Niu Jimin 4/4
BERTL Ms. Sun Hui 4/4
BERARELT Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho 3/3
(RZE—NF=ZA=-+—HEZT) (appointed on 21 March 2014)
\mEXSEE Mr. Wong Wai Man 4/4
Mo fis 5 & Mr. Lin Rupeng 1/1

(RZE—ME=A -+ HEE)

ETREXZNRESTR
ARBERMERETETESRINTRT
A - BRI £ TR B M 8% + P E A0 AR 2 <7
ARR - -RATRESFHARBENRR EF
BRAREN#BEZE_FT—NFT_A=1+—H1Lt
FEDETERESTAH -

BLEMBEBE  ARABITFDHEMA—EEGERD

BERFRETRIFFATEENREZE SR HNBE H
TR MEAIREZERR RN ARAFAR

HENEEERAETEEARARS °

Exenisg
EXGHARFMBERFTEREBRRE B
HmoHEREE—VBREE ERRBLE
E ANEZEMNEAREERS  BEARS(H
BIEAREESNRERE)  WHEE  RE
EENHMIBEMBREEZHE - EENETT
RERERASRBIEEXER BEAHAR
AR FETRBBAARRSREEEE
TTBLFEA -

(resigned on 21 March 2014)

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code of Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Since the Listing Date, the Company has also adopted its own code
of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model Code for
the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access
and to consult with the Company’s senior management independently.
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The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and delegated the corporate
governance duties to the Audit Committee which include:

(@)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 8
to the financial statements.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report. Remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2014 is within the range
of RMB800,001 to RMB2,000,000 each.

Directors’ Liability Insurance
The Company has arranged an insurance with 12 months coverage
starting from March 2014 in respect of legal action against its
Directors in early February 2014.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Shum Chiu Hung (chairman), Ms. Sun Hui and Dr.
Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho, two of them are independent non-executive
Directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as education background, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision.

The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held and the attendance record of the
Nomination Committee members is set out in the table below:

BHERE

A ERE

Attended/

EENA Name of Director Eligible to attend

il atas Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 2/2

BREL L Ms. Sun Hui 2/2

BRRHEL Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho 11
(RZE—NF=A=-+—HEZE) (appointed on 21 March 2014)

Man g ot 4 Mr. Lin Rupeng 11

(R=F—ME=A=+—ARE)

REZEGENEBUFFNTEZTNELIE
EESEELLE  BEEXRLE  BHATEF
REEEEREXYZZZETRARELIEL
BUFNTES - FHHEERCERESS
i

(resigned on 21 March 2014)

The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors; proposed re-election of the
retiring directors Mr. Shum Chiu Hung, Mr. Guan Jianhui, Mr. Bai
Xihong and proposed the appointment of Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho
as an independent non-executive Director and recommended to the
Board for approval.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” in relation to the
nomination and appointment of new directors, which sets out: the
selection of board candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
language, cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

The above measurements were also reviewed and adopted when
the Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and experience to
the Company’s business, the Nomination Committee confirmed that
the existing Board was appropriately structured and no change was
required.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely Ms.
Sun Hui (chairman), Mr. Shum Chiu Hung and Mr. Wong Wai Man,
two of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board for approval on the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management, to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management/to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, two meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held and the attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

BHERE,

R

Attended/

EEHE Name of Director Eligible to attend
HBEZL Ms. Sun Hui 2/2
= alh: s Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 2/2
BEX A Mr. Wong Wai Man 2/2
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed performance and the
remuneration of Directors and senior management for the year 2014,
as well as the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all
Directors and senior management. As a result, the Remuneration
Committee has made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Wong
Wai Man (chairman), Ms. Sun Hui and Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho,
all of them are independent non-executive Directors. The main duties
of the Audit Committee include the following:

- To review the financial statements and reports before
submission to the Board;

- To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standard and discuss with external auditor the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;

- To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issue, and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The written terms of reference of Audit Committee are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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HE_Z-—NFE+_A=+—BHIFE  F&Z During the year ended 31 December 2014, two meetings of the
ZEECRT2ONERZESERANESERZ Audit Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit
BENEBNFEZESHNBRERTE Committee members is set out in the table below:
BHERE,
R E
Attended/
EENE Name of Director Eligible to attend
BENX KA Mr. Wong Wai Man 2/2
BEz+t Ms. Sun Hui 2/2
BREREL Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho 171
(RZE—NF=A=+—BHEZF) (appointed on 21 March 2014)
Man s % A Mr. Lin Rupeng 11
(R-—Z—mME=ZA=-+—HEMT) (resigned on 21 March 2014)

ERZESHUBRNRES aRER - AE The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
EE(BREARARISH AV B ERBFAREEDN compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
BlR - -BERF  HIREBERBEELTRR) A resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
BB IR R MR R DA N 4B BB O BB A% SR Em 7E and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
Wil c EETTWERBMEZZESHNHE - L function), risk management systems and processes and the re-
T~ R sk B8 o SN 4 BRAM VB ) B9 (T ] #E /B 2 appointment of the external auditor. The Board has not deviated from
E any recommendation given by the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

BENRBHARG RENBRRATRFEEN They also reviewed final results of the Company and its subsidiaries

EHEEE  URHIINEZEMRSTETERZ for the fiscal year as well as the audit report prepared by the external

BTN ERERMERENOZERSE - auditor relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of
audit.
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General Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2014, one annual general
meeting was held on 30 April 2014 and the attendance of the

g MENEEHFZRRBFRSNBERE individual Directors at the annual general meeting is set out in the
RT&: table below:
BHERE,
A ERE
Attended/
EERE Name of Director Eligible to attend
B A Mr. Shum Chiu Hung 11
RAEIE ST A Mr. Guan Jianhui 11
SEZP s Mr. Bai Xihong 11
FREA Mr. Li Qiang 1/1
EIE & Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 1/1
G+EREAE Mr. Niu Jimin 11
FEZL Ms. Sun Hui 11
BERARELT Dr. Wong, Kennedy, Ying Ho 11
(RZZE—WHE=ZA=-+—REZE) (appointed on 21 March 2014)
BEXESE Mr. Wong Wai Man 1/1
s A (RN —W4F =8 —+—H&T) Mr. Lin Rupeng (resigned on 21 March 2014) 0/0w
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Note:

(1) Mr. Lin Rupeng did not attend the annual general meeting held on 30 April 2014

as he resigned before the date of annual general meeting.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in respect
of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2014 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditors of the Company regarding
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
page 88 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard
Shareholders investments and the Company’s assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Group’s Internal Control Team plays an important role in
monitoring the internal governance of the Company. The major
duties of the Internal Control Team are regulating and reviewing the
internal control and compliance-related matters of the Company and
conducting comprehensive audits of all branches and subsidiaries of
the Company on a regular basis.

The Internal Control Team reports twice a year to the Board.

The Audit Committee has received an internal control report prepared
by Internal Control Team and considered the internal control system
remains effective and no material issue is required to be brought to
the Board's attention.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s independent auditors, Ernst & Young,
for audit and non-audit services amounted to RMB2,700,000 and
RMB3,242,000, respectively. The non-audit services mainly
consisted of tax advisory, review and other reporting services.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Mei Jing (“Ms. Mei”), one of our joint company secretaries, was
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations were followed. Ms. Mei resigned
on 21 February 2014 and the Board appointed Mr. Chan Wai Kin (“Mr.
Chan”) as a joint company secretary on 21 February 2014.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, a senior manager of KCS Hong
Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as another
joint company secretary to assist Ms. Mei/Mr. Chan to discharge
her/his duties as company secretary of the Company. Following the
resignation of Ms. Mei, the primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Mr. Chan, one of the joint company secretaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chan and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2014.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the Board Committee
of the Company will attend the annual general meeting to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of the Company will
also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and contents of the auditors’
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
Shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and the
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.timesgroup.cn, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings and Putting
Forward Proposals

In accordance with the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less
than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, shareholders who wish to
propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the articles of association
of the Company for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting
and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements
and procedures are set out in the section headed “Procedures for
convening an extraordinary general meeting” in this report.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could email their enquiries to Mr. Chan Wai
Kin at his email address: kennychan@timesgroup.cn.
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EEXHMEN CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

ARBRERZZE—=F+—A+NLhBRH—H An amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
LIER R EFNNARRAREBERE MM of the Company was adopted by the Company on 19 November 2013
ERETMHBAER HE=E_Z—NOF+=A and became effective on the Listing Date. There was no amendment
—+—HIEFE  BEHAAFTMNERE X tiE made to the constitutional documents of the Company during the year
ITHEMIEET o ended 31 December 2014.
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To the shareholders of Times Property Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Times
Property Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 218, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 6 February 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

BHE_ZFT—UF+_HA=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2014
—E-IF —T—=F
2014 2013
BtaE AR%FT ARBTFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
A REVENUE 5 10,418,948 9,694,735
fHE A Cost of sales (7,232,639) (7,354,711)
EF GROSS PROFIT 3,186,309 2,340,024
NS g Other income and gains 5 104,526 78,700
HELRMSHEEKAR Selling and marketing costs (483,398) (411,137)
THRAX Administrative expenses (304,343) (285,629)
E A 2 Other expenses (40,482) (16,493)
B & B AN Finance costs 7 (231,959) (87,706)
FE (5 Bt 2 R A Share of profits and losses of associates 4,160 2,371
B B4 A R ;8 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,234,813 1,620,130
FIiSfAX Income tax expense 10 (881,131) (646,200)
FERHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,353,682 973,930
TH B IBEAG - Attributable to:
VAN/NEIEZ RSN Owners of the Company 11 1,279,026 987,022
JEVER = Non-controlling interests 74,656 (13,092)
1,353,682 973,930
EARERESZRTRTA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EhHERAER ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
AR Basic
— FEFHE — For profit for the year 13 RMB74 cents RMB75 cents
AR¥745 AREE755
i Diluted
— FEHNHE — For profit for the year 13 RMB72 cents RMB75 cents
AR¥T25 AREE755

AEERMNERMNRENFBERERPHRE

fsr12 »

disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE_FT—UF+_H=+—HLFE Year ended 31 December 2014

—E—F —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥ T ARBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERNH PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,353,682 973,930
Hit 2 E KA OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEBRRGFESRES Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to
BamEMmEmEEE - profit or loss in subsequent periods:
MEBINETBHIE K E5E Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (21,562) (9,748)
FEHMEZEERS OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (21,562) (9,748)
FEXHBALLE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 1,332,120 964,182
TA B IBE Attributable to:
KARHEE A Owners of the Company 1,257,464 977,274
eI = Non-controlling interests 74,656 (13,092)
1,332,120 964,182

2014 £ E & Annual Report 2014 00



iR a B EIR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZF—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

—E-mF T4
2014 2013
Bt AR¥TF T AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
& L Property, plant and equipment 14 885,012 633,306
AR B EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,385,474 1,385,474
"EME Investment properties 16 1,397,940 1,582,000
REEERRIMIEE Investments in associates 18 49,465 45,304
AHHERE Available-for-sales investment 20,000 —
EIEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 19 209,574 84,737
FERBEELTE Total non-current assets 3,947,465 3,731,321
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
A LA ERIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 1,041,121 755,881
FEE R Properties under development 20 17,304,980 13,217,733
BERTHENENDE Completed properties held for sale 21 1,777,273 803,464
EWE S IE Trade receivables 22 1,224,877 472,532
FENFIE - ZE R Prepayments, deposits and
H b W SRR other receivables 23 1,872,581 1,895,624
JiE i B 2 N R B KB Amount due from an associate 24 222,110 70,210
AR ERE Available-for-sale investments — 3,100
TR B K Tax prepayments 25 276,560 222349
SR HIERITF Restricted bank deposits 26 2,691,848 1,946,083
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 2,725,737 1,721,481
MEB)EEETR Total current assets 29,137,087 21,108,457
RBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B E S F0E Trade payables 27 3,556,068 2,413,862
H b & 5 08 K FE 5T 5RIE Other payables and accruals 28 10,717,343 9,392,801
FFRBITERREMER Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 29 1,786,277 1,977,494
B BT 5K Tax payable 25 937,256 397,896
mE B EERE Total current liabilities 16,996,944 14,182,053
RBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 12,140,143 6,926,404
EEHAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES 16,087,608 10,657,725

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



—E—F —E—=F
2014 2013

BfaE AR¥ T ARBTFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EERAERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 16,087,608 10,657,725
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFERITER R EME Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 29 9,005,104 5,425,054
AT ES Convertible bonds 30 318,105 —
REFRIBEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 1,047,344 1,224,250
EmEBaERRE Total non-current liabilities 10,370,553 6,649,304
FEE Net assets 5,717,055 4,008,421
R EQUITY
RAGEE AEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
%N Share capital 31 135,778 135,778
[EgiE Reserves 33 5,055,304 3,669,965
BamoRHRE Proposed final dividend 12 247,135 188,486
5,438,217 3,994,229
IEVE IR M = Non-controlling interests 278,838 14,192
M 4B R Total equity 5,717,055 4,008,421
= 81 $EBR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Ji Min
E -l
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEZ—MMF+=H=T—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2014
LNEE PN
Attributable to owners of the Company

i EERH = AR
e HEE  AARR  EREE MEe  EHRE  EEAE  ABRR it Ba  BaiE

Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed Non-
Share premium  Contributed Capital surplus— translation Retained final controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interests equity

NRETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTT AREKTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETZ
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOOO  RMBOOD

(Hi:t31) (HaE33m)) (Ha33e) (H#330d)
(note 31) (note 33(b)) ~ (note 33(c))  (nate 33(c)
HZ5-=F-A-8 At 1 January 2013 — 1452565 8113 329 1264% (16971) 111829 — 2797% 486387 3206113
FE2ERA/(BiR) 8% Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - — - - — 9748 971022 — 9124 (1309 %4182
ERZRENES(MER0) Transfer to reserve funds (note 33(d) - - - - 4779 - (4179) - - - —
AEERREAR Deregistration of a subsidiary - - - - (2807) - 2807 - - - -
YENBLT Aoguistton of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 103 1033
Wi s iEs Acquisiion of non-controlling interests - - - 6,879 - - - - 6879 (47945%)  (472577)
RINBLA Establishment of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 10000 10000
BALE Capitalisation issue 101,827 (101,827) - - - - - - - - -
BEEmHRAHES Issue of shares in connection with the listing 391 1188051 - - — — - — 1222002 — 122200
BOEL5 Share issue expenses - (67739 - - - - - - (51739 - (57739)
Bl &) Divicend declared - (83913 - — - — - - (83913 - (873913)
“E-EEEAERe(ME12) Proposed final 2013 dividend (note 12) - (188480) - - - - — 183486 - - -
RZF-=5+ZA=+-R At 31 December 2013 135778 1418651 8113 38174 271,481 (26,719) 1,960,265 18848 3,994,229 14192 4008421
FNEREAEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
K EERH R
s BEE  HARE  EAGHRE MEE  EARE BREEE RERE @t BE  ERfE
Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed Non-
Share  premium  Contributed Capital surplus  translation  Retained final controlling Total
capital account surplus reserve funds reserve profits ~ dividend Total interests equity

AREFT ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETRZ AREFT ARETRT AREFT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(H&E31) (HizE33(b) (B&33(c) (B 33(d)
(note 31) (note 33(b))  (note 33(c))  (note 33(c))

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 135778 1,418,651 8,113 38174 271481  (26,719) 1,960,265 188,486 3,994,229 14,192 4,008,421

EERARN/ (B Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year — - = = = (21,562) 1,279,026 — 1,257,464 74656 1,332,120
EREFEMER( Transfer to reserve funds (note 33(d) - - - — 194062 —  (194,062) - - - -
FERERLE Capital contribution by non-controlling inerests - - - - - - - - — 189990 189,990
BHLE-HHBLTER Partial disposal of nterest in a subsidiary

(TEXEER) without loss of control - - — 375010 - - - — 375010 — 375010
BRI ZE-ZERGRE (s Final 2013 dividend paid (note 12) = = = = = = —  (188486) (188,486) —  (188,486)
“E-MEEERERE(MEL2)  Proposed final 2014 dividend (note 12) — (247,135 - - - - — 24713 - - -
RZF-BE+ZA=+-R At 31 December 2014 135,778 1,171516* 8113*  413,184*  465543* (48,281)* 3,045,229+ 247,135 5438217 278,838 5,717,055
* ZEREROEGEAEMBIRARTIGEEHEE - * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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mERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

HE_ZT—WWF+=_A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2014

—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
[t % AR®Fr AR Fr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RETHFBHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 5 A A1) Profit before tax 2,234,813 1,620,130
FEE Adjustments for:
B & AR Finance costs 7 231,959 87,706
iR hap RN E = Fy Share of profits and losses of associates (4,160) (2,371)
AT R E AR B A Bank and other interest income (17,900) (9,574)
e Depreciation 14 61,514 55,648
HEWMERABENES Changes in fair value of
investment properties 16 (57,800) (42,000)
BERTHIEDENWERN Reversal of impairment

ol B & o] of completed properties held for sale — (1,665)
TENRIE ke RHM Reversal of impairment of prepayments,

JE YR IE B Rk (B 88 1] deposits and other receivables — (1,000)
HEWE  WMEMIRHEEER Loss on disposal of items of property,

/&5 18 plant and equipment 235 34
k= NN Gains on disposal of subsidiaries — (1,414)
Uk BE B BB A R M i Gains on acquisition of a subsidiary — (7,685)
HEITHEERENSE Loss on disposal of

available-for-sale investments 646 —
MBI EERAEZEREDN  Gain on early repayment of

& debts of independent investors 5 (10,738) —
AMEESFNITET ALY Changes in fair value of the

N BENE Derivative component of

the Convertible Bonds 30 4,767 —

2,443,336 1,697,809

TEA T e M & FRIE A G N Increase in prepaid land lease payments (285,240) (340,190)

FERL Decrease in inventories — 1,032

A 85 FR W) 3 A9 38 0 Increase in properties under development (3,093,047) (3,065,490)
ERTRHIEENENMEN (Increase)/decrease in completed

(&), E properties held for sale (973,808) 1,839,755
FEUNE 5 3R I8 /Y15 0 Increase in trade receivables (752,345) (439,986)
TEN A ~ 1=e R HMER Increase in prepayments,

FRIEHYIE IN deposits and other receivables 3,683 1,594,956

2014 £ E & Annual Report 2014 @0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

HE—_ZT—WWF+-_A=+—HI-FE Year ended 31 December 2014

—F-mF —E-=F
2014 2013
it &% AR®F AR¥F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FE U & AR A R Y Decrease in an amount due
SKIB Y D from the ultimate holding company — 16
JE LS BS: & 2 B) Y SRIE /Y 3E N Increase in an amount due
from an associate (151,900) (6,330)
JE U Z= = A FRIE R Decrease in amounts due from directors — 3,437
JERTE ST, (KL ) Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 1,118,109 (511,273)
H b B FOIE R E R FIA R Increase/(decrease) in other
# i, Cri ) payables and accruals 1,688,006 (45,396)
FE T 2 = /9 FRIE AV 38 0 Increase in an amount due to a director — 1,006
PR B R 1717 R A9 4L hi Increase in restricted bank deposits 26 (745,765) (1,048,784)
KEFHANES Cash used in operations (748,971) (319,438)
2 A B Interest received 17,900 9,574
BF B Interest paid (1,027,664) (614,545)
[EARETS %Fﬁ S Corporate income tax paid (421,126) (301,573)
BT i B E R Land appreciation tax paid (276,599) (230,563)
KEEEFEAMIEESREFEE  Net cash flows used in operating activities (2,456,460) (1,456,545)
RETHEBHNRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EEME BELXREBEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (49,429) (204,067)
HEMHEEEIRENATISKRIE  Proceeds from sale of
available-for-sales investments 2,454 —
HEWE  BELXEEE Proceeds from disposal of items of
K TS ?’X property, plant and equipment 2,432 464
WEHBA Acquisition of subsidiaries — (2,500)
W BB A ET (e B —TEE ) Acquisition of subsidiaries that
are not business = (251,004)
U B JE 4 Hﬂ% i Acquisition of non-controlling interests — (473,988)
HERB R Disposal of subsidiaries — (3,682)
KEEHERAMIRES REFE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (44,543) (934,777)
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—E-NF —E—=F
2014 2013
[t % AR®Fr AR Fr
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
METHAEBHNRERE CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
IR E Contribution from non-controlling interests 189,990 10,000
R EEER AT Increase in an amount due from
H9 5% I8 /9 38 AN the immediate holding company — (20,975)
AR EHEITRTSRIA Proceeds from issue of Convertible Bonds 30 306,213 —
HGIRITE R R H AL SRR New bank loans and other borrowings 7,287,023 5,635,187
IRITE R R E A S RAE K Repayment of bank loans
and other borrowings (3,965,192) (3,603,752)
MBIREEEEAR Repayment of debts to
independent investors (510,509) —
A% B 53 ik Dividend distribution (188,486) —
HoHERBAFR Proceeds from partial disposal of
(3 4 20 45 ) 4 ) subsidiaries without loss of control
B P15 3018 375,010 —
f& BT RIS SRIB 58 Net proceeds from issue of shares — 1,164,263
MEFHELANBEIRE Net cash flows generated from
financing activities 3,494,049 3,184,723
REeERBESESEYEMF NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 993,046 793,401
FMReRBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 1,721,481 936,446
[EXRSFBNTE  FEE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 11,210 (8,366)
FRESRREZEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR 2,725,737 1,721,481
ReRBECEEBYHEHS ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re RIRTTHE S Cash and bank balances 26 5,417,585 3,667,564
W XBRBIRITFER Less: Restricted bank deposits 26 (2,691,848) (1,946,083)
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 2,725,737 1,721,481
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—E-NF =%
2014 2013
it &% AR¥F T AR¥Fx
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
RBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BB ME&HE Property, plant and equipment 14 4,882 361
LERWEB R R Investment in subsidiaries 17 — —
IRBEERE Total non-current assets 4,882 361
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TERNRIE - Ze REM Prepayments, deposits and
FE W F IR other receivables 357 273
FE U BT BB A Rl B9 A Amounts due from subsidiaries 17 4,852,915 1,356,235
SR HISRITIF IR Restricted bank deposits 26 1,282 —
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 150,011 785,876
MENEEETE Total current assets 5,004,565 2,142,384
REAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
H b &SRB R ERT IR Other payables and accruals 148,465 546,894
JE AT B B A B RO BB Amounts due to subsidiaries 17 127,887 116,133
mMEBBEERE Total current liabilities 276,352 663,027
RBEEFR NET CURRENT ASSETS 4,728,213 1,479,357
EERAERRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,733,095 1,479,718
FREBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FFERITER R EAMBER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 29 3,316,642 —
AR ES Convertible bonds 30 318,105 —
IERE B EREE Total non-current liabilities 3,634,747 —
FEE Net assets 1,098,348 1,479,718
= EQUITY
(&N Share capital 31 135,778 135,778
G Reserves 33 715,435 1,155,454
BEERAHRE Proposed final dividend 12 247,135 188,486
1,098,348 1,479,718
Y FHERR
Shum Chiu Hung Niu Ji Min
EE 2
Director Director

O@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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LFEEH
ARAARZZEZELF+—ATHARE
HEBREFE2ERRENHAESHEF
ML AE—HEREEREEALF &
T8 A Times Property (Holdings) Co.,
Limited e BREBER-_ZEZENF—H=+1H1
B@BAEm—EBEEIARE  ARFNE
8 B Times Property (Holdings) Co.,
Limited # & R K EZKR B R Q
Al I P EE M HE A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

AR/ —EREBRKRATF - RAFE
A ARBNMERAREREARKM
BFEDEIEREMERE  WXHE
ERYEER -

EERA ARANEERZERRABT IR
REEMARE([RBEMREEE
MM EEREERAR(NEE])
AR ERERARIRAEBEBARES
MR ERREERAF(ERER
Bl ERRERNKEEAEINAS S H
FE(ZSERE2EHREE -

KRR —_ZE—=F+=-A+—H
EEBBAERZFMBR AR ERLET

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 14
November 2007 under the name of Times Property (Holdings)
Co., Limited as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands.
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 24 January 2008,
the Company’s name was changed from Times Property
(Holdings) Co., Limited to Times Property Holdings Limited.
The registered office address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were mainly involved
in property development, property leasing and property
management in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Asiaciti Enterprises Ltd. (“Asiaciti”), which
was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and the
ultimate holding company is Renowned Brand Investments
Limited (“Renowned Brand”), which was incorporated in BVI.
Renowned Brand is wholly owned by Mr. Shum Chiu Hung
(“Mr. Shum”), the Founder of the Group.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 11 December 2013.
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2.1 REEE 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

AEBNGEAMBRRIDRIEERKR S
RRIZ B & 08 M H Bl FR B 15 3RS 2R
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F11E 76 % 587 5 A 8L % 15 1l 28 9 &6
(8RB RFZ I EREEE R B RRE
ZHWRE  RAPBFERLRGE
ME @ &FHREEEBKARFGRD(F
NRE)N D c KEPBRRIRE
FEERAEHRE  ARAREEFTEN
REME  ABRBEEFRARNSBRITE
TABARETAHRBERERI - &
BMBHREAARBTARE D25
BRBMREN  MEBEHNERAAZE
REMWTIT -

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which comprise all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Boards Committee
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance relating to the preparation of financial
statements, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in Sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, the embedded financial derivative component of the
Convertible Bonds and certain available-for-sale investments,
which have been measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
new interpretation for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
[FRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

IFRIC21 Levies

Amendments to 1AS 39

Amendments to IFRS 2
included in Annual
improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Definition of Vesting Condition*

Amendments to IFRS 3
included in Annual
improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Accounting for Contingent Consideration
in a Business Combination'

Amendments fo IFRS 13 Short-term Receivable and Payables
included in Annual
improvements 2010-2012
Cycle

Amendments to IFRS 1
included in Annual
improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Meaning of Effective IFRSS

1 Effective from 1 July 2014

The adoption of the revised standards and new interpretation
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.



2.3 RKREFMBVFMET RAEETE

RMGHEEALREEL
&G THMIBHMERE

BRmBREEN SHTAY
F9%

BRBBREEN RELHAEBLLAGAELER
FI0RREARE S HEAEHELER?
EHIE 285 (5 E]

BRBBREEN UEAEEFERNEHER?
F1R(BITX)

BRyBREEN EEEEEP’

F14%

BRBBREEN KEAOME®
F15%

BRGHERZ 165 TEIMERBHEFAMEE
RER g
F3I8HEMERT

G-l
F16HLER
SHEAE LR
iofE)

G- il
F19%MET

G- il
F2THRMERT

G- il #EHE’

F1RMET

BRUBREER REZE: EAGANED
F10% - ER FIshER?

BBRE LR
ERVEAEI
SRR 285
MET(Z2——5F)

R¥ EEINEY?

RE®HHE : ERH!

BUSBRRTOER L’

“E-Z¢3 SIEER A R ER MG
ZE-CFFH
MEEH#
“E——%3 SIEER A R ER MG
ZE-CERY
MEEH#
ZE-—#% SIBER I RS ER SR A2
“E-mERY
MEEH#
L RSB mELA-ARZEREOFEE
£
2 iég—ﬁi—ﬂ—EE/EZ&I%W@E’UEF%HHF&
X
3 ?é?*ti*ﬂ*EIEJZZ?%E%FSE’UEE,HHF&
X
4 R-ZT— \F— A — Bz %HANEEE
AR

s HR T RF—A—ARZRFRBNFEE
MR RA BRI M EER BB AER &
TEAAER

2.3 NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND

NEW DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE HONGKONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

IFRS9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 11

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 (2011)

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

Financial Instruments*

Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of interests in Joint Operation®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisatior?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions®
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements®
Discourse Inititative?

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation Exception?

Amendments to a number of IFRSs'

Amendments to a number of IFRSs'

Amendments to a number of IFRSs?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

5 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group
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2.3

2.4

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE HONG KONG
COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT YET
ADOPTED (CONT'D)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

In addition, the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015. The Group is in the process of
making assessment of the impact of these change.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of IAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate IFRSs.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, the embedded
financial derivative component of the Convertible Bonds and
certain available-for-sale investments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.



2.4 FESHBREE(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

AREEFE(E) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)
FIEAREBEREAMBRERTENIEE All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
MEELRBEDNERSARBEFNEE disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
BMEBEANREER ABBEIZUAT fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
AREBEERDE level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:
EF—H—- ERNEREEXBERNEED Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
HHRE(REAR) markets for identical assets or liabilities
FH - EREY AR BEAEMEBE Level 2— based on valuation techniques for which the
AWAEBR(EEME) &K lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
[E @ ABIENGESE measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly
FoH—- ERE QAR EETEMNEBE Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the
RNE)T A B &K E W A 2R lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
KL 1E A measurement is unobservable
RILEEMEERNAY B REERNE For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
ERBEME  A5EFEBRSREN statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
REFTHDE(ERE QAR EEFTER transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
ENMEBEANREESH ASRE)BTR reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
BERATRERER - is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the

end of each reporting period.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, prepaid land lease payments, financial
assets, investment properties and deferred tax assets), the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
[f such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 4.75%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms and 20%
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment 19%
Motor vehicles 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont'd)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in land and buildings held
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of investment
properties are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of
change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Leases

Leases, including subleases, where substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, for those assets owned by the
Group under operating leases, they are included in the non-
current assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases derived from lease and sublease arrangement are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group only had financial assets classified as “loans and
receivables” and “available-for-sale financial investments”
during the years.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in other income and gains, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other
expenses. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments is reported as interest income and
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Derecognition of financial assets (Cont’d)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or mare events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and
is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available
for sale are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
required judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans
and other borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and other borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss represent
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated as at the date of
initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Loans and other borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.



2.4 FERTRRBE(E)

THEHE(HE)

#EE (1)

AJ #2 iR (& %

WA MEESNERBERRRANE
MUTETANFEH  IREBEIES D

AR - R TZHERE - Al REESRDN
TTET AR RAFENE XA
EERMTERY - EMBREBLER
MAB/TETASN» NS BELS
HERRAERD - KZRAREMEF
RERTAVSPERRERERTET
ABn 2RO DE - 255 & #®EE
FRABEMONRXGRARTETABD
XA - EAEERDHNRFEA
MORNTHEAEEARBELY - F
BITET AR AR REFARERE

5
27
o ©

RIEBIEHMEE
MEBEETHEEEHBRIIUEHE
o Rl IEERESBARE -

ERELRABKRA-ERANFEAN
RIWERER‘R 2 —SRAEEDRK - =X
BAERBZHIEREER - RIEER
BB MRERKRIEERRSE A E M E
RAFAE BEXFEEHSBIERESS
AR HER -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)

Subsequent measurement (Cont’d)
Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded financial derivative, it is
separated from its debt component. On initial recognition, the
derivative component of the convertible bonds is measured
at fair value and presented as part of derivative financial
instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as the
debt component. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the debt and derivative components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the debt and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised. The
portion of the transaction costs relating to the debt component
is recognised initially as part of the debt. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments, representing prepayments for
leasehold land for development for future sale in the ordinary
course of business, are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value, of which those within normal operating cycle
are classified as current assets, while those out of the normal
operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale
after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs
directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be beyond the normal
operating cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred
to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an
apportionment of the total land and buildings costs attributable
to unsold properties. Net realisable value takes into account the
price ultimately expected to be realised, less estimated costs to
be incurred in selling the properties.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Retirement benefit scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end
of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@)  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to purchasers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the properties are retained;

(c)  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) itis probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e)  the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

For the Group, revenue from the sale of completed properties
is recognised upon the signing of the property handover letter,
which is taken to be the point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the property have been passed to the
buyer.

Deposits and instalments received in respect of properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Property management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered and the inflow of economic benefits is
probable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the consolidated statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency. The functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars while RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the financial statements of the
Company for the purpose of aligning with the presentation
currency of the Group. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating
outside the Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of non-PRC entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of non-PRC entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial
statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment properties portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'’D)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the management of the Group has reviewed the
Group's investment properties and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that the
presumption that investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in respect
of the changes in fair value of the investment properties
based on management’s best estimate assuming future tax
consequences through usage of such properties for rental
purpose, rather than through sale. The final tax outcome
could be different from the deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated financial statements should the investment
properties are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather
than all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over time. In
the event the investment properties are being disposed of, the
Group may be liable to higher tax upon disposal considering
the impact of corporate income tax and land appreciation tax.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(a) PRC corporate income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in
Mainland China. Due to the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and
other related policies are required in determining the
provision for income taxes to be made. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provision in the period
in which the differences realise. Further details are
given in notes 10 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b)  PRC land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in
Mainland China. The provision for land appreciation tax
is based on management’s best estimates according
to its understanding of the requirements set forth in
the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
land appreciation tax liabilities are subject to the
determination by the tax authorities upon the completion
of the property development projects. The Group has
not finalised its land appreciation tax calculations and
payments with the tax authorities for certain property
development projects.

The final outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and any differences will
impact the land appreciation tax expenses and the
related provision in the period in which the differences
realise. Further details are given in notes 10 and 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'’D)

B TR ERE(HE) Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(c) PEBEHEEE (c)  Deferred tax assets
REAHEBEEELRTELHRE Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
ABAERAAEEBENBRT to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
FUERABEEMRBEEE - EX be available against which the losses can be utilised.
EIBEHE ZRIBIERKRERE Significant management judgement is required to
A B B AT B BE R A1 OK A KR AR determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
W BRERE  BTATHER be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
RIELERIEEENSRE future taxable profits together with future tax planning

strategies.

(d) FBEHEZFYENEREAZERR (d)  Recognition and allocation of construction cost on
ZB properties under development
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Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to completed properties
held for sale upon completion. Apportionment of
these costs will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss upon the recognition of the
sale of the properties. Before the final settlement of the
development costs and other costs relating to the sale
of the properties, these costs are accrued by the Group
based on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded
as the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(e)  Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from
a variety of sources, including:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the dates of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and

discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and (when possible) by external evidence such as
current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount
rates.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, are given in note 16 to the financial

statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into the
following reportable operating segments:

(@)  Property development: Development and sale of
properties
(b)  Property leasing: Property leasing (including

lease of self-owned
properties and sublease of
leased properties)

(c) Property management: Provision of property and
hotel management services

(d)  Others: Supermarket operation, an
incidental and non-core
business of the Group*

# Foshan Zhide Wangu Supermarket Co., Ltd, the subsidiary of the Group
operating the supermarket, was disposed of in the first quarter of 2013.

The property development projects undertaken by the Group
during the year were all located in the PRC.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit
or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss before tax.
The adjusted profit or loss before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs, share of profits and losses of associates, as
well as head office and corporate income and expenses are
excluded from this measurement.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived solely
from its operations in the PRC, and no non-current assets of
the Group are located outside the PRC.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax prepayments,
available-for-sale investments, restricted bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities,
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings, Convertible
Bonds and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. BESBEHE) 4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONT'D)
During the year, no revenue from transactions with a single

external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
total revenue.

FR BEREEIIBELPRIOK
AEAREE LKA L0% I L -

E MERE NEER Y
HE-_Z—MNF Year ended Property Property Property
TZA=+—HLEE 31 December 2014 development leasing management Total
ARBTT ARETT AR¥FrT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2EWA Segment revenue
IBEFHE Sales to external customers 10,094,519 196,545 127,884 10,418,948
DEELE Segment results 2,402,009 72,299 (2,002) 2,472,306
#ER - Reconciliation:
2 U A Interest income 17,900
AN EESH Unallocated corporate expense (27,594)
BB KR Finance costs (231,959)
LB ENRER Share of profits and losses of associates 4,160
BR B A1 A1) Profit before tax 2,234,813
PTHEE Segment assets 24,569,232 2,296,916 23,110 26,889,258
HER - Reconciliation:
RAOEMEE Unallocated assets 6,195,294
BEEBEE Total assets 33,084,552
THEE Segment liabilities 13,909,081 274,437 89,893 14,273,411
#E - Reconciliation:
AOENEE Unallocated liabilities 13,094,086
BELE Total liabilities 27,367,497
HitpHER Other segment information
e Depreciation (18,804) (42,390) (320) (61,514)
BEMERD Fair value gains on
N EERE investment properties — 57,800 — 57,800

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



4. BESBEHGE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONT'D)
MR E WERE MEE R HAh st
BHE-_ZT—=F Year ended Property Property Property
+-B=+—HBI-%E 31 December 2013 development leasing  management Others Total
ARETT AREFTT AR®FT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AW A Segment revenue
IBEFHEE Sales to external customers 9,443,320 154,412 97,003 — 9,694,735
TEEE Segment results 1,707,737 30,856 4,990 676 1,744,259
#HE Reconciliation:
FEHA Interest income 9574
AOEHEET T Unallocated corporate expense (48,368)
B R AR Finance costs (87,706)
{5 B Share of profits and
NAEE losses of associates 2371
IR RE! Profit before tax 1,620,130
THEE Segment assets 18,540,619 2,185,019 20,876 — 20,746,514
HEE - Reconciliation:
AOEKEE Unallocated assets 4,093,264
BERH Total assets 24,839,778
PBEE Segment liabilities 11,506,794 247 485 52,384 — 11,806,663
#HE Reconciliation:
ADEHEE Unallocated liabilities 9,024,694
aEes Total liabilities 20,831,357
HpHER Other segment information
nE Depreciation (14,529) (40,853) (266) — (55,648)
REMEN Fair value gains on
DR EERE investment properties — 42,000 — — 42,000
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
gross proceeds from the sale of properties, gross rental income
received and receivables and property management fee
income, net of business tax and surcharges during the year.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is

™ as follows:
—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
[t &+ AR%F ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA Revenue
LES RS Sale of properties 10,094,519 9,443,320
KE TS EMEEWALLEE  Gross rental income from:
HEBBEME lease of self-owned properties 42,574 40,112
EHEEYE sublease of leased properties 153,971 114,300
MEEEERA Property management fee income 127,884 97,003
10,418,948 9,694,735
H i A Other income
AT R B M A Bank interest income 17,900 6,435
H b F) 2 WA Other interest income — 3,139
Htt Others 11,374 8,310
29,274 17,884
Wz F R Gains, net
Ue BB B BB~ B 2 Uk & Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary — 7,685
HEN B QAR UL Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — 1,414
REWEN AR BEKE Fair value gains on investment properties 16 57,800 42,000
SNE U E - JFAE Foreign exchange gain, net 6,714 9,717
REEERNEURES Gain on early repayment of debts to
BEM S (H3T) independent investors (note) 10,738 —
75,252 60,816
104,526 78,700
it R-ZT—NE—ANH AR A LERGTEIR Note: ~ On 6 January 2014, the Company settled all outstanding instalments

AEBEEEEZNB TR ARED B
FoBEHEIZHTIEARAT - L E - 8
o ERERE - BFEEARA A KHighup
Holdings Limited 2R =T —=FtA+=
%] EEABHRRARAEEGER_Z
—HFE—A+BEENAERA -

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

under the restructuring deed dated 12 July 2013 entered into by and
among the Company, Mr. Shum, Asiaciti, Renowned Brand, East
Profit Management Limited and Highup Holdings Limited in full ahead
of the repayment schedule, the details of which were set out in the
announcement made by the board of directors of the Company on 7
January 2014.



6. FRIRRIFIE

AEBEWBRBEAABEE AR GEA)T

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

Y%A - (crediting):
Lk —E—=F
2014 2013
[t &+ AR TR ARBFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B EWEMRAR Cost of properties sold 7,006,867 7,201,640
IR EHIEEME Direct operating expenses (including repairs
BELERAE and maintenance) arising on rental-
(BREHERRE) earning investment properties 3,146 3,922
EHER BEELE Direct operating expenses (including rental
A (BEEAesEE and depreciation of leasehold
M ERASHTE) improvements) arising on the
subleasing business 102,154 69,674
REMEERRBE 2K Cost of property management
service provided 120,472 81,140
e Depreciation 14 61,514 55,648
KEMERARBENEE Changes in fair value of
investment properties 16 (57,800) (42,000)
1% 256 7 B Auditors’ remuneration 4,911 3,588
BIRMAZ(TERIEES Employee benefit expense (excluding
HEN(HEES)) - directors’ remuneration (note 8)):
e Wages and salaries 299,462 229,223
RIRE B R Pension scheme contributions 13,408 13,039
B FERYEZEARLEE  Less: Amount capitalised in properties
under development (166,176) (148,894)
146,694 93,368
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6. FRMAFIEGE) 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONT'D)
—E-F —ET—=%F
2014 2013
[t 5% AR®F ARETFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
PAEYEREHEB Minimum lease payments under operating
HEMEZEZHE leases regarding office premises and
HIEHEERE leased properties for the
subleasing business 90,906 81,318
ERTHRIEEENYMEN Reversal of impairment of completed

T E properties held for sale 21 — (1,665)
TERFIE - ke REMER Reversal of impairment of prepayments,

RIBRBEE D deposits and other receivables — (1,000)
LEWE  BEMEKE Loss on disposal of items of property,

HEBEREE plant and equipment 235 34
Uk BE B B A R U i Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary — (7,685)
REEERNBURES Gain on early repayment of debts

Y & T8 /) UK 2 to Independent investors (10,738) —
BEMERLW AR EELLL  Rental income on investment properties less

A AR¥ 3,146,000 T direct operating expenses of

= RMB3,146,000 (2013: RMB3,922,000)

AR#3922,0007T) (39,428) (36,190)
AL HEREN QAR EERETE  Fair value loss on available-for-sale

(REEREREaER) investments (transfer from

equity on disposal) 646 —
AIMEESFITE TR H Fair value loss on derivative component
N BEEE of the Convertible Bonds 30 4,767 —

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



7. MEBERE

7. FINANCE COSTS

—2-mF —T=F

2014 2013

AR¥FT ARETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BRI Interest expense 1,189,069 612,016
B B EFE Less: Interest capitalised (957,110) (524,310)
231,959 87,706

8. EFHM

BRI EIREF LTRARFER
AGRPI(FEE22E )M R11FE 781G K E

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of

ZEFHMMT the SEHK and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) is as follows:

—E-NmEF —T-=%F

2014 2013

AR¥F T ARMF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

wae Fees 720 60
Hiiis - Other emoluments:

e EMREYF R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 10,781 7,046

FRIRHEAT Performance-related bonuses 20,874 13,451

IRRE FTEIHE R Pension scheme contributions 77 73

31,732 20,570

32,452 20,630
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

8. EHFHBM(#E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’'D)
(a) BIUFHTES (@) Independent non-executive directors
FAEINTFTREIIERITESZ The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
WmEWT during the year were as follows:
—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥F T ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEZL Ms. Sun Hui 240 20
BEX A& Mr. Wong Wai Man 240 20
BEREET(RZZ—NF Dr. Wong Kennedy, Ying Ho
=AZ+—HEZME) (Appointed on 21 March 2014) 180 —
MInE e 4 (RN —F — P F Mr. Lin Ru Peng (Resigned on 21 March 2014)
ZA-+— A& 60 20
720 60
FRNUTEEMNPHSESHE B There were no other emoluments payable to the
FETERE(—E—=F &) independent non-executive directors during the year
(2013: Nil).
(b) #HiTE=E (b) Executive directors
e - ER
REYR = RE# BiRe
Salaries, AT G R
allowances  Performance Pension  ¥rEN#A%E
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
AR FrT AREFTT ARETRT AR%®FrR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE-Z—MNF Year ended 31 December 2014
+ZA=1t—HLFE
EE I S & Mr. Shum 2,786 6,886 9 9,681
REE LA Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,861 3,405 13 5,279
Btk E Mr. Bai Xihong 2,296 3,530 13 5,839
FREA Mr. Li Qiang 1,432 3,309 14 4,755
IR & Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 1,385 2,551 14 3,950
GRIEAE Mr. Niu Jimin 1,021 1,193 14 2,228

10,781 20,874 77 31,732

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



8. EEHM(E) 8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)

(b) HITEE(HE) (b) Executive directors (Cont’d)
e o EE
LEWRZ  RIREY RRE
Salaries, TEAT sHEI R
allowances  Performance Pension i sagE
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
ARYSFIT ARMTT ARBFT ARYTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BE-_ZT—=F Year ended 31 December 2013
+ZA=+—RHALFE
iy Mr. Shum 1,968 4,887 8 6,863
REEE A Mr. Guan Jianhui 1,324 1,864 13 3,201
At A Mr. Bai Xihong 1,323 2,601 13 3,937
FgEA Mr. Li Qiang 962 2,276 13 3,251
IR LA Mr. Cen Zhaoxiong 962 1,214 13 2,189
SRR NE Mr. Niu Jimin 507 609 13 1,129
7,046 13,451 73 20,570

FAMBEEFTHELARBREL
AEMAOLH(ZE—=F - &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2013: Nil).
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

FHMESHILIEESR

FA - FHESNTIEREERENEE
F(ZE—=F HREF) RFESF
ZEHMABEIN EAMTE8 . FA
Fep—w2FMESNFEF(ZT—=
F:—ZFEF)EBEZHMFB D BIWM
T -

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors (2013: four directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining one non-director (2013: one non-
director), highest paid employee during the year, respectively,
are as follows:

—E-DNF —E—=%F

2014 2013

AR%TFT ARETFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Fe - RREEREYAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,657 933
RIBEMTEAL Performance-related bonuses 2,475 2,036
RIRE AR Pension scheme contributions 14 13
4,146 2,982

10.

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

Rer— 2 FHRSNIFESEE ZFH M
& E "t F A K ¥4,000,000LFE AR
#5,000,000(ZE—=F: AR%
2,000,000 T E AR # 3,000,000 7T) °

Fris R BAST
AEBEREBEEGRELSIRRN AL
BRERAMBREEMEREEER
ZHMBHEAFEN - REFASHS R
BREBARBESRANERY AEEER
(RHEERELRBHBA TS LMK
V)EFHREAHAEN - ARAKER
RERBVYEEEEELTMBHRKA
At A EBEANEBBRASHR

HEEETEH
REEPBECEAEHR(EEMSEHR])
HENBRTAR 2BREM  BER
TEAMEEXBENEXEMBHERS
FE P fh AT B9 FE AR AR B DAE A AR R &
E .

BrEM IR E - 5 AR R BRI (E &
RWELI7)S  FRAEEEFBE A
BEMEMMNEB R RIEEBR25% 8 H
BEXMAERBE - BMNKE - FhHE
MEGHARNEEMEREZEEE
B BRE B AR 2.5% & -

10.

The remuneration of the remaining one non-director highest
paid employee fell within the band of RMB4,000,000 to
RMB5,000,000 (2013: RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000).

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and BVI, the entities of
the Group which were incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
BVI are not subject to any income tax. The Group was not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as the Group did not have any
assessable income arising in Hong Kong during the year.

PRC corporate income tax

The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”) in respect of operations
in Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rate on the estimated assessable profits for each of the year,
based on the existing legislation, interpretations and practices
in respect thereof.

Except for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang Shengxin and Fogang
Bairui (as defined in note 17), other subsidiaries of the Group
operating in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate
income tax rate of 25% during the year. Corporate income tax
for Guangzhou Ruixian, Fogang Shengxin and Fogang Bairui is
levied on a deemed basis on a rate of 2.5% of their respective
revenue amounts.



10.

FRiGIRBASZ (18)

o B + 3 4 (B B
BE-NANAEF—A—BERN(PE
ARKMBE L EZERETHRM) R
—NANEF-AZTEHERACPEA
RAMBE T I ERE TR EEADR)
MEFR EFBEHEXEREA LE
REREFHRENH WA BIHEED
RZFGERERAMKRAY  BREEE
PR R W EFE ) BERN T LiE
BE30% £60% M RERRF ML IEE
B MEBREETENIEEIEREDH
AIMAIA R #8F20% - Bk HE A &
MR -

TR AKERBEMEBTBEREERE
AT EL AR E A T L B E TR E
e BRI HBENEERNYEFARE
BRTRARMGEBEET - M5
BT LHBRERNESE L RER
BEBRIKBOEEGREA -

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

PRC land appreciation tax

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") (Fh%E A R FNE
T+ IR E T Z1TEM) effective from 1 January 1994 and the
Detailed Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT (R A RFEME + 138 E L1701 E
4R Al) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the
sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights and buildings
in the PRC (being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including borrowing costs and property
development expenditures) is subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation of land
value with an exemption provided for property sales of ordinary
residential properties (EBIFLE(EE) if their appreciation
values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible
items.

During the year, the Group estimated and made provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon completion of
the property development projects and the LAT determined by
the tax authorities might be different from the basis on which
the provision for LAT is calculated.

—EB-mEF —ZT—-=
2014 2013
[t 5% AR¥F ARMF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BNER - Current:

PR SR PRC CIT 677,864 490,815
T IR (E R LAT 538,414 244,216

BRI IGER Overprovision of LAT in prior periods
REEE S (33,404) —
BT Deferred 19 (301,743) (88,831)
FEBIBEST LB Total tax charge for the year 881,131 646,200
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

10. FrSMBAZ (#8)
fiF P S B4 3K £ 40 I B A1 98 10 0
BIER X R E BB R O BER
2R REM B R (AR R ) REE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory tax rate to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e.,

BERZEERAT - the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
—E-NE T
2014 2013
AR¥ETFT AREFTT
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

B 50 A1l A1) B Profit before tax 2,234,813 1,620,130
WHREBEEEMEE Tax at the PRC statutory tax rate

Z A 558,703 25.0 405,033 25.0
BT RRTREMEH Effect of different income tax regimes

HEZZE of certain companies 177 — 2,822 0.2
EEH 2 WA Income not subject to tax (1,471) (0.1) (1,921) 0.1)
IR s Expenses not deductible for tax 39,157 1.8 14,702 09
TR ET B E Provision for LAT 361,202 16.1 244,216 15.1
THIEER 2 HIET R Taxeffect of LAT (90,300) (4.0) (61,054) (3.8)
RIERZTHIBEEE Tax losses not recognised 30,385 1.4 14,483 09
EBTHREEEAMNFIEERE Taxlosses utilised from previous periods (31,052) (1.4) — —
e /NI B Fa Profits and losses attributable

to associates (1,040) (0.1) (593) —

FREMNB AR RS A Withholding taxes on undistributed

FE 2B profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC 15,370 0.7 28,512 18
BAEE 2 ERHRE Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

FFTECMEBEL 881,131 39.4 646,200 40.0

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



11.

12.

FLOFHB AELFIE

HEZFZT-—WNF+-A=+—8L1#HF
B AR2RHEARGESFBRE
B AR ®226,047,0000(=F — =
F£ . ANR®15,913,0007T) » % EHE
EIARRBN I EH®REK (HIE33) o

B2
ZE——FMEERABRBIEEBRAR
1094504 £ A AR 188,486,000
L ERAARRBRER-_Z—NFNA
“+HEBRONREBEFRE EHE - I
R-ZZE—NFRAKE -

EEgEIRBHEE_T—NFE+ A
ZST-RLEFENREREERARE

14349 (ZFE—=F: AR¥10.94
a) e

AEENEZZRAREAFARABRRE
REERFBFEAS LIE - TAEE -

11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of
RMB226,047,000 (2013: RMB15,913,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note 33).

DIVIDENDS

The 2013 proposed a final dividend totalling RMB188,486,000
of RMB10.94 cents per share, was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting on 30 April 2014
and was distributed in May 2014.

The board of directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of RMB14.34 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB10.94 cents).

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

13. FAFRBEERISA AR 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

=sREN

BREARFDREARGF L BESSE
BARBGEFEEFARNE BTG
7T 49 801,722,960,000 (=& — =
£ :1,315,822,000 f% )t & o

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,722,960,000 (2013: 1,315,822,000) in issue during the

year.
—EB-NmEF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR®F ARBTFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAalEBERERA Profit attributable to ordinary equity

EEFE(ARETFIT) holders of the Company (RMB’000) 1,279,026 987,022

BT B INE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
FHE(LATFED) in issue (in thousands) 1,722,960 1,315,822
EREAREF(F/RARES) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents per share) 74 75

HE-_E—=F+-_A=t+—HILEE
EEITRMOMEESEBERD BT
B 5 4 1,292,220,000 (% 5t & - R
—E—ZF+ A+ B L%
RETMBERO SEBREFTERETT
#91,292,219,799 f% f% 15 £ 2 & 2 R 7
MR EEITIESN -

BREERNSBDBBHERNRA L
BESTAARENBUARBRMAEE
EEELTARER ST BARMYETE
SMEBEBCINEFHEEGE - KRB B
EL#RSTENERRELEREKE
FeofEBREERNE  DRRAK
P 75 10 88 0 A 3 i 3 389 4 U 4F AR
B DHHEESRAEaRMBEONSMAX
BIRRGEERRAXNSRIOIETAR
REEEBER(ER)

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2013 is based on the assumption that
1,292,220,000 shares were in issue as if the 1,292,219,799
shares issued by capitalisation of share premium account for
allotment and issue to Asiaciti on 11 December 2013 were
outstanding throughout the entire period presented.

The diluted earnings per share amount is calculated by
adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The Company’s dilutive
potential ordinary shares are derived from the Convertible
Bonds. In calculating the diluted earnings per share, the
Convertible Bonds are assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the
interest expenses charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the fair value loss on embedded financial
derivatives less the tax effect, if applicable.



13. FAFIH BRI A AR 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

SREBFI(E) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONT’D)
—E—MF —E-=F
2014 2013
AR% T AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RAalEdEzER AEN Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

MEARETT) of the Company (RMB’000) 1,279,026 987,022
BFANGZEEmKRINRG Interest expenses charged to the consolidated

FERZ(ARKTT) statements of profit or loss for the year (RMB’000) — —
AR ESE P PTE T EE R Changes in fair value of the derivative component

N BEEZS of the Convertible Bonds (RMB'000) (note 30)

(AR¥®EFT)(FFE30) 4,767 —
AREESREERTN Profit used to determine diluted

FEARETIT) earnings per share (RMB’000) 1,283,793 987,022
BT B INE Weighted average number of ordinary

S E(LATFE) shares in issue (in thousand) 1,722,960 1,315,822
R AT MRESEITHRR Assumed conversion of

(LATF5) Convertible Bonds (in thousands) 48,291 —
AR ESRE SRR Weighted average number of ordinary shares

O i AR Y I AE T S for diluted earnings per share(in thousand)

(ATF3EH) 1,771,251 1,315,822
FEBERN(FIR AR D) Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents per share) 72 75
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

14. 3% - BE RS 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KEE Group

BRA
$ER
HEtHRk  HEWE BLAERE
B £ Fumiture,

Leasehold Leasehold fixtures RE ERIR @t

land and improve- and office Motor  Construction
buildings ments  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AREFT ARBTT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ZE-NE+=A=1—H 31 December 2014

A Cost:
R-E-ME—F-H At 1 January 2014 26,587 540,731 68,401 28,261 82,134 746,114
NE Additions — 8,609 16,323 9,589 39,006 73,527
HE Disposals — (505) (2,648) (3,397) = (6,550)
£ (I3 16) Transfers (note 16) 241,860 121,140 — —  (121,1400 241,860
RZE-EE At 31 December 2014
+ZA=1t-H 268,447 669,975 82,076 34,453 — 1,054,951
RitHE: Accumulated depreciation:
R-ZE-—NF—F—H At 1 January 2014 5,677 54,287 35,940 16,404 — 112,308
KEERWDEENNE  Depreciation provided during the year 4,513 42,539 8,882 5,580 - 61,514
e Disposals = (396) (895) (2,592) = (3,883)
RZE-EE At 31 December 2014
+ZA=1t-H 10,190 96,430 43,927 19,392 — 169,939
BHFE: Net carrying amount: 258,257 573,545 38,149 15,061 - 885,012

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



14. Y% - BERRE (8) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONT'D)
REE () Group (Cont'd)
AL
RER
BEtWER  HEWE BHRERE
BF £ Furniture,
Leasehold  Leasehold fixtures g ERIE @it
land and improve- and office Motor  Construction
buildings ments equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTL ARETT ARMFT ARBTT AREFT ARETT
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBOO0  RMBUOO — RMBOOO

ZE-=%+-F=+-H 31 December 2013

A Cost:
W-_E—=%—F—H At 1 January 2013 26,587 128,754 60,951 29,356 248,762 494,410
NE Additions — 203,277 13,447 6 43,597 260,327
LERBAA Disposal of subsidiaries — — (4,499) (122) — (4,621)
HE Disposals - (1,525) (1,498) (979) - (4,002)
g3 Transfers — 210,225 — — (210,225) —
RZE—=% At 31 December 2013
+-A=1-H 26,587 540,731 68,401 28,261 82,134 746,114
RHHE: Accumulated depreciation:
W-E-=5—-F-H At 1 January 2013 5,488 14,699 28,134 13,153 = 61474
AEEHHERBENNE  Depreciation provided during the year 189 41,879 10,205 3375 — 55,648
LERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries - - (1,275) (35) - (1,310)
= Disposals — (2,291) (1,124) (89) - (3,504)
RZE—=%
+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2013 5,677 54,287 35,940 16,404 — 112,308
REFE Net carrying amount: 20910 486,444 32,461 11,857 82,134 633,806
RZE—NWEF+_A=+—8 " EEF At 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s buildings with a
A ANREE240,204,000(=Z 2 — = net carrying amount of approximately RMB240,204,000 (2013:
FE)NAEERETEFEHEER Nil) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group
LEER TAREBNRTE R (note 29(c)).
29(c)) °
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

14. 1% - BEREME (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONT'D)
b N/NE] Company
HH
#£ER
WOERE
HE Furniture,
MEEE fixtures AE

Leasehold and office Motor @t

improvement equipment vehicles Total

ARETFRT ARETrn AR®FTr AR¥Frn

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

“Z-mE+ZHA=1+—H 31 December 2014

DNE Cost:
R-ZZ—-mE—A—H At 1 January 2014 — — 480 480
NE Additions 4,400 36 613 5,049
RZT—F
+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2014 4,400 36 1,093 5,529
ZEE - Accumulated depreciation:
RZZE—WF—-HF—H At 1 January 2014 — — 119 119
AEEHECBENTE Depreciation provided during the year 293 — 235 528
RZE—F
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 293 — 354 647
RHEFEE Net carrying amount: 4,107 36 739 4,882

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



14. Y% - BERRE (8) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONT’'D)
AKAT(HE) Company (Cont’d)
A
KER
PAERME
HE Furniture,
MEEE fixtures E
Leasehold and office Motor st
improvement equipment vehicles Total

ARBFTIT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

—E-=%+-8=+-H

31 December 2013

B Cost:
R-F—=F—F—H At 1 January 2013 — 493 493
& Disposals — (13) (13)
RZE—=F
+-F=+—8 At 31 December 2013 — 480 480
2 iE - Accumulated depreciation:
R-ZT—=F—F—H At 1 January 2013 — 118 118
AFEEHECBENTE Depreciation provided during the year — 1 1
HE Disposals — — —
R-_Z—=%F
+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2013 — 119 119
R Net carrying amount: — 361 361
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

15. At ERE 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—F-HmF —E-=F

2014 2013

AR¥FT AR®Fr

RMB’000 RMB’000

R—A—BMER2%E Carrying amount at 1 January 2,141,355 1,494,902
FERNE Additions during the year 1,041,121 698,229
1 BE B /B 2 R Acquisition of subsidiaries — 306,263
HEERERYE Transfer to properties under development (755,881) (358,039)
RTZA=+—HMEEM®M&E£% Carrying amount at 31 December 2,426,595 2,141,355
B mEE D Less: Current portion (1,041,121) (755,881)
ERBE D Non-current portion 1,385,474 1,385,474

HELWERPEADBRRPEER
B - BRIRSHAFAG IR
% HERCEBRERERYE -

R-E—NE+-_A=+—H @S
FHEELYN A AREE82,842,000L(=
T—=—fF: AR¥25300,000T)K%
FAEEASHMREERE - URER
FTAREBEMEITER(HFE29(c)) °

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is held
under a long term lease, construction on which has not yet
commenced. Balances will be transferred to properties under
development when construction commences.

Certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold land with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB682,842,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB25,300,000) have been pledged
to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 29(c)).

16. ¥EME 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—F-0mF —T=F
2014 2013
Bt st AR¥FT AR Fx
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—BHEESE Carrying amount at 1 January 1,582,000 1,540,000
ERAHEABRAME Transfer to owner-occupied property 14 (241,860) —
NABERAEMSFRE Net gain from a fair value adjustment 5 57,800 42,000
RT-_A=1+—HWEEMmMSE% Carrying amount at 31 December 1,397,940 1,582,000

AEBZREVELRPEANM B RSP
HHERA REVEIZRBELH
EXHMEETE=T  EZFABEARNK
BB mRME36(a) °

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland
China and held under medium term. The investment properties
are mainly leased to third parties under operating lease
arrangements, further details of which are included in note
36(a) to the consolidated financial statements.



16. B M*R(W])

R-ZE—NWFE+-_A=+—H A£EH
ZEREMERBUSCERBEMEMA
AEERTEARANEHEAARE
1,397,940,000 t(ZZE—=F : AR
1,582,000,0007t ) o AN & B Z Bf 7 48
ERYFRETIET—RIEHEME
EHAEEYEETINGEE TBEZE
EREMSNE  BE BUMELESR
WREFEKE - RSB 2 BEEN
SR EMETHEREZGERMR
HEBELGEELERETET BT
—mEERZZE—=ZF+=-A=+—8"
AEBEBZREVEEERR  UBMER
FAEBEOMRITE R R E M E R
29(c)) °

AREBEER
RZE—WFEFR_ZFTE—=ZF+=A8
—t+t—H ZEENREVENRAAE
BEREAEATAEBRGABBEAS(FE3I
&) o

RAFESHEN S1ERE2E2MY
mARBESEBERYEA L BE
EMARBLEIE -

REMENBENRAERLBELZ
RAEBMRAIELBRNBEEERMER -

BIREMEHREMS NEXRHAREN
MEHIWT

EXTURE HE
L PN ¢ (METH)
TE THBUHEX 60,900-114,000

(BFHXARET)  (40,000-81,000)

$n MHBUEER 28,000-44,000
(BEFRARET) (28,900)
FE  mHEBUEER 330,000-500,000
(SA=f) (500,000)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT'D)

The Group's investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2014 at RMB1,397,940,000 (2013:
RMB1,582,000,000) by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis. Every half year, the Group’s
chief financial officer decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for financial
reporting. At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the investment
properties of the Group were pledged to secure the bank loans
and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29(c)).

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, fair values of the Group's
investment properties were measured using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3.

The valuaitons of investment properties were arrived at with the
adoption of Direct Comparison Method by making reference to
the comparable sale prices in the relevant locality.

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuations of
investment properties:

Significant Range
unobservable inputs (weighted average)

Retail Market unit sale rate 60,900-114,000
(RMB/sq.m) (40,000-81,000)
Office Market unit sale rate 28,000-44,000
(RMB/sq.m) (28,900)
Car Parking  Market unit sale rate 330,000-500,000
(Per one space) (500,000)
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17. RIEBAFIMRE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

¥/ NN Company
—E-OF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥T T AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R B RAMIEE * Investments in subsidiaries* — —

FARRBRBEER RS BENE
WRENHBARZRES N AEAR
4 .852,915,000c(= & — = F:
A R #1,356,235,0007C ) & A R #&
127,887,000 L(ZZE—=F : AR®
116,133,0007%) @ hEKH - £8 A

REREFEE -

EBHBAT Y HENT -

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in
the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
RMB4,852,915,000 (2013: RMB1,356,235,000) and
RMB127,887,000 (2013: RMB116,133,000), respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AATEEAELNL
FMREL BRI EZEo
EENMERAS BRTLE/ Percentage of
Place and FMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEEK
=g establishment and registered HE B3  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BB EBRAR([EH]) REARARHS 3ETL 100 — REER
Wisdom Sharp Investments Limited —EERRF usD3 Investment
(“Wisdom Sharp”) =A=-+=H holding
BVI
22 March 2006
Million Sensor Management Limited HBHRRHS 1ETT — 100 #HEER
(MMillion Sensor ) ZETLF usD1 Investment
Million Sensor Management Limited HAZ-+HAH holding
(“Million Sensor”) BVI
25 May 2007
Grand Highway International Ltd. REHEBAREE 1%t — 100 #|EER
(I'Grand Highway ) —ETF usD1 Investment
Grand Highway International Ltd. NA+=H holding
(“Grand Highway”) BVI
13 September 2007

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
FMREL/ BIK EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
Venus Tower Limited ([Venus Tower]) REBERRES 1%t — 100 #‘EER
Venus Tower Limited (“Venus Tower”) —EELF usD1 Investment
NWA=-+—8 holding
BVI
21 September 2007
BERKERAR(BERK]) RBERRES 1% — 100 #HEER
Super Best Global Limited (“Super Best”) —E-mF usD1 Investment
hAAZ+Z=AH holding
BVI
22 May 2014
BRIEREGR AT REHBRHS 1%t — 100 #EER
(TEazER ) —T-F usD1 Investment
Clear Strength Holdings Limited EA=-+H holding
(“Clear Strength”) BVI
20 May 2014
BHEBRAR([E%]) REHBREHS 17T — 100 |EER
August Skill Limited (“August Skill") —E-NF usbl Investment
FAZ-+NH holding
BVI
28 May 2014
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17. R EATMRE(]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, RIRK - £yl d
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
ER(BB)EERBRAR(ESR]) & 900,000 7T — 100 #|EER
(Mi7E (a) —hh=%F HKD900,000 Investment
Wah Tai (H.K.) Development Limited HAZ-+NH holding
(“Wah Tai") (note (a)) Hong Kong
28 May 1992
EERRREERARI(ABRREE]) BF 10,0008 7T — 100 #{EER
(Ff5E(a)) —ETTF HKD10,000 Investment
Hong Kong Times Investments Limited =AZ+WmH holding
(“Hong Kong Times Investments”) (note (a))  Hong Kong
24 March 2000
EELERXERBRAG(LEEE]) FF 10,000 7T — 100 #&EER
(H&E(a)) —ZTTTF HKD10,000 Investment
Steelmine Minerals (H.K.) Development +AmA holding
Limited (“Steelmine Minerals”) (note (a)) Hong Kong
4 October 2000
BHEERR AR ([ & ]) BE 61,782,691 % T — 100 ®EER
(H&E(a)) —ANh=F HKD61,782,691 Investment
Profit City Investment MA-+=H holding
Limited (“Profit City”) (note (a)) Hong Kong
23 April 1992
KeEFR DB (TKE]) N 1A — 100 |EER
Times Billion Limited (“Times Billion™) —E-mEF HKD1 Investment
HA-++tH holding
Hong Kong
27 May 2014
BRERQA([ER]) B4 1AL — 100 |EER
Precision Time Limited (“Precision Time") —E-mF HKD1 Investment
AA=H holding
Hong Kong
3 May 2014

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
KEAERAB([HEE]) &5 14T — 100 HEER
Ocean Times Inc Limited (“Ocean Times”") —E-mEF HKD1 Investment
MAMA holding
Hong Kong
4 April 2014
ENTRAMESEERAR([BREER]) B FEAH 83,000,000 %7 — 100 WERER
Guangzhou Times Property —EE-F USD83,000,000 HEER
Group Co., Ltd. EANE Property
(“Times Group”) PRC/ development
Mainland China and
9 May 2001 investment
holding
BMmEACEMEREARA A HERERA AR — 100 |EER
(IR EE]) (M (a) “ETRHF 250,000,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Times Enterprise Real =H++tH RMB?250,000,000 holding
Estate Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Times Real Estate”) (note (a)) Mainland China
17 March 2005
BMNmEREBEEREBRA A FE B A AR® — 100 MERER
([EMEZ]) (M) —EERF 120,000,000 7T HEER
Guangzhou Times Shengyu MA=+H RMB120,000,000 Property
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ development
(“Guangzhou Shengyu”) (note (a)) Mainland China and
30 April 2005 investment
holding
ERNRBEEHEREERAF HEFERAL AR — 100 #MEME
(ERBZE]) (HE @) ZEERF 80,000,000 7T Property
Guangdong Times Shengyu Real ~NA+TAR RMB80,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Guangdong Shengyu”) (note (a)) Mainland China
19 June 2006
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17. R EATMRE(]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
FMREL RIK EEEIL
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
KERGRtCREARAR([ERK]) FE FEANM AR — 100 MEmE
(Ff5E (a)) TETRE 10,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Zhongzhu Century =AZ+NH RMB10,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Zhuhai Zhongzhu”) (note (a)) Mainland China
28 March 2006
BRABFREERAR([HEAET]) B B A AR — 100
(FF%E (a)) —ETLF 5,000,000 7t Property
Fogang Guanheng Investment Co., Ltd. —A+ArA RMB5,000,000 development
(“Fogang Guanheng”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
19 January 2007
BLTRRERNEZREBRBRAF B W E A AR — 100 MERFE
([ebLmEEE D (M) —EEC 32,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Yudonglong Real —AZ-+=H RMB32,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Yudonglong”) (note (a)) Mainland China
22 January 2002
ENTRERHESRAA([EMRE]) HFEFEANM AR — 100 MEmFE
(Ff5E (a)) — e 364,307,750 7T Property
Guangzhou Minhua Real Estate Co., Ltd. WMARA RMB364,307,750 development
(“Guangzhou Minhua”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
5 April 1994

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BRBRMKERNIEER AR FE B A NG — 100 E#H=EH
([BRER]) (K5 (a)) —EELF 3,000,0007T B
Fogang Shengxin Water and AA+=H RMB3,000,000 ES1 S
Electricity Garden Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/ Garden
(“Fogang Shengxin”) (note (a)) Mainland China landscape
13 September 2007 design
and
property
decoration
BRRREHTIREERA A HE B R AR — 100 #MEEE
([BerEE 1) () —EELF 3,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Times Bairui Decoration HA=+NB RMB3,000,000 decoration
Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Fogang Bairui”) (note (a)) Mainland China
28 September 2007
RILTERNEEXER AR HE R EAM ARE — 100 #ERE
([ wglae ) (FEE (a)) TR LF 10,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Times Kaixuan Asset Co., Ltd. HFA+EA RMB10,000,000 development
(“Zhongshan Kaixuan”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
15 May 2007
BUTHERRBRERMEREERAE FBFEALH AR — 100 #MEME
([ EERE]) (KHE@) —ETF 30,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Nanhai Times + A~H RMB30,000,000 development

Shengyu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.  PRC/
(“Foshan Nanhai Shengyu”) (note (a)) Mainland China
6 July 2007
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
FMREL RIK EEEIL
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
HEFRBEREARAR([HRAME]) B/ FEANM AR — 100 MEmE
(Ff5E(a)) —EEE 30,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Times Real Estate —A=+—H RMB30,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Fogang Real Estate”) (note (a)) Mainland China
31 March 2004
EMRMEMEREERAR B B A ARE — 100 MEHE
([EMEFL) (3T (a)) —N=F 111,075,800 7t Property
Guangzhou Donghe Real Estate +-A=+—H RMB111,075,800 leasing
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Guangzhou Donghe”) (note (a)) Mainland China
31 December 1993
BEMTHRERMGEARAR(TEMNRE]) A8, hE A AR — 100 =EA# 1L
(FF%E(a)) “ETF 3,500,000 7T Landscape
Guangzhou Ruixian Landscaping Co., Ltd. —HAEH RMB3,500,000 architecture
(“Guangzhou Ruixian”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
5 January 2007
KEMRREEREFRAR([KELL]) PB /FENM AR — 100 MEmFE
(Ff5E(a)) —EELF 50,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Times Fengzhuo Investment Co., Ltd. +A+—H RMB50,000,000 development
(“Zhuhai Fengzhuo”) (note (a)) PRC/
Mainland China
11 July 2007
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(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BRBAKBREEERAR ([HEXE]) FE FEAH NG — 100 #ERE
(FF5E(a)) —EENE 10,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Times Yongsheng —A+—H RMB10,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd PRC/
(“Fogang Yongsheng”) (note (a)) Mainland China
11 January 2008
BRPEEEARETLAR([GBRAYE]) HBEFERAH AR — 100 #xm%E
(Fif3E (a) —BBLF 8,000,000 7T Property
Fogang Zhongyi Asset Development +-A=-t+AhR RMB8,000,000 development
Limited Liability Company PRC/
(“Fogang Zhongyi") (note (a)) Mainland China
29 December 2007
BLUT = KB EFHEERBRA A HERERA AR — 100 #ERE
([ E ] () —EERF 48,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Sanshui Yuhua Real Estate AARMAB RMB48,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Yuhua”) (note (a)) Mainland China
4 August 2005
BMNTERYEEEBRA A FE B A NG — 100 MEERE
(IRRWEER]) (K (a) —ANN\E 125,500,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Times Property +=ZA+NHR RMB125,500,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Times Property Management”) (note (a)) Mainland China
18 December 1998
BMNmERXRIGHEABRA R HE R EAL AR — 100 #EER
(TEMX®E] ) (ME@) A = 10,010,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Times Tianyi Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,010,000 holding
(“Guangzhou Tianyi”) (note (a)) 2 June 2009
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17. R B AR E(1E) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
FMREL RIK - £yl d
EENMBEA B BITEE,/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
EMTRRERREER AR FEL HE A AR — 100 #ERE
(TEMEZ]) (M (a)) —ET-ZF 50,000,000 7& Property
Guangzhou Times Hongtai —A+mA RMB50,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Hongtai”) (note (a)) 14 January 2010
EBMNTmEHEREEGRAA HE B A AR — 100 MERE
(TEMZE]) (FEE (a)) —ETNF 20,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Fujie Investment Co., Ltd. +A=++H RMBZ20,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Fujie”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
27 October 2009
BEMESREGRAD HE R E A AR — 100 #ERE
(Br%S )(Wﬁ ) —E—-TF-A+H 30,000,000 7T Property
Qingyuan Rongjing Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 development
(“Qingyuan Rongjing”) (note (a)) 10 February 2010
BRMEEEMERZE QA HE R E A AR — 100 #ERE
U’Ei%ﬁEJ)(MﬁE(a)) —E-FF 300,000,000 7T Property
Qingyuan Xilong Real Estate —A+=H RMB300,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China
(“Qingyuan Xilong") (note (a)) 12 March 2010
RILTEHEERERR AR FE B A AR — 100 MM
([H L&) () ZEELF 45,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Wanlian Real Estate ~NA+TAE RMB45,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhongshan Wanlian”) (note (a)) 19 June 2007
IR EHEREBRA A HE B A AR — 100 #EFRE
(TR (M (a)) —E-ZF=ZA+H 10,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Tianyue Real Estate PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 development

Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongshan Tianyue”) (note (a))

10 March 2010
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ARAT(HE) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
EMNmEERERGR LA HERER NG — 70 BEER
(TEMEEE ) (M7 (a)) —ZEZ-ZEFtANH 10,010,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Junbao Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,010,000 holding
(“Guangzhou Junbao”) (note (a)) 8 July 2010
BMAAEERR AR (TEMKXEA]) HERERH NG — 70 WERE
(P 7% (a) —ZT-ZF 50,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Tianlang Trading Co., Ltd. +A+EH RMB50,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Tianlang”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
15 July 2010
EMNMESEEEHEARAA HE R EAM AR — 99 MEME
(TEMBE®E]) (T (a)) —AA=FN\AXE 360,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Panyu Nanying Property Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/ Mainland China RMB360,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Nanying”) (note (a)) 6 August 1992
EMNmREEMBERRE(TEMKRE]) HE R EAM AR — 51 WMERE
(Ff5E (a)) —E-ZFE/\A=H 51,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Tianhe Construction PRC/ Mainland China RMB51,000,000 development
Material Co., Ltd. 3 August 2010
(“Guangzhou Tianhe") (note (a))
EBEMNTmERESERRE(TEMER]) HE R EAL AR — 100 #&EER
(BT (a)) # —ET——fF 10,000,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Zhuorui Trading Co., Ltd. +—HF=-+—H RMB10,000,000 holding

(“Guangzhou Zhuorui”) (note (a)) #

PRC/ Mainland China
21 November 2011
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(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
FNUNGTE 2PN 3
HMERY, RIRK - £yl d
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BEMNTEREREEBRA A FEL HE A AR — 100 MEmE
(TEMER]) (M3 () —ZE——-FtA=H 10,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Times Zichen PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. 3 July 2012
(“Guangzhou Zichen”) (note (a))
ERESEXZRARAA(EREE]) HE/FEHAH AR — 100 #ZEFE
(F5E (a)) —AWNEEF 42,300,000 7T Property
Guangdong Guangchang Industrial ~NA+ AR RMB42,300,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Guangdong Guangchang”) (note (a)) 19 June 1985
KERHEHEREERAR BB A AR — 100 ¥
(THE=81) (K3 a) “EELFXNANA 43,800,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Jingrun Real Estate PRC/ Mainland China RMB43,800,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. 4 June 2007
(“Zhuhai Jingrun”) (note (a))

KEMEEEWEREARAR B E A AR — 100 #EFE
([BREEE (T (a))# T 50,000,000 7T Property
Zhuhai Jiayu Real Estate +—HA=H RMB50,000,000 development

Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhuhai Jiayu”) (note (a)) # 2 November 2012
KEMBEEHERZEERAR HEl B A AR — 100 #EFRE
(TZRBBEE]) (K@) —T—CF 40,000,000 75 Property
Zhuhai Shenghui Real Estate +=-AXH RMB40,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhuhai Shenghui”) (note (a)) 6 December 2012
ROV RBEEHERZAERAT B W E A AR — 100 MERE
(TRAHIE]) (HE(a)) —ET - 50,000,000 7T Property
Changsha Meiguiyuan Real Estate NLA=+H RMB50,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Changsha Meiguiyuan”) (note (a)) 30 September 2002

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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KAREEAER
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BLTRBAKFREBRAR FE B A AR — 100 HEER
([Box= 1) (M5 () —E-CF 35,000,000 7% Investment
Foshan Times Yongheng Investment Co., Ltd.  /A\A=+=H RMB35,000,000 holding
(“Foshan Yongheng”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
22 August 2012
EMNTEEEEERERAR HE R EAM ARE — 100 #EME
(TEMZERE] (M) —EE-FRA+H 30,000,000 7T RER
Guangzhou Zhide Commercial PRC/ Mainland China RMB30,000,000 Property
Management Co., Ltd. 10 May 2001 leasing and
(“Guangzhou Zhide”) (note (a)) management
BLUTEEERENEEREFRDA R B A AR — 100 MEER
([ZEER]) (M) —T——F 65,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Zhide Zhengxing Property mA=-+NH RMB65,000,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhide Zhengxing”) (note (a)) 28 April 2011
EMNTEENEERERAR FEFERALH AR — 100 BEER
(=W (3 (a) —ETNEF 80,500,000 7T Hotel
Guangzhou Zhide Property hRA=+H RMB80,500,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhide Property”) (note (a)) 30 September 2009
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RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
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Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
EMNTEERRECEREBRA A FEL HE A AR — 100 MEME
(2R (M3 () ZEENE 10,100,000 7t RER
Guangzhou Zhide Technology Business NA=+—H RMB10,100,000 Property
Incubator Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China leasing and
(“Zhide Technology”) (note (a)) 31 August 2009 management
ENTEEEHNEEERRBERRQA BB A AR — 55 WFEMHE
(TEMEZE]) (M (a) —T-ZF 30,000,000 7T KRER
Guangzhou Guangdechang Commercial =AZ+HH RMB30,000,000 Property
Management Service Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China leasing and
(“Guangzhou Guangdechang”) (note (a)) 25 March 2010 management
KERERHMEREERAR BB A AR — 100 ¥
([HEBE ) (5 (a)) —ET——fF 5,000,000 7t Property
Zhuhai Guoji Real Estate =A+NH RMB5,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhuhai Guoji”) (note (a)) 18 March 2011
KEMAFEERHEEXRBRAA B E A ARE — 51 WERE
(I%E2E]) (M (a) —ANZ=FtANA 1,000,000 7¢ Property
Zhuhai Doumen District Jinwu PRC/ Mainland China RMB1,000,000 development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 9 July 1992
(“Zhuhai Jinwu") (note (a))

EMNTRANEERERAR B W E A AR — 70 WMEERE
([EMKE) (M3E (@) —E-ZF 1,000,000 7¢ Property
Guangzhou Tiansi Property NA=+H RMB1,000,000 management
Management Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China

(“Guangzhou Tiansi”) (note (a)) 30 August 2010

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



17. BB ATRKRE(18)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
EBEMGZMEEEXERA A HERER NG — 50 WERE
(TEMZMBEE]) (M (a)) —ZT—=F 350,000,000 7¢ Property
Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun NATNE RMB350,000,000 development
Asset Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun”) (note (a)) 19 August 2013
BLUTEEEHEREERAA HE R EAM AR — 100 ¥R
([E#LeR ) (T @) —“E—-=%+AFH 10,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Fengrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 development
(“Foshan Fengrui”) (note (a)) 5 July 2013
RILTERFEHERERR AR HE R EAM AR — 100 ¥R
([ WEE ] (T (a) = 250,000,000 7T Property
Zhongshan Hengsheng Real Estate +-A=+XH RMB250,000,000 development
Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Zhongshan Hengsheng”) (note (a)) 26 December 2013
BLTIEELARFNEHELRBRAF HE R EAL AR — 100 #ERE
([NEfmaLZ=H]) (M3 (a)) —E—-MmF 1,200,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Shunde Hongtaili Real mMA=-+=H RMB1,200,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Shunde Hongtaili”) (note (a)) 22 April 2014
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17. BB ATRIRE (18)

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
KAREEAER
HMERY, RIRK - £yl d
EENMBEA B ERITLE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMEEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FEEHK
e2g establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BINTigrEERRA G FEL HE A AR — 60 WERE
([EMEE]) (M) —E-F 10,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Zengyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. =AZ+NH RMB10,000,000 development
(“Guangzhou Zengyuan”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
28 March 2014
BMNTMERREGRAA HE B A AR — 60 EER
(TBEMER]) (FHFE(a)) —E—mF 10,000,000 7T Investment
Guangzhou Zhiyuan Investments Co., Ltd. —AZ+WmH RMB10,000,000 holding
(“Guangzhou Zhiyuan”) (note (a)) PRC/ Mainland China
24 February 2014
EMTEREHEREERAR HE R E A AR — 100 #ERE
(TEMEH ) (a) —E—mF 800,000,000 7T Property
Guangzhou Fengtuo Property Development ~NAZ+Z=H RMBS800,000,000 development
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Fengtuo”) (note (a)) ~ PRC/ Mainland China
23 June 2014
BLTAREHEREEROA] FE B A AR — 100 MM
([ LA ]) (M3 (a) —E—F 50,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Chengtai Property =A=+H RMB50,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/ Mainland China
(“Foshan Chengtai”) (note (a)) 20 March 2014
KEMBEEHEREERAA HEl B A AR — 100 #EFRE
(TEx8HRE 1) (M (a)) —E—NF 1,100,000,000 7¢ Property
Zhuhai Jinrong Real Estate —ANA RMB1,100,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Zhuhai Jinrong”) (note (a)) Mainland China
9 January 2014

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



17. R EATMBRE (]) 17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)
RAT (LK) Company (Cont’d)
YNGR 2PN 3
HMERY, BRIR EEEoT
EENMERAS BRTERE/ Percentage of
Place and FEMBEA  equity attributable to
date of Issued the owners of
incorporation/ ordinary/ the Company FTEER
e2g A establishment and registered HE B  Principal
Name operations share capital Direct Indirect  activities
BMTRAREEEHEHEREERAR FE/FEAN AR — 100 SHERIE
(TEMEZ] (K@) —E-mEF 10,000,000 7T AR 7% R
Guangzhou Times Zhiye Real Estate Sales +A=+H RMB10,000,000 Sales agency
Agent Co., Ltd. PRC/ service and
(“Guangzhou Zhiye") (note (a)) Mainland China consultancy
30 July 2014
BLUTRARBEHEZRERAA] B B A AR — 100 "
([RS8 1) (FI5E (a)) —T—MF 200,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Times Rongjin Real Estate NAZ+H RMB200,000,000 development
Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Rongjin”) (note (a)) Mainland China
26 August 2014
EMmEAHEAREERBERRT FE B A AR — 100 #HEHE
(TEMAEF]) (M (a)) —ET-F 10,000,000 7T Network
Guangzhou Times Linlibang Network hnAZH RMB10,000,000 sales
Techonology Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Guangzhou Linlibang”) (note (a)) Mainland China
2 September 2014
BLUTHRAMSEEHEREBRAA FE B A AR® — 100 MEME
([ =1) (M) —ZE-F 600,000,000 7T Property
Foshan Times Yujing Real +=ZA+H RMB600,000,000 development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. PRC/
(“Foshan Yujing”) (note (a)) Mainland China
10 December 2014
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17. BB ATRIRE (18)

R F(#)

ZERRYARFME AT - BR T EEM
METEBERARZEXERIBEEERN
NZERRINFXAEBEMS -

M

(a) HAEEMBRRAEE B LG EB AR
ZKEE AR R AR E MK E R RE
REHB AR

# REAEFSEETBLSEREARR T
—OFEHEFIUNETRERH - BMNEHR8
EMRAEE LK EBI0NRAEZE
REERT SR EMERNRRABKE
FEEE A AR 449,386,000 T(R =&
—EFEF+ZA=+—RB)(R=ZZT—=F+=A
=+—8: T)(HFE29e)) R E R - ik
EaEg BENBEREMNERS AIBAHREE
E60% N 40% RS HE o

RIERTR 25 - AEE AR AR EDREA
VA 165 7 < %8 B 101 B 1 =8 B O AR S 2 M) 4B 5
e gbSh EEBAREEBERATES
T AERBEREEEREREMNEIHLREE
B(HEAIBEBRRDKES -

At ENZEFRELHELT LRUARR
ZERELER  RAKERBEEEHEB QA
FHREERRNEREN  URZFEE
ARREERYTEN  AAFREFIRA &
FHEQRANABMARELRERELASE
ERBERRPEBEEASARTRELRER
LrpEER)

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

Company (Cont'd)

The English names of certain group companies registered in
the PRC represent management’s best effort to translate their
Chinese names as they do not have official English names.

Note:

(a) Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firms of the Ernst &
Young global network.

# Pursuant to certain financing arrangements entered into between the

Group and certain independent alternative financing companies during
the year 2014, the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui and a
40% equity interest in Zhuhai Jiayu were legally transferred to those
alternative financing companies so as to secure the relevant borrowings
totalling RMB449,386,000 as at 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013: Nil) (note 29(e)) provided to Zhuhai Jiayu. Prior to the equity
transfer, Guangzhou Shengyu and Guangzhou Zhuorui respectively held
60% and 40% equity interests in Zhuhai Jiayu.

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the Group was endowed a
preferential right to repurchase the equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui
at an agreed amount within a specific period in the future. Furthermore,
the Group retains the power to operate and manage Guangzhou Zhuorui
and Zhuhai Jiayu (collectively referred to as the “Project Companies”) in
terms of ordinary businesses and the day-to-day operation.

In this regard, considering the facts that the substance of
the financing arrangements is to collateralise the borrowings
for project development and the Group retains the practical
ability to govern the financial and operating policies of the
Project Companies so as to obtain benefits from their operating
activities, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the financial position and operating results of these Project
Companies should be consolidated into the Group’s financial
statements in full, irrespective of the equity transfer from legal
perspective.



18. REIE TS 18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
AEBBENT ZFBEOT Particluars of the Group’s associates are as follows:
rEEERL
BEERZBD L
HAMREEN ERLPAY | Percentage of equity
g i 2% H H BANEE interests attributable FTEEK
Nominal to the Group
value of +=ZA=+-H
Place and date registered/ 31 December
of registration paid-up =—ZE-—MNUFE —T—=F
Name and business capital 2014 2013  Principal activities
ARBTFT
RMB’000
BMNTRRAFREERAA A R E A 11,000 30 30 WERE
(TEMERAE]) —E——F=/+H Property
Guangzhou Times Hongwei PRC/ development
Investment Company Limited " Mainland China
(“Guangzhou Times Hongwei”)* 10 March 2011
EMNTEERRESNEEN L B A 200,000 20 20 W&
BOERRARANTEMBE]D ZT—=F Money lending
Guangzhou Baiyun Heyintaifu +-A=H
Micro-credit Co., Ltd. " PRC/
(“Guangzhou Baiyun”)* Mainland China
3 December 2012
* ZENTRNERNNMBRERKEE B LK * The financial statements of these companies for the years were not

BN E TSPk Z ok B ET BN RIS AT R AR M Eo A
(B REEZ -

audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

A ZENTWARTFMERMERE T ZIE WS A The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
NEIZENEZBIYEARREETRNUZED by the directors of the Company to directly translate their Chinese names
AP ETEEEZEMS - as they do not register any official English names.
TwmENsaHmsS  AEBZHEE N The Group’s associates are considered not material to the
TR EHAREBR T TEAX - Group, either individually or in aggregate.
T RAEEESATRERNTS T T:e folt!owwﬁhtatéle ||I’ustratelstthetha;ggregattel f!jr]eladnmﬁl
TE AR A TRER in orma ion of the Group’s associates that are not individually
material:
—E—OF =4
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE 5 F A& R 5] A E Share of the associates’ profit for the year 4,160 2,371
LR E R RNBESE WA Share of the associates’ total comprehensive income 4,160 2,371
AREBERBEZANFNRERN Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
BHRTE B investments in the associates 49,465 45,304
AEEEEBE N RN &SRR AE B I5THR The Group’s balances with its associates are disclosed in note

RMTET24 IR EE -

24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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19. BEERFEER AR 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
ELEBBEEE Deferred tax assets
WEMRELHBEEECBENT The movements in deferred tax assets during the reporting

period are as follows:

FEEtFIE
THEER REMT
REER BE NAENZEH Hit @t
Accruals
and other
deductible
Provision temporary
Tax losses for LAT differences Others Total

ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RZZ—=%—F—H8 At1January 2013 44,899 21,945 15,041 1619 83,504
Credited/(debited) to the
FERGEBRER consalidated statement
A/ (18) of profit or loss during
(3 10) the year (note 10) (21,932) 4,208 19,406 (449) 1,233
R-E—=F
+-A=+—HRE® At31 December 2013 and
“Z-WME—-F—B  atlJanuary 2014 22,967 26,153 34,447 1,170 84,737
Credited to the
consolidated statement
FERGABREER of profit or loss during
A (KIFE10) the year (note 10) 49,885 63,035 11,917 — 124,837
R-T—MF
+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2014 72,852 89,188 46,364 1,170 209,574

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



19. BEERFEERAK(HE) 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

EEBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
REPBRELEHBEEEZEHNT The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the reporting

period are as follows:

H
W =G|
AREHH RE AIEANE
AABERE MEEMR HIBE @t
Fair value Taxes on
adjustment Revaluation  undistributed
arising from of  profits of the
acquisition of investment subsidiaries
subsidiaries properties in the PRC Total

ARBTRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RZZE—=%—H—H At 1 January 2013 (1,112,764) (187,625) (3,037) (1,303,426)
Y B B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary (8,422) — — (8,422)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated
FERGABRRIA statement of profit or loss during
(%) (K3 10) the year (note 10) 126,610 (10,500) (28,512) 87,598
RZF—=F+=-A=+—H  At31 December 2013 and at
FR-_Z—ME-—F—H 1 January 2014 (994,576) (198,125) (31,549) (1,224,250)
Credited/(debited) to the consolidated
FERNGABRERFNA/ statement of profit or loss during
(%) (K3 10) the year (note 10) 206,726 (14,450) (15,370) 176,906
RZZ—NE+=-A=1+—H8  At31 December 2014 (787,850) (212,575) (46,919) (1,047,344)
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19. BEERFEERAK(HE) 19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND

R-ZE-—OFE+-_A=+—H x%E
FTEEFTEAMBINBOTEEBES
AR #182,228,000 (=& — =% :
AR 130,919,0007T) " ZFEHEA
BEAZFEEHES  NEHEE2EZ
NAEBRERTAE o A & BI85 %
EEEEIAEEREEE RELER
ZHMBRAREZB —BRER  YRAT
RAEGELERRBAB AR HERAS

8o

BRERBECEMSTE  BREXRTERA
WK BERELEERENERE
EHRERI10% W TEFNFL © Z &K B
KB ZZEENF-A-HELEN BH
REZZEELFF+_A=+—RHREER
By 2 o a0 B A B OB R P AE
FEEERAABRKBE - BALERAR
EEMHBE - At - AKEARERF
BAK L zHBRA® TR N\F—
A-—RRBEEZENDIKZEHMNTE
-

WERAEERATFEAMK T ZHEBR
AR -_ZE-—MNWE+_A=+—HZX
fE & F ARE21626550007T(=
T—=fF: AR¥1,087,321,0007t)
FrER 2 TEMNMERELERE - EER
B ZENBRARRAIERNRETK
AN IREBAEF -

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Partial tax losses of the Group of RMB182,228,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: RMB130,919,000) respectively,
mainly arose in Mainland China, which can be carried forward
for a definite period from the year in which the losses arose
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

No deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of RMB2,162,655,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB1,087,321,000) that are subject to withholding taxes
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future.



20. FASPME 20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

—E-NmEF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR% Tt AR¥® Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
TEEHR THRBAET Properties under development expected
PRy - to be recovered:
—FR Within one year 8,249,354 6,929,837
—F1& After one year 9,055,626 6,287,896
17,304,980 13,217,733
NEBRERYEHM AR BRI IR The Group’s properties under development are all located in
REAFESYENHE LM - Mainland China and situated on leasehold land with long term
leases.
AEEBETHERYWENR _ZT—NF N At 31 December 2014 and 2013, certain of the Group’s
—E—=F+-_A=1t—HDEMETIR properties under development were pledged to banks and
TREMERA  UWEEBRTFAEERD other lenders to secure the bank loans and borrowings granted
RITE R RER (M FE29(c)) ° to the Group (note 29(c)).
21. BRETHEEHENDE 21. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE
AREBERIHIELENYWEMRF The Group’s completed properties held for sale are located
Wb o FTEE % THIEHENYETIIK in Mainland China. All completed properties held for sale are
ARSI R ERE 2RIEKESE - stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
ERTEEEENYENREREE The movement in the provision for impairment of completed
AT properties held for sale is as follows:
—E—MF —E—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥F T AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January — 1,665
ERErREREEKE6) Impairment losses reversed (note 6) — (1,665)
W12 A31H At 31 December — —
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22. BliR A HmIA
AEBZREREEZFAETIEZREIHEY
X CDHEMEZUEMBFERAER
BEE W& GRS - BKEZHIBAETG
B RIE 5 RA R R B 2 8 ik @
TREOEAAEE-

BEMRWEWRE S FAKEK D W

7

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arise from the sale of
properties. Considerations in respect of the properties sold are
payable by the purchasers in accordance with the terms of the
related sale and purchase agreements. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of trade receivables
approximate to their fair values due to their short-term maturity.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

—E-F —_E-=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
=EAR Within 3 months 1,087,096 461,843
AN DS 4 to 6 months 6,148 796
+t=+ @A 7 to 12 months 13,612 6,870
HBiE—F Over 1 year 118,021 3,023
1,224,877 472,532

—_E-NMER_FE—=%F1+=AH1 The balances of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2014

1|5

ST HZEREBESRAHBL KRB
H mARME BRZEKEARER
EFAW MREEFPROLEED
FCER °

=

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

and 2013 were neither past due nor impaired and related to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.



23. ARIRIE - &R HEMEL 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

®IA RECEIVABLES
—E-—MF —EF—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥Fx ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR B EFKIE Prepayments for leasehold land 344,642 1,201,594
e RE A ERFIE Deposits and other receivables 1,060,417 251,963
E I8 508 Other prepayments 467,522 442 067
1,872,581 1,895,624
FETFRIE - 1 M E M EW A T EIEK Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are unsecured,
a8  BAREETEERAR - non-interest-bearing and have no fixed term of repayment.
BN LB ERBEESEERS T HE Prepayments for leasehold land represent the prepayments for
AZENAE e FBE I - leasehold land with the application of land use right certificates
being processed.
24. BB EAFIHNRIEA 24. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
—EB-NEF —T—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
QAN Due from an associate:
— BN RALE — Guangzhou Times Hongwel 222,110 70,210
222,110 70,210
RN E RN RIMRIBHIEE S MHE « & The amount due from an associate is non-trade in nature,
TR 2E8 BRERKERE - EUKE unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
BEANRMRENEESEEOEARE carrying amount of the amount due from an associate
B ZERBFIEB AR BIIRE - approximates to its fair value. None of these receivables is

either past due or impaired.
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25. MMM BFEHRR

(a) FEBBIRK

25. TAX PREPAYMENTS/TAX PAYABLE

(a)

Tax prepayments

—F-0mF —F—=F
2014 2013
AR¥Fx AR Frx
RMB’000 RMB’000
TER D EFTISH Prepaid CIT 67,145 26,380
TER T I E R Prepaid LAT 209,415 195,969
276,560 222,349

(b) FEHBIR (b) Tax payable
—E—NEF —ET—=4F
2014 2013
AR¥Fx AR¥Frx
RMB’000 RMB’000
e S CIT payable 580,507 283,004
FEBL 1 3B E T LAT payable 356,749 114,892
937,256 397,896

O@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



26. e kB &FRYMLIRZR
B R ITHFER

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Group Company
rEH P N
—ENFE —FT—=F ZE-NF —FT—=F
2014 2013 2014 2013
ARBFRT AR FrT ARETFr AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R MIRITEH Cash and bank balances 5,417,585 3,667,564 151,293 785,876
B ZRHIRITE R Less: Restricted bank deposits
(Kt7E (a)) (note (a)) (2,691,848) (1,946,083) (1,282) —
HeMReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,725,737 1,721,481 150,011 785,876
AAREEE(HE (b)) Denominated in RMB (note (b)) 2,662,816 887,194 89,517 —
NE A & EHE Denominated in other currencies 62,921 834,287 60,494 785,876
2,725,737 1,721,481 150,011 785,876
BfaE - Notes:

(a)

(b)

REPBAEEER  AEENETYEMRE
ARBAREERITEFFER—ESEND
WEERSRERRNERAR KX
F+ZA=+—"H8 ZEZRHIBREAAR
#2,127,728,000TT(=F — = F: AR¥
1,099,672,0007T) °

R-E—NE+-_A=1+—HE2EEAR
#350,911,00070(= B — = %: AR ¥
757,499,000 7T ) #9 52 PR # 17 3 8 MR 17 78
EZEREFANMERAEHRE  AESR
THOfER - HEEERAZIBRHETER -
R-Z—WE+-_A=1t—HL2EEAR
#213,209,000L(= T — = F: AR M
88,912,000 7T ) #) Fl &4 2 IR il 17 54 & 7 #1717
o Heh AR 150,000,000 ST E/EHEIE - LA
MEETFAEENBTERZZ =4 A
R ¥ 70,000,000 7T) (K5E29(c)) °

B2 - RiRP BT M SME E Bl AERIAR
ERER  ARBTRAREBKEGES -
PR b R A SR (B SR it B IR S E 2 55 36755
BVERTT - BARB LMK EMER -

FRRRBITOBSRIBERITEAERA
R F BN RFEANSWA - RE KK
CEHEEVULZRFBTERNERS
BMEOERAAEE - RITHEREZR
RITERBAERNORBEZOCERAE
BRIFHIRTT ©

(a)

(b)

Cash

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property
development companies of the Group are required to place certain
amounts of pre-sale proceeds received in designated bank accounts for
specific use. As at 31 December 2014, such restricted cash amounted
to RMB2,127,728,000 (2013: RMB1,099,672,000).

The restricted deposits as at 31 December 2014 amounting to
RMB350,911,000 (2013: RMB757,499,000) represented the loan
proceeds in the monitoring accounts designated by the banks, in
which case the use of the restricted bank deposit is subject to the
banks’ approval. The remaining restricted deposits amounting to
RMB213,209,000 (2013: RMB88,912,000) were primarily time deposits
as at 31 December 2014, out of which RMB150,000,000 were pledged
for bank borrowings granted to the Group (2013: RMB70,000,000) (note
29(c)).

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

at banks earns interest income at floating rates based on

daily bank deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and
cash equivalents and the restricted bank deposits approximate
to their fair values. The bank balances and restricted bank
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

27. BB HRIA 27. TRADE PAYABLES
ERBEEHHARBREHARENE FHHIE An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
ZEREEDTAT reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

—F-0F —F—=fF
2014 2013
AR¥FT AR¥TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR Within 1 year 2,681,934 1,906,519
— 1% Over 1 year 874,134 507,343
3,556,068 2,413,862
FENEBESHBEIEEH . 22 - BRIE The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
BEFEBHANINEKRKEER - repayable within the normal operating cycle or on demand.
RBE R ENESRBEBNAALEBE The fair values of trade payables at the end of the reporting
BERERERAENEESRE RAEME period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts
S IBHARABE EBE - due to their relatively short maturity terms.

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E-NmF —E—=F

2014 2013

AR¥ T AR®Fr

RMB’000 RMB’000

B R e & FEWGRIA Deposits received and receipts in advance 8,530,918 7,487,978

FEETFRIE & H Ab fE 4 508 Accruals and other payables 1,504,329 369,841

WEETE B A B 2 FE 3R Payables for acquisition of project companies 360,000 625,000

FERT B Interest payable 181,692 25,150
BERZY 3 E AN Other payables to the

Hth A B (BT RE) non-controlling shareholders (note) 140,404 363,585

MBYIREE S MFRENFIE  Payables to independent investors — 521,247

10,717,343 9,392,801

Pt

RZZ—NERZZT—=F+=-A=1+—8 " AkE
A% A% B T A JE T SR IB 2 1B IR B A RIE SN

Note:

Details of other payables to the non-controlling shareholders as at 31 December
2014 and 2013 are set out by project company as follows:

T

—E2-NF —E-=F
2014 2013
ARMFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BN Guangzhou Nanying 0 62,778 62,778
B R ER Guangzhou Tiansi i) 47,626 47,626
Bt e E Guangzhou Lvdi Baiyun i — 238,181
BINEEE Guangzhou Guangdechang i) 30,000 15,000
140,404 363,585

)] LR BIE RN BN R H IR AR AR SR 2 SRR o 0} The balances mainly represented the payables to the non-

i)

HERNFTAEHREETODE(ZEDEZL
BEREERIFERBRRAE)ER - LEER
I TR B R AN S B 4 SRR AR R PR R 2
BB EESHR CNETAE - 258
NRERIAEEZEPNEEBRARPEFAS
OFR o RIBAREEIFERERN —F—=4F
TZAZT—RITUNERGE  EHREN
E &% A R 62,778,000 7T 1+5 #% % & fF
A ©

MBERIEIR B REEERBRAS 248 ZF
RBERTYEIRIR - %8 - BREBREERAR -

controlling shareholder of Guangzhou Nanying. Such payable
balances were in connection with certain properties, the
economic benefits of which solely attributable to the non-
controlling shareholder, and where appropriate measured
by reference to the market value of the associating asset
balances, reflecting the Group’s obligation to the non-controlling
shareholder. Changes in the fair values of those payables are
credited/charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Pursuant to a supplementary agreement entered into
between the Group and the non-controlling shareholder as at 31
December 2013, it is mutually agreed to settle such payables at
a fixed amount of RMB62,778,000.

ii) Balances represented the balances to the non-controlling

shareholders of the project companies which were non-secured,
interest-free and with no fixed term of repayment.

2014 £ E & Annual Report 2014 @O
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9. HRMITER R K&K

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

“E-mE —T-=F
2014 2013
- ¥ilp: ) &8 ERAE ZI 58 Ea-
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity Amount  interest rate Maturity Amount
(%) AREF T (%) ARETFT
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
TE Current
BOIER-EEH Bank loans - unsecured 6.7-8.7 2015 537,815 6.5-6.7 2014 31,000
FITEF-BHEA Bank loans - secured 5.7-8.7 2015 365,950 59-11.0 2014 1,422,143
Hipfe R — EEH Other borrowings — unsecured 9.2 2015 71,000 4469 2014 283,713
Hipfe R -5 HA Other borrowings — secured 11.1-13.0 2015 811,512 54-12.9 2014 240,638
1,786,277 1,977,494
k) Non-current

%E TES - BEH Bank loans — unsecured 7.3-8.4 2016 778,211 6.8 2016 254,152
h%fx RER Bank loans - secured 5.9-11.1 2016-2023 2,601,777 5477 20152023 4,212,505
,H\Mé?k BIR Other borrowings — unsecured 9.2-13.3 2016 416,088 — — —
HER-EHH Other borrowings — secured 8.8-12.8 2016-2017 1,892,386 9.1-12.9 2015 958,397

BREE-FEE
(HEe) Senior notes — secured (note g) 11.2-13.5 2017-2019 3,316,642 — — —
9,005,104 5,425,054
10,791,381 7,402 548

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



29. R RMITER K H 5K

: 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
(#&)

OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

—E—MF —E—=F
2014 2013
AR¥FT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DT Analysed into:
EEBIRITER Bank loans repayable:
—&FR Within one year 903,765 1,453,143
FE_F In the second year 2,159,447 1,686,347
F-ZEFERF
(BEERME) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 1,012,541 2,562,310
HBARF Beyond five years 208,000 218,000
4,283,753 5,919,800
HEMpEEEER: Other borrowings repayable:
—F Within one year 882,512 524,351
F_F In the second year 2,065,474 958,397
EZEZERF
(BEERME) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 243,000 —
3,190,986 1,482,748
BEERLES Senior notes repayable:
F=EFRF In the third to fifth years, inclusive 3,316,642 —
(BEEREMTE)
3,316,642 —
10,791,381 7,402,548
BfaE - Notes:
(a) BR-_E—NFER-_T—=F+-_A=1+— (a) Except for certain non-current other borrowings amounting to RMB5,827

(b)

BEeEPBAARKESQIAETRARYE
1,456 BB E TIERBEMER - UERR
—E-NER-T—=F+_A=+—H%HE
DRIABARKEI0BIEBETEARKGEI0ESE
TTRIE T REIRIT RE M EFRABEFI RS
Oh - FIREIRTT REMERUZBFIRG B -
REBRITREMERZEESHEAEAEARE
BRE -

BRR-F—mF+-A=+—HSERAR
#1,844,033,000(Z T —=ZF: AR¥
218,091,0007%) M5 F A I RITH A X
(T ) RAT (DB FHES - AZER
s RO T SR AT LR R R A A AR
BHE -

(b)

million and RMB1,456 million as at 31 December 2014 and 2013,
respectively, and certain current bank and other borrowings amounting
to RMB1,031 million and RMB630 million as at 31 December 2014 and
2013, respectively, bearing fixed interest rates, the remaining bank and
other borrowings bear interest at floating rates. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s bank and other borrowings approximate to their fair values.

Except for certain secured bank loans, amounting to RMB1,844,033,000
as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB218,091,000) which were
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), all the Group’s bank loans and other borrowings were
denominated in RMB as at the end of the reporting period.

2014 £ E & Annual Report 2014 @O
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ZZ—F+=H=+—H 31 December 2014

29. FIRBITHERR HMAER
==
(#8)
Wit (80
(©  RBEEK - AREGETEEDIEN TR

REMERA  DEEETALERNRITER
R EAMER -

29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(c)

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were
pledged to banks and other lenders for securing the bank loans and
other borrowings granted to the Group.

ZEEENREAER : The carrying values of these assets are:
—E-mEF —ET-=fF
2014 2013
K AR FR AREFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
"EME Investment properties 16 1,397,940 1,582,000
R E Properties under development 20 3,443,115 1,847,475
W - WEREE Property, plant, and equipment 14 240,204 —
BT REHSENYE Completed properties held for sale 229,123 20,015
AT T ERE Prepaid land lease payments 15 682,842 25,300
D EHER Pledged time deposit 26 150,000 70,000
6,143,224 3,544,790

(d) RITE—WFE+-A=+—08 ' KEEZPR
IREMERT  —HtAERDEESEE
A AR 600,000,000 (ZF—=F+=A
=t+—B: R)NERUAEE B2 EWHE
ARG IRE N D IIE D (EAIEA -

(e) R-Z-—NE+-A=+—H KEEZIR
TREMERS  —HAARRBDABSHE
RAR® 449,386,000 L(ZFE—=F+=A
== B)NERUAEEAEE BB
REEMNFHRARMEAEREREIR - %R
SRETAKEEEN60% BAEmIERER o

(f) RZZE—WNF+_A=+—HB &8RS
Bl A AR 63,539,000 L (ZF—=4: AR
#122,462,0007C ) + A K #211,512,00070
(ZZ—=%F: AR¥208,397,0007T) * AR
#300,000,000L(ZT—=F: &) AR
#300,000,0007C( =B —=4 : )R ARK
350,000,000 L( =T — =% : E)NFETER
T LA 5= [ B /BB A B B N K BT ) 70% AR A 48
- ROBMEMS0R B AR BRES
#)100% R AAE S ~ 3511 L E ) 100% I A
a5 R 1L K = 89 100% B ANHE 2 1 A 43 o

B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

(d)

(e)

(f)

At 31 December 2014, out of the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings, a borrowing amounting to RMB600,000,000 (31 December
2013: Nil) included in the non-current liability, was secured by the
pledge of the entire equity shares of Zhuhai Jinrong, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

At 31 December 2014, out of the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings, an amount of RMB449,386,000 (31 December 2013: Nil)
included in the non-current liability, was secured by way of transferring
the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuorui, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. And such amount was also secured by the
pledge of the 60% equity interest in Zhuhai Jiayu.

At 31 December 2014, 70% equity interest in Guangzhou Tiansi,
50% equity interest in Changsha Meiguiyuan, 100% equity interest in
Guangdong Guangchang, 100% equity interest in Foshan Fengrui and
100% equity interest in Foshan Yongheng, which are the subsidiaries
of the Group, were pledged as security for certain borrowings with
aggregate amounts of RMB63,539,000 (2013: RMB122,462,000),
RMB211,512,000 (2013: RMB208,397,000), RMB300,000,000 (2013:
Nil), RMB300,000,000 (2013: Nil) and RMB350,000,000 (2013: Nil),
respectively.
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

Senior notes

(i)

(i)

“E-NFE N 12.625% K TE L
ES

RZZ—MFE=A=+—H8 ' AQF
WEE AL R 99.278% HITR =T
— N I Ei A & ¥8 & 225,000,000
(& 7 4 A R #1,383,188,000
L) 12.625% B A ZEER(T =T —M
FZRAEEER]D RZT—HF
HAZH ARQAEEEASEN
100.125% REIN BT =T — N F
3| 29 & 4 %8 /80,000,000 % JT(48
B R4 A R ¥492,640,0007T ) 6
12625% BAZEKE(ZZ—NFAH A
BEEE])  _E—NE=RBLE
BH-_Z-NMERABREZEAHR
HXE—ZY - SR ZT—NFE
HM12.625% X LBAEE ] =T
—NEF I 12.625% ETEELEE
RE R L WA T —ME= A
Z+—B(B#EZB)ELL12.625% )
FRERFE - B¥EFEIfF—k-

AR A AR ENEMERE - ZEER
FfE 24 %8 100% 3 HiE A s [E R fE
BlIfE - BE2EMIFLH_T—NF
FIEIM 12.625% E T BAEE - AR
AIMABIEE T —NF=A_-_+—
HEBEANE TR HERNEET
TBRIEEERER - T — NETHH
12625% % TBA R - EE_Z
—HEDHM12.625% ETEBAEE
REAMES  F2MARRAHAS
T-ME=A+=AK T —MFEH
AZ+HAMEEAE -

R-ZE—NE+-_A=+—8 &K
EE T -NFHEM12.625%F T
B RIBBEEHR - 455,000,000
ENNETELAZEHSAENEB
FT—NLIHE  ZEERRARZ
EREZBRPHEERS  MaIEL
SRR ARG T MR
E=HESAEERE AR -

“E—EFEHMN10.375% ARKE
TR

RZZ—WFEELA+ARBE AR
R ZBE A S BEH100%E TR =
T+t FIHHASRBAARYE
900,000,000 7T #710.375% 18 5t =
BE(ZZ2—WNFELABEZER]D -
—ET-NE+A+MHB - AQAE
ZE RS M 100.125% BITETR
T LFISHASHEAARE
600,000,000 7T #910.375% 18 5t Z &
(ZT—HE+AELEZERK]) - =T
—FEEABEREHE T —MF+
ABRAZBREAYHEKE R &
BAZZ—+FEEHMH10.375% A
REEBLER] - T —tF2HH
10.375% AR ¥ 8 5t IR0 B 22 BT £
W YE-T-—NFEA+AB(BE
Z B ) LA10.375% B F F K&t &
BEFIF—WR -

()

(i)

USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019

On 21 March 2014, the Company issued 12.625% senior
notes due 2019 in a principal amount of USD225,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB1,383,188,000) at
99.278% of the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior
Notes March 2014”). On 2 May 2014, the Company issued
additional 12.625% senior notes due 2019 in a principal
amount of USD80,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB492,640,000) at 100.125% of the principal amount of
such notes (the “Senior Notes May 2014”). Senior Notes March
2014 and Senior Notes May 2014 consolidated to form a single
series which is referred to as the “USD 12.625% Senior Notes
Due 2019”. The USD 12.625% Senior Notes Due 2019 are
listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and including 21
March 2014 at the rate of 12.625% per annum, payable semi-
annually in arrears.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem the
USD12.625% Senior Notes Due 2019, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus the applicable premium. The USD12.625%
Senior Notes Due 2019 are also redeemable at the option of
the Company at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 21 March 2019. For further
details on the USD12.625% Senior Notes due 2019, please
refer to the related announcements of the Company dated 13
March 2014 and 25 April 2014, respectively.

At 31 December 2014, out of the Group’s total USD 12.625%
Senior Notes due 2019, certain senior notes with a principal
amount of USD5,000,000 were held by Ms. Li Yiping, the
spouse of Mr. Shum. Mr. Shum is deemed to be interested in
these senior notes, which were under normal commercial terms
and had similar conditions to those held by independent third
parties.

RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017

On 16 July 2014, the Company issued 10.375% senior notes
due 2017 in a principal amount of RMB900,000,000 at 100%
of the principal amount of such notes (the “Senior Notes July
2014"). On 14 October 2014, the Company issued additional
10.375% senior notes due 2017 in a principal amount of
RMB600,000,000 at 100.125% of the principal amount of such
notes (the “Senior Notes October 2014"). Senior Notes July
2014 and Senior Notes October 2014 were consolidated to form
a single series which is referred to as the “RMB 10.375% Senior
Note Due 2017". The RMB 10.375% Senior Note Due 2017 are
listed on the SEHK and bear interest from and including 16 July
2014 at the rate of 10.375% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears.
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29. iR BMITERE KM ER
(#&)
Wi - ()
@  EERER)

(ii) —E—tFEHM10.375% ARBE
FERE)

ANA R AR MR - SR
BT A& [B] AN & 58 100% 3 hid A 4 B 19
EEE - BoamiEhs =T —+
FEFHM10.375% ARBEBRERE -
RABIRAEEE T —+tF LA
+NBEHEATNE T 5T BE AR
ETHEAEEERER T — 45
HAE 10.375% ARBEBHREE - B
T R|HR 10.375% AREE
EEBENEMFER  F2EAQRA
HAZZT—NFtA+AER=ZZ—NO
F+ANBHEBAE -

NFAMBRRERZELERBEFNEWT

29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(g)

Senior notes (Cont'd)

(ii) RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 (Cont'd)

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem the RMB
10.375% Senior Note Due 2017, in whole but not in part, at
a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount
redeemed plus the applicable premium. The RMB 10.375%
Senior Notes due 2017 are also redeemable at the option of the
Company at certain predetermined prices in certain specific
periods prior to the maturity date of 16 July 2017. For further
details on the RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017, please
refer to the related announcements of the Company dated 10
July 2014 and 8 October 2014, respectively.

The senior notes recognised in the consolidated financial statements are
calculated as follows:

—E—tFIY —E-hEFIH
#10.375% #12.625%
AREBBXRERE ETBEREE
RMB 10.375% USD 12.625%
Senior Notes Senior Notes st
due 2017 due 2019 Total
AR¥Fr AR¥Fr AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZT—MFE—A—HMRESE Carrying amount as at 1 January 2014 — — —
FREETT Issuance during the year 1,500,000 1,875,828 3,375,828
LB Transaction costs (30,543) (55,279) (85,822)
FEZH Interest charged 59,433 183,680 243,113
FT A EL A P 5108 K e AT FRIE Interest payable included in
K FE IS other payables and accruals (56,281) (177,184) (233,465)
VE 3% Exchange realignment — 16,988 16,988
R-Z—ME+-A=+—HHK Carrying amount as at
BRES%HE 31 December 2014 1,472,609 1,844,033 3,316,642

EBRFEBmASEE TRHBERINEMAL
RSB 2 B (TP A BB R A L) SRR R AE R
HER  WAZEHBRTERAZE TRN
TR

ZE-NFHEBM12.625% ETBARER

T+ FFHMN10375% AREBEEZR
DR 13.5% K% 11.2% I EEF KRB -

O@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group which are incorporated outside the PRC
(“Subsidiary Guarantors”) and are secured by the pledge of certain
shares of such Subsidiary Guarantors.

The effective interest rates of USD 12.625% Senior Notes due 2019
and RMB 10.375% Senior Notes due 2017 are 13.5% and 11.2%,
respectively.



30. AR RS

RZT—WNFLA=+HB  ARAEHK
AEREEO100% ETR -F— NLF2NH
N & #2 %8 /388,000,000 % 7T (48 & R
#) A R % 308,369,000 7T ) #) A # % (&
F(IA@mkEsR])  BAA#REFER
EEBMERHMARAR LT - AT
BEFRFNEB%FTE - ARFELER
X BASEETHE AR KR KE
BITEHFELR -

EFEFHAEABRRNERBANZERER
MR ERERE S LT RRES &R AT
MR EHFEERZ AR A T B &%
TZBRHUFBRGD]) ASZTHRR
EHIERR - EHBRKZME3.50E
TEHE YEBERERVNTBERERRE
BESF ATBRBRESFEIEBRAEARD
AIEREEOLE TR L ERGE
£ 5110,857, 142 5 B - BD A A
A BETHBROEANETBREALY
6.05%) - BRAR R EHFNE ZF1E
FEL2HAQNFTBEHA-ZT—NFL AL
Bk —_Z—NWF+A-+HHNBEBAR

=

RZTE—MNE+ A - +HBWRERETA
¥ & 75 P 15 50 IR % %6 383,668,000 78
T(HENARHK306,213,0007T) ° &
RAKAERBEFERAEERE  EOQ
HEEEMRBEVBAE -

E-T-—NE+-A=+—H #E
i ek BB O AR AR A 5

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 25 July 2014, the Company issued Convertible Bonds due
2019, in the aggregate principal amount of HKD388,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB308,369,000) (the
“Convertible Bonds”) at the price of 100% of their principal
amount and the Convertible Bonds were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Convertible Bonds bear
interest at the rate of 8% per annum and payable quarterly in
arrears and were jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the bondholders
have the right to convert their Convertible Bonds into shares
to be allotted and issued by the Company upon conversion of
the Convertible Bonds (“New Shares”) at any time during the
conversion period at the conversion price then in effect. Based
on the initial conversion price of HKD3.50 and assuming full
conversion of the Bonds at the initial conversion price, the
Convertible Bonds will be convertible into convertible into fully
paid ordinary shares with a par value of HKDO.1 each of the
Company, equally 110,857,142 New Shares, approximately
6.05% of the ordinary share capital of the Company, as
enlarged by the issue of New Shares. For further details of the
Convertible Bonds, please refer to the related announcements
of the Company dated 7 July 2014 and 25 July 2014.

The net proceeds from issuance of the Convertible Bonds
of HKD383,668,000 (equivalent to RMB306,213,000) were
received on 25 July 2014. The Company used the net proceeds
for the refinancing, redemption or other repayment of existing
financial indebtedness.

Up to 31 December 2014, there was no conversion or
redemption of the Convertible Bonds.
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30. AIRBR R % (¥8)

ARRESFCEAFSRANSRITE

TEARBEILSWT :

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

The Convertible Bonds were recognised as embedded financial
derivatives, and a debt component as follows:

—E-F
2014
AR% Tt
RMB’000
RAFEBEBTARKRESEE Nominal value of the Convertible Bonds issued
during the year 308,369
B mARNERITET R Less: Embedded financial derivatives (115,241)
Direct transaction costs attributed to
BEMIEHEEIZKE the debt component (2,156)
RZZE—WOFELA=Z+AHHAH
VIR ERN B ES D Debt component on initial recognition as at 25 July 2014 190,972
FERX Interest expense 14,898
[=ENEESS Interest paid (10,035)
ME 5 38 & Exchange realignment 1,383
RZE—MF+=A=+—H
maEHBs (KiEa) Debt component as at 31 December 2014 (note a) 197,218
RZZFE—WOFELAZTHABVER Embedded-financial derivative on initial recognition
BRNBRAXSRITELA as at 25 July 2014 115,241
AMEEHFITESRTA Changes in fair value of the derivative component
oM AR BEZS of the Convertible Bonds 4,767
ME 5, 38 B Exchange realignment 879
RZE—WNF+_A=+—H0HK Embedded financial derivatives as at
BmARNEBITETAE(KED) 31 December 2014 (note b) 120,887
RZE—NFE+_A=1+—HH Convertible Bonds as at 31 December 2014 318,105
A} ES

PEE - Notes:

a) BEISDBEANBEVSER  LABVHA a) Debt component is initially recognised at its fair value, which is the
RS FIEFENRRARERITET residual amount after deducting the fair value of the embedded financial
ARNrhBEEANFHESE  HEBEZRERFEMNX derivatives from the net proceeds at the initial recognition, and it is
17.9% KA # s A5 B © subsequently carried at amortised costs at an effective interest rate of

17.9% per annum.
b) MAREGRITETAEBEABRESEE AN b) Embedded financial derivatives comprise the fair value of the option of

BRERS A RRES LB A AR R B AR
BRENQAEBE: TRAREFHAAZLAR
AEREE BB EFAEREODAEE AR
ARBEE A RRESNERENDAEE -

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

the holders of the Convertible Bonds to convert the Convertible Bonds
into ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price; the fair
value of the option of the holders of the Convertible Bonds to require
the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds; and the fair value of the
option of the Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds.
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(%)

HZERANEERAEEIRE  EEH R
BREAIRITEE o Bt ZEEEETAOEA
R AR —HEEITETA -

AERESHB S EEEEMPEHTEE
A RBRABRARTR_E—NFEA=+H
AN—Z—NME+-A=+—H#TEE =
BAREBEFERAXNSRITETANG
B RAEEAERBONEETABERHAN

30.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

b) (Cont'd)

These embedded options are interdependent as only one of these
options can be exercised. Therefore, they are not able to be accounted
for separately and a single compound derivative was recognised.

A valuation on the Convertible Bonds has been performed by Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent
qualified valuer, on 25 July 2014 and 31 December 2014. The binomial
model is used in the valuation of the embedded financial derivatives. The
quantitative information about fair value measurements using significant

B(EIE)ERDT - unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as below:
R=2—m $
+=A=+-— FABR
Bl E’JA‘M"E HREFE BWARE A
Fair value at
31 December Valuation Unobservable
Description 2014 technique Inputs Adopted
BAXERITETA 150,110,0007% 7T ZIERER BEHFEE®) 11.84%
Embedded financial derivatives HKD150,110,000 Binomial Model Credit Spread (i)
IR 8 (i) 49.34%
Volatility (ii)

Bt

L RS AR AR AR
LB E AR T SR T A (B %) o X 8
%

i. RBERIE D ERR XA RRIBEE

EFEELAARSBRARSRITETANAAEE
Lo BORMRIEMIRARE R S M AR ERITET AN
’A/‘*f“@i‘m o

BAXSRITETANEBEERE TEBBRRNSEE
BEW - MREBRREARREFENFREBHEL -

Notes:

The credit spread adopted is determined with reference to the yield of
other non-convertible instrument (or bonds) having the similar quality
rating and similar investment characteristics.

ii. The volatility adopted was based on the average of the peer companies’
volatilities.

The increase in credit spread may result in increase in the fair value of embedded
financial derivatives. Increase in volatility may also result in increase in the fair
value of embedded financial derivatives.

The value of embedded financial derivatives varies with different variables of

certain subjective assumptions, which have been made by the directors of the
Company based on their best estimates.
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31. =&

)

31. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

—B-mF —F-=
2014 2013

ETE Authorised:
10,000,000,000 f& 10,000,000,000
(ZT—=% :10,000,000,000f%)
T@Ek - SREE0.105T

(2013:10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HKD0.10 each

1,000,000,000 &7
HKD1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000 % &
HKD1,000,000,000

BETREAR:
1,722,960,000 (=T — =% -
1,722,960,000 % ) &% -
BREEO0.10BT

Issued and fully paid:

1,722,960,000 (2013: 1,722,960,000)
ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each

172,296,000 /& it
HKD172,296,000

172,296,000 & 7
HKD172,296,000

i

i3

i Equivalent to

AR# 135,778,000 ¢
RMB135,778,000

AE# 135,778,000 1
RMB135,778,000

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

There was no movement in share capital during the year.



32. MRARHERT R

ARABEBETHEERESE (18 B&
) B B B 7R SR (B 2 B R TH 1F L B RR
MABR2EE -FENEERSAE
BRERARBMEMAREE EEEXREXE
5 BN B AV IR R E P e ) K
BERZAEE -HEREXR_FT—=%
T—A+TAB(RBEHRDBENT R
BREFERZRMERR - LA RAAHRE
FFI0FHBEABA ML AER -

PRERNQABRAM AN - RRFRRE
s8I R AR A E A fE IR &L TR
ZHEBREETEEAET IR &
=HE ARTFEEBEBELTAMSET
M 1 48 82 10% (81 172,296,000 A% A%
) ETSBBTRHEETRMNDAEREZ
30% ° FREEAR DR BIRILEIN - RAEM
TZEAHE ERTREEARAMR
ESzBRE(RRETERHRTRZ
A BITER K THITZ RO EET
BHEBCDBHTROHABEM 1% -

ERARBRAEIBREREN ZS
B3 1.00/8 7T » RIERE A AR KD
ZHERESSRHNBERT  ERE
ERT - ZHETFBEEREEE
o A A M 51 B AL HE B BRAE R 10 4F -

RITEREASR D 2BREMEITZ
BEBHZRBESHEFSLEE
EEAGERTIN&ESE  (DERD
AM(ERBIMMAMETESEENHA
TR P B ¥R (E & AT 5 R 1IR30 B fn 1R
mE: (NEERHBHAITRESL XA
X ERERMAIIRD EXFHES
B K (i) RipEE -

BR-ZF—=F+—At+LBERMAE
- BLEARIERE R LRI -

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee, management member or director of the Company,
or any other eligible participants upon the terms set out in the
Scheme. The Scheme was adopted pursuant to the resolutions
of all the shareholders passed on 19 November 2013 (the
“Adoption Date”) and shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
as at the Listing Date (i.e., 172,296,000 shares), unless the
Company obtains approval from its shareholders and must not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each grantee (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue,
unless approval of the Company’s shareholders is obtained.

The amount payable by the grantee on application or
acceptance of an option shall be HKD1.00. The period within
which the shares must be taken up under an option shall be
determined by the board at its absolute discretion and in any
event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the
date upon which any particular option is granted in accordance
with the Scheme.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued pursuant
to the exercise of an option granted under the Scheme shall be
solely determined by the board and shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the official closing price of the shares as stated
in the SEHK’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the SEHK is open for the business
of dealing in securities; (ii) the average of the official closing
prices of the SEHK's daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

Since the adoption of the Scheme on 19 November 2013, no
options have been granted pursuant to the Scheme.
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33. f#fm

AEH

(a) AEERAEERBEERE KB
SEREBHRARENGA BN
BHEPLS) -

(b) HARE

AEENFABREBRE_TZT
NFTZA=+—"BLEFEHRH
RESEAMRBHEBELATE AR
A2 EEARBEARNAEITIAE
Rz RO EEZHEERE -

(c) EFm@EE

EAfREEERBHEB AR M
FEBREZNBERLT - AASKE
P 7 B2 UG B R AT AP iR 2 AL RO &
B SRR IR R BROCR Y B
RAM B RAEBENERT
ARHEMESRIERLEFER
o RMERR

(d) ZEBBLAEZ

REFBREBERRER A%
EEPBEFMOETRARAR—
TE b Bl B 4% BR R B 1 ¥ X R A
VEETERIGFE MR BT (K
HWAEMNBAEFENEEBER)BEH
BLAES EHEREBELAESLE
BRIETEREAL0N  AIEEBEM
E—THER - ATABLESD
AR EEBTFEE 2 BB R IE
MER - R BERETAL
AESELBAREREEHTER
ERH25% °

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

33. RESERVES

Group

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate of the nominal value of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor during
the year ended 31 December 2008.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the
cost of acquisition and the non-controlling interests
acquired in the case of acquisition of additional non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, or, the difference
between the proceeds from disposal and the non-
controlling interests disposed of in the case of disposal of
partial equity interests in subsidiaries to non-controlling
shareholders.

Statutory surplus funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, the companies now comprising the Group which
are registered in the PRC shall appropriate a certain
percentage of their net profit after tax (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) calculated under the accounting
principles generally applicable to the PRC enterprises
to reserve funds. When the balances of this reserve
fund reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the
capital after these usages.



33. fEfim(#8) 33. RESERVES (CONT’'D)

b YN Company
RARRFEAZ FHEESHERIOT The changes in reserves of the Company for the year are set
out as follows:

RORER EXRBEE R EE st
Share Exchange
fifz Premium fluctuation  Accumulated
Notes account reserve losses Total

ARBTL  ARETT  ARBFT  ARETT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB1000

W-E-=%—F—H At 1 January 2013 1,452,565 (199,734) (13,615) 1,239,216
CEN(461 Capitalisation Issue (101,827) - — (101,827)
BELTRRHET Issue of shares in connection of the Listing 1,188,051 — — 1,188,051

ROBTHEY Share issue expenses (57,739) - - (57,739)
FEREFBLEE Total comprehensive loss for the year 11 — (33,935) (15913) (49,848)
ERERE Dividend declared 12 (873913) — - (873913)
“E-CERERERAE Proposed final 2013 dividend 12 (188,486) - - (188,486)
R-Z-—=F+-F=t-8E

—Z-mE-A-H At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 1,418,651 (233,669) (29,528) 1,155,454

FEREFBLR Total comprehensive loss for the year 11 — 33,163 (226,047) (192,884)
“Z-MERERBRE Proposed final 2014 dividend 12 (247,135) = - (247,135)
RZE-WE+-A=T—H At 31 December 2014 1,171,516 (200,506) (255,575) 715,435
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34.

BRRAR
RBERR - AEBERETRITIRTH
WIBERREHRER  ZFRBERSR
RASEMENETEEERENES
ER - REERGR RZEBEER
REBEBARE  AEBEEEARTEER
BHNBEERANAKREERBALER
FEAMNERSEe BEASEAEREEE
HEMENRLXELERE - AKHE
MERPAERZBERNRL AHRA
e YREHEMEEZZELRER
FHEMBEE —RNBEEHAHERE
MER-—EMFREL -

RRERARBETEAEEMEBEED
RBERXMABRTRENERSEN
™

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments
by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the
banks, and the Group is entitled to take over the legal titles and
possession of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
periods start from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and end upon the issuance of real estate ownership
certificates which is generally within one to two years after the
purchasers have taken possession of the relevant properties.

The amount of guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities
granted to the purchasers of the Group’s properties as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

—E - —F—=F
2014 2013
AR¥F ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAEEMEETHBEEN Guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities
BB EFIREER for certain purchasers of the Group’s properties 6,913,063 4,068,420

35.

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

EERA BEERNFWBRT - 18
MENAERFEARAREEREER
BALERENE RIS - FILELR
B BImERT W ARLIERE LS

RERKRGAIER
ARERRTREMIERAEROEE
BAR G 2 51 - #RRA BT R R M3
29 -

35.

The directors consider that in the case of default in payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principal together with
the accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements for the
guarantees.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND SHARES

Details of the Group's assets and shares pledged for the
bank and other borrowings are included in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.



36. EEHRARH

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) fEREHAA (@) As lessor
AEBRBEELHELRHEHER The Group leases its investment properties under
HEME B AE—=+ operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
FoHEKF —BRBLEXHERLX terms ranging from one to ten years. The terms of the
HIRER - leases generally also required tenants to pay security
deposits.
RB|EPRR NREBRETITHE As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
HEEME RT3 EAEE future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
HPFHMARZEHREREKNIEBELZ operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:
BT :
—E-—NF —F—=F
2014 2013
AR®F AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F K Within one year 38,812 35,114
F_EERF(BEEEME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 64,841 52,918
HF1% After five years 9,892 11,251
113,545 99,283
(b) AFRAEBEA (b) As lessee
ARBERBREZHERHLEMES The Group leases certain of the office properties and
THAMERAXRMR(GFELHET commercial properties (see (c) below) under operating
X (c))  EEMMEMRBA6EA lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are
E22F o negotiated for terms ranging from 6 months to 22 years.
R|ERR NEERETAH At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
HEEMHE  RTIHREIHN future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
ARBEMEFIFABOT operating leases falling due as follows:
—F-AF —F—=
2014 2013
AR%Fx ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 77,611 85,873
F_EERF(BEEEME) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 335,803 347,553
hF” After five years 747,810 823,712
1,161,224 1,257,138
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36. EEHARMGE)

(c) HHEZH
REBRZZE—Z—F+ KB
EMNZE TEBEMNEERE
MBARMKEESHEEL %5
MEDRBIYE = FHEE Az
B RERETINBERL -

FERBHESE

BHETIBEFHZEFHS—
ETAF -RBEHKR A5HE
RETAIHEERZHE  RT5
H ] 21 5 & R 2K & (K e W AR P 9
WHRRAEDT

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(CONT'D)

(c)

Subleasing arrangements

The Group acquired Guangzhou Zhide in December
2012 and commenced its subleasing business through
Guangzhou Zhide and its subsidiaries by refurnishing
and subleasing the properties leased from independent
third parties to external tenants.

Sublease payments to be received

Terms for subleasing to external tenants are negotiated
ranging from one to fifteen years. As at the end of the
reporting period, the Group had total future minimum
sublease payments expected to be received under non-
cancellable subleasing arrangements with its tenants
falling due as follows:

—F-OmF —F-=F

2014 2013

AR¥FT ARMF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—F R Within one year 158,607 119,820
F_EERAF(BIEEEMF) Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 260,469 193,412
HF% After five years 125,571 46,275
544,647 359,507

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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BT EXWE36hMESHERIEFS
G REBRREBRESG AT B AR

=

37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
36 above, the Group had the following capital commitments as
at the end of the reporting period:

—E-NEF —FE—=4F
2014 2013
AR%Fx ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EETHERIEH B - Contracted, but not provided for:
HETH Leasehold land 690,740 1,612,383
ek ES Properties under development 5,691,226 5,235,880
= Equity investment 80,000 80,000
UG B8 FE I A A Acquisition of non-controlling interests 19,490 19,490
6,481,456 6,947,753

AN REBEREE AR B & & AE

In addition, the Group’s share of an associate’s own capital

EAARFALEO)WT - commitments which are not included above is as follows:
—EB-mF —FE—=F
2014 2013
AR¥F T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETHERIER B - Contracted, but not provided for:
g Y Properties under development 1,931 1,467
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38. ABIAXH
(@) BTAMBREE ML RED

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

RERERIN - REBRREH elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
NEBE T Z2EFEENLNTEARAR the following material transactions with related parties
2 during the reporting period:
—E-mF —FE—=%F
2014 2013
iiFz AR®F AR FT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MEMMRRERMPES Lease of office premises from Guangzhou
BRRAAIRE—L+t Times Development Enterprise Group
HE D5 Company Limited and Ms. Li Yiping (i) 1,295 1,295
HETF—REZFNWE Sale of a property to a director (if) 5,642 —
6,937 1,295

EX

0) EMTEREROCEXEEERAF
(BREREE DI -—HAR-_Z—F
FolEEEENRE T ——F
AR S SIS A R SUR S IR B R
BIHRE] - F— LT RS HIELE
MBS - HEE X RGMFERHETE
UEZTEE LGRS

(i) HET - REEZNEBRIIZRIE
HFBLE=TTNMRERIEL -

(b) EHEBINEMRS
(i) REEFER AKEER
BENEABENER EEAR
REREEFMONETH

=

(i RBEFERN ARFAIHNE
BB ARRREEMER
CHEERANER EERAR
HREs R EZRMBE —
ERTHEEN -HEEEE
MBI FTARNYE -

(c) EEBLTNAREERLR
AR & IR R TR E
AEBEBEBEANEHRTDER
#28 BEEEERHYR -

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited

(b)

(c)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Guangzhou Times Development Enterprise Group Company
Limited (“Times Development Group”) is a company controlled
by Mr. Shum in year 2010 and by Mr. Cen Jiancai, father of Mr.
Shum, from year 2011 onwards. Ms. Li Yiping is the spouse of
Mr. Shum. Rates and conditions of the lease are similar to those
offered to independent third parties.

Price of the property sold to a director was made by reference to
those offered to independent third parties.

Other transactions with related parties

(i)

(i)

The Group used certain trademarks registered by
Times Development Group on a royalty free basis
during the reporting period.

Times Real Estate, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, used and occupied a property with
a gross floor area of approximately 111 sq.m.
owned by Ms. Li Yiping, the spouse of Mr. Shum,
on a rental free basis during the reporting period.

Outstanding balances with related parties

As disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group’s balances with its associates are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.



38. AMA X5 (&) 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONT’'D)
d) AEEBXTZEBAB(BEES) (d)  Compensation for key management personnel (including
B 37 BN - directors) of the Group:
—E-F —F—=%F
2014 2013
AR¥Fx ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e FEMREDHZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 33,234 19,439
FIRBMYIEAT Performance related bonuses 53,624 29,196
RIKREET B Pension scheme contributions 414 351
87,272 48,986
EEFHNNE—FTHFEBIERGE Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
P MR MIFES - note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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30. RENMEoNEMTA 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY
REHR SENSRTAENER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
SEEWLOT ¢ instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
AEE Group
—E-[WE+Z/A=+—H 31 December 2014
TEEE Financial assets
BXRR At E
FE W X 1E HeEmEE F
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables financial assets Total
AR¥F T AR¥FT AR%Fr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e E B FRIA Trade receivables 1,224,877 — 1,224,877
FFATER IR Financial assets included in
e R E A EWFKRIA prepayments, deposits
HEmEE and other receivables 1,060,417 — 1,060,417
JiE LBt 2 N R B FRB Amount due from an associate 222,110 — 222,110
—IBA L ERE An available-for-sale investment — 20,000 20,000
Z R AR ITER Restricted bank deposits 2,691,848 — 2,691,848
HeERIREZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,725,737 — 2,725,737
7,924,989 20,000 7,944,989

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



30. BENRSMEmTI A (R)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

REE () Group (Cont’d)
—E-mFEL=ZA=1+—H (#&) 31 December 2014 (Cont'd)
AR Financial liabilities
REENE EAREES
TENeRmERE RNSEARE SResEs
Financial Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities liabilities
amortised cost at fair value Total
AR%F T AR¥FT AR¥Fx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B2 S IE Trade payables 3,556,068 — 3,556,068
FFAE M FE T RIE R Financial liabilities included in
JEEt BN SR AaE other payables and accruals 2,243,025 — 2,243,025
SRR ITER R EMER Interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings 10,791,381 — 10,791,381
ARk &S —BEEH  Convertible Bonds — debt component 197,218 — 197,218
AR E S — Convertible Bonds —
PTHETREZ D derivative component — 120,887 120,887
16,787,692 120,887 16,908,579

2014 FEH/E Annual Report 2014 %



Lp RS e IER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—F—MF+= A=-+—H 31 December 2014

30. RENISMEMT A (&)

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

AEHE Group
—E—=F+-F=+—H 31 December 2013
THMEE Financial assets
BERk ATt &
JE U SR IE M REE HAET
Available-
Loans and for-sale
receivables  financial assets Total
ARBETFIT ARETIT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUNE 5 5/I8 Trade receivables 472,532 — 472,532
FTATERFRIE Financial assets included in
e R HALEWIE prepayments, deposits
MEmEE and other receivables 251,963 — 251,963
NG = O E O E] Amount due from an associate 70,210 — 70,210
AHfHERE Available-for-sale investments — 3,100 3,100
R HERT TR Restricted bank deposits 1,946,083 — 1,946,083
ReEMREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,721,481 — 1,721,481
4,462,269 3,100 4,465,369
THREE Financial liabilities
birg: Xic
ARG &
NemBaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ARETFIT
RMB’000
JEE 5308 Trade payables 2,413,862
ST AE AL E FE & Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
JEETRIEM M AE 2,480,137
FTESRITER R E A 5K Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings 7,402,548
12,296,547
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3. RENBSHEMIR(E) 39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONT’D)

b N/NES] Company
—E-pmFE+=A=1+—H 31 December 2014
EMEE Financial assets
ERAERFIE
Loans and
receivables
AR TFT
RMB’000
& BT BB A B B FR I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,852,915
SRR B RITIF K Restricted bank deposits 1,282
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 150,011
5,004,208
SREE Financial liabilities
1 5 E77 /NI
AT ER BEYED
TEEE =K 4zt
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised fair value Total
ARBF T ARBFT ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
T AE A FRIA R Financial liabilities included in
St EN S mEasE other payables and accruals 148,925 — 148,925
LR IEEPNGIESE €] Amounts due to subsidiaries 127,887 — 127,887
STESRITERLEMET  Interest-bearing bank loans and
other borrowings 3,316,642 — 3,316,642
AR ES - aEHs Convertible Bonds — debt component 197,218 — 197,218
AR ESH —HTHE Convertible Bonds — derivative
THEZSS component — 120,887 120,887
3,790,672 120,887 3,911,559
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30. RENISMEMT A (&)

CATEGORY (CONT’D)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

AT Company
—E—=F+=-HA=+—-HA 31 December 2013
TEREE Financial assets
B R EWRIE
Loans and
receivables
ARBFT
RMB’000
SFATENMEE - e R EMEUWETE  Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
HEmEE other receivables 273
U BT BB A R B9 3R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,356,235
ReRIAEEFED Cash and cash equivalents 785,876
2,142,384
SR EE Financial liabilities
i
RAETE /Y
TREE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
ARBEFT
RMB’000
ST AE AL B FE KR ERTRIER Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
EREE 546,894
FET O B A Rl R 3R TE Amounts due to subsidiaries 116,133
663,027

O@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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EMIANARRERAR
REE®

TRHEEMBENAAEBENZTASRE
X557 CGRAZSERLERIN) ERRS
TARSGEBEAR - AT HEREBRHEA
KEERAEE -

BEEEDHE RekBRFEY X
REBITHER  BREZFHE - BHE
ZHE - FEARNFE  Ze REME
WRENESREE st AEMENRIEA
EREGFFENERABEERER -—HEBZ
NAMKEN QA EBEEEERE S EM
- XEZARRETIACERBAIIE -

ARRTERMAMERNAAEBED
AREHARARRERERGNR EEAR
KRB MBERBEUN T AN B AR
FAEEGRFAE R —NHE+A
=t+—RB AEEFERITEREMER
MIARBRERBFERTERX °

AEBBRAUTERNEELFES @R
TEAEZRAREAE:

E14 ARBEDEEREAELERE
tE BB WE CREHE) &t

=

==8

F28: AABEDRGEEREAFE
ZEETEMERY QA EE
MEBEANKEBAZRER
EERUHEABREUE

E3R: AABEDRGEENEAFE
ZEETEMERY QA EE
MEBEANKERBAZRER
TR BRE

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and an amount due from an
associate approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as at 31 December 2014 was assessed
to be insignificant.

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is unobservable
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40. EMIRAHLARERLR 40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
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HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)

The Group did not hold any financial assets carried at fair value
as at 31 December 2014.

The Group’s available-for-sale investment as at 31 December
2014 was an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of RMB20,000,000 (31 December 2013: Nil) at an
approximately 5.88% equity interest rate. The investment was
stated at cost because the investment did not have a quoted
market price in an active market. In the opinion of the directors,
the fair value of such investment cannot be measured reliably
and the underlying fair value of investments was not less than
the carrying value of the investment as at 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, fair values of the Group’s available-
for-sale investments which were disposed of during the year of
2014 were measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets (Level 1).

The only financial liability carried at fair value level by the
Group is the derivative component of the Convertible Bonds
issued in July 2014 (note 30), which is included in Level 3
as the measurement of the quantitative information is using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair values
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2013: Nil).



41. EMERABRERHERBEK 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

TEENeRMEETZRREREAE S The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and
ZEY IBRHBITHER  BRESK cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables,
H - FFATBENKIE - &e KM ERR financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
EHNESMEE BRI 223 0IER receivables, an amount due from an associate and an available-
—HAHHERE AEENERBEE for-sale investment. The financial liabilities of the Group mainly
TERRENESRIE ST AR ER include trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
HREREFTRENERAE - 5T ERTT payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and other
BERREMERRTBRRES - borrowings and Convertible Bonds.
(a) RI=EEp (@) Interest rate risk
7R B e ) T 5 A R E) & b The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
FTEHAEBAFFHN KR interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans
TEFRREMERER K& and other borrowings bearing floating interest rates. The
i®) AR A R R b B 2R ¥ R H Group has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
A = g o interest rate risk.
EE R T SN EEEER The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
FEEARNEEFEFEETED interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
REEBERD - debt obligations with floating interest rates.
RZE—NWNEER_ZT—=ZF As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, total bank loans
+ A=+ —H8 Bz AR and other borrowings of RMB3,933,253,000 and
#3,933,253,0007t & A R ¥ RMB5,316,945,000 were with floating interest rates.
5,316,945,000 7T &9 & FX 15 LA )2
BRI REFE -
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41. ?ﬁﬁ%ﬂ!ﬁ%ﬂ H#fRBER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(a)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before income tax (through the impact of floating rate
bank loans and other borrowings) during the year. There
was no impact on the Group's other equity.

Increase/(decrease) on profit before income tax and
properties under development

—E-MF —T-=%F
2014 2013
AR%F AR F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
L0 ) RBEAK 100 & 25 If 100 basis points decrease in interest rates
B BT 15 %5 A1 ) Profit before income tax 2,259 6,148
kR ES Properties under development 33,749 35,752
WA EIES 100 & X2 If 100 basis points increase in interest rates
B AT 15 B0 A0 ) Profit before income tax (2,259) (6,148)
FEEP Y Properties under development (33,749) (35,752)

Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(b) HMEE R B (b) Foreign currency risk
AEEBMEBUNTBEAM % The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
FRXHGHUUNARMEET - & China and most of the transactions are conducted in
MAEDEERBEHENARK RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
SHEME THRITES e denominated in RMB, while certain bank balances,
NzHmE - BAEZEERTHERES other payables and senior notes and the Convertible
AIAE M EREE - AEBEHK Bonds are denominated in other foreign currencies. The
ik B AMNEF KRB o Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.
TERHEPAEMEEMEERTET The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
BHOBEALT EWmEEHR ~& end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
ERBEAFE(BHEREEEERE change in the RMB exchange rates against HKD, with all
ENARBEEFNZE)RAEEH other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
MBEA(RRBEFINER)E A tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
R Y BTERNASIBAIEEH and liabilities) and the Group’s equity (due to translation
B SRR - of foreign operations).

BT RRBE AT
EREHA A FEEFH, [N
(T &) (T &) i,
Increase/ Increase/ (RS

(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/

HKD in profit (decrease)

Rate before tax in equity*

% AR¥TF AR¥Fr

% RMB’000 RMB’000
—F—[UF 2014

mARESETTIZE If the RMB weakens against the HKD 5 (73,618) 60,057

mARESEBETHE If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 73,618 (60,057)
=4 2013

MAREHBETEE If the RMB weakens against the HKD 5 4 41,710

mARESBETTAE If the RMB strengthens against the HKD 5 4) (41,710)

* TREBEMNHE * Excluding retained profits
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group's cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
deposits are mainly deposited with state-owned banks in
Mainland China.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, and
an available-for-sale investment included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of its property units and provided guarantees
to secure the obligations of these purchasers for
repayments. A detailed disclosure of these guarantees
is made in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’D)
(d) REMERR (d) Liquidity risk
AEENEEEEEABTRTEN Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient
BehiReEEYW BAXAEEE cash and cash equivalents, and the Group has available
BAERHNERBEERBEEMN funding through an adequate amount of committed
ATAE S M i L& - credit facilities to meet its construction commitments.
TEREHEASEENRREHRER The table below summarises the maturity profile
B HNERMBEREBENSRERE of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the
KR ERE M o reporting period based on the contractual undiscounted
payments.
rEEF Group
R-_ZE—WN&F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2014
RERE  OW3MER  3Z128R 1Z5% HB5E @t
Less than 3t012 Over
On demand 3 months months  1to 5 years 5 years Total
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ERESTE Trade payables 3,556,068 — - - — 3,556,068
AR MR HIER Financial liabilities included in other
EirENERAR payables and accruals 1,006,283 — 1,236,742 — — 2,243,025
STBRITERR Interest-bearing bank loans
Hifas and other borrowings - 835946 2,049,472 10,394,695 272,661 13,552,774
gkES Convertible Bonds — 6,166 18,497 390,777 - 415,440
4,562,351 842,112 3,304,711 10,785,472 272,661 19,767,307
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41. eMEBEEEEHRERBER 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(%8) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)
(d) REMREBS (d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
ZEE (&) Group (Cont’d)
RZIE—=%+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2013
REXE  OW3ER  3R12ER 1356 BipsE st
Less than 3t012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1105 years b years Total

ARBTFL  ARETT ARETL  ARETT ARETL ARETT
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBUOO — RMBOOO

ERESHE Trade payables 2,413,862 — — — — 2413862
FAEEAFER Financial liabilities included in other

B FENSRAR payables and accruals 1,781,362 — — 698,775 — 2480137
SERTERR Interest-bearing bank loans

EffEa and other borrowings — 1112709 1341032 5687703 304956 8446400

4,195,224 1,112,709 1341032 6386478 30495 13,340,399

A Company
R-_F-MFT-A=+—H At 31 December 2014
REXE  SH3fEA  3Z12@8R 1256 BiB5F @t
Less than 3012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total

ARBFR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

STAEMENTER Financial liabilities included in other

ETENSRER payables and accruals 148,925 - — — — 148,925
ERHE AR MFTE Amounts due to subsidiaries 127,887 — - — - 127,887
FERTERR Interest-bearing bank loans

ER AR and other borrowings — 196,426 196,426 4,458,186 — 4,851,038
TaRES Convertible Bonds - 6,166 18,497 390,777 - 415,440

276,812 202,592 214923 4,848,963 5,543,290

AARR=_ZTE—=4%+
—t+t—H®MmMAES

REEE -

All the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December
2013 were repayable on demand.

?g_\
i
m
X
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Q@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited



41. & RtEEERHRRBK

(#8)

EXER
ARBEREANBBEAREAREE
BURBEREEZZMNEN  BEREREHR
Bl e AEMFSHEEE RGNS - I
HMEREEARRBARDEARKAE -

RERAABEARE  AREATHE
XHBRROBRE  MERBEEER - &
TR EEENR D ER

AEBABBEERGL R BEEERE
Ko R ENBEFERERTE - A
BRI BRIT R E M ERAR(A
REMBIORLKRAR) A RRESFNEA
BEEMOBMBREMIRITER(BEZRGIR
TEH)FE -

RBEHR BEFEERE

E\l/

§ L 2 40

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives of capital management are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated based on net debt and equity. Net debt
is calculated as total interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) and debt component of Convertible Bonds less cash
and bank balances (including restricted bank deposits).

The net debt-to-equity ratios at the end of the reporting periods

o are as follows:
—F-NF —F—=
2014 2013
AR®F ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFEIRITER L EMER Interest-bearing bank loans and other
(M7£29) borrowings (note 29) 10,791,381 7,402,548
m:ARkEFNBESS Add: Debt component of
(M7E30) Convertible Bonds (note 30) 197,218 —
o BREe NIRRT (MIFE26) Less: Cash and bank balances (note 26) (5,417,585) (3,667,564)
BEFRE Net debt 5,571,014 3,734,984
= Equity 5,717,055 4,008,421
BEFHEEERILX Net debt-to-equity ratio 97.4% 93.2%

RZZBE-—NE+_A=+—H WA H®RKRE&ES

MBESD WPEREN

AR EFREERLL

K 46594% -

Should the debt component of the Convertible Bonds be
excluded, the net debt-to-equity ratio would be 94% as at 31
December 2014.
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42. HEMEER
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Group has the following material subsequent events:

43.

(a)

On 8 January 2015, Times Billion, a subsidiary of
the Company, acquired a parcel of land located
at Zengcheng district, Guangzhou City, through
public bidding. The consideration of the land is
RMB675,750,000, of which Times Billion has paid
RMB136,000,000 as of the date of approval of these
financial statements.

On 29 January 2015, Guangzhou Tianyi, a subsidiary
of the Company, acquired two adjacent land parcels
located at Luogang district, Guangzhou City, through
public bidding. The total consideration of the land
parcels is RMB1,332,690,000, of which Guangzhou
Tianyi has paid RMB268,000,000 as of the date of
approval of these financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 6 February 2015.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MERERVBBRRRARRARNR -_FT—=
Ft—AZ+TNLBENBRERNAKERBE
TEMBFENRE BEERAEHEZHIIW

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and the Company’s prospectus dated 29 November 2013,

™ is set out below:
BZ+t-A=+-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
—2-mE —T-=F ZFT-f ZT-F IZT-ITF
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AREFRT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EF RESULTS
WA REVENUE 10,418,948 9,694,735 3,197,142 2,466,811 1,547,206
HE KA Cost of sales (7,232,639) (7,354,711) (2,288,184) (1,781,257) (1,156,369)
EH GROSS PROFIT 3,186,309 2,340,024 908,958 685,554 390,837
HEl A Rz Other income and gains 104,526 78,700 138,269 208,908 196,025
HERDHEAAR Selling and distribution costs (483,398) (411,137) (204,279) (259,226) (172,925)
THRX Administrative expenses (304,343) (285,629) (145,098) (182,227) (111,425)
HEiA = Other expenses (40,482) (16,493) (34,377) (84,069) (27,006)
B & AR Finance costs (231,959) (87,706) (42,055) (39,662) (33,110)
JE(E B & A A) Share of profits and losses
EREE of associates 4,160 2371 5 6,440 3,212
BR 4 A PROFIT BEFORE TAX 2,234,813 1,620,130 621,423 335718 245,608
LA Income tax expense (881,131) (646,200) (267,775) (100,847) (80,264)
FEMHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,353,682 973,930 353,648 234,871 165,344
THIBIEEAG Attributable to:
ZIN/NETE F= N Owners of the Company 1,279,026 987,022 362,916 247,169 165,347
SEE R R Non-controlling interests 74,656 (13,092) (9,268) (12,298) (3)
1,353,682 973,930 353,648 234,871 165,344

2014 £ E & Annual Report 2014 @O



HFIEHE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EE SERESR ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
R+=ZB=+-H
As at 31 December
—E-QNE —T-=F T —T——F% Z—LT-F%F
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFTI
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEBH TOTAL ASSETS 33,084,552 24,839,778 22,085,608 15,767,424 10,207,873
BEEH TOTAL LIABILITIES (27,367,497) (20,831,357)  (18,879,495)  (12,916,387) (8,090,906)
BB TOTAL EQUITY 5,717,055 4,008,421 3,206,113 2,851,037 2,116,967

O@ B E ARG R A 8 Times Property Holdings Limited
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